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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE TWENTIETH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR

LEE_COUNTY, FLORIDA __CIVIL ACTTON
NEWS-PRESS PUBLISHING CO, A0 catd b
INC., /‘?Cﬂ) 35 CAAAD
Petitioner, 7
vs CASE NO 92-1193CA~WCM

JOHN MCDOUGALL, as duly
elected Sheriff of Lee
County, Florida,

Respondent,

ORDER DENYING WRIT OF MANDAMUS

Petitioner, News-Press Publishing Co.,Inc., requests that
this Court issue a Writ of Mandamus commanding the Reépondent;
Joan MeDougall, Sheriff of Lee County, Fleorida, t¢ permit the
Petitioner to inspect a certain criminal investigative file which
is in the Respondent's Custody and control. The Respondent has
replied that said file is exempt from public disclosurc pursuant
to Chapter 119 of the Florida Statutes (1991). Respondent has
alterngtively moved to dismiss the Petition for Wric of Mandamus
and has also filed a Declaratory Action as a Counterclaim. This
Céurt has ju;isdiction.

Upon review of the caselaw and arguments Presented, the
Court finds that a Writ of Mandamus is the proger remedy 1f the
Petitioner is able to prove the facts alleged in its petition.
Therefore, the Court denies the Respondent's Motion to Dismiss

the Petition; furthermore, the Court dismlsses the Respondent's

.

- 1 -
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Counterclaim for declaratory relief because it is rendered moot
by this order.
The parties have stipulated to the following facts:

The Respondent is the duly elected Sheriff of Lee County,

Florida, who has custody and control of a file containing

oriminal investigative data relative to an alleged sexual battery

inlLee County in March or April, 1988. Sometime late in 198?,
this file became inactive because: (1) the élleged victinm, who
was the only witness reporting said crime, died from an unrelated
cause; and, (2) although the alleged perpetrator was known, a
lack of other evidence made it unlikely that there could be an
arrest or prosecution in the foreseeable future. Mo known public
inspections of this file took Place during its inactive period.
In February, 1992, three teenagers were abducted ﬁo a remote
area in Lee County where £wo of them were killed and the other
seriously wounded; the alleged perpetrator of the 1988 sexual
battery was arrested and charged with these crimes. The
Petitioner learned of the 1988 allegations against the accused,
and requested that the Respondent permit the Petitioner to

inspeqt and examine the file containing the 1988 investigation

data. While admitting that for a period in excess of three years

this file was inactive ang therefore available for public
examination, the Respondent refused to permit the requested
inspection c¢laiming that new developments hﬁd reactivated the

criminal investigation thereby returning the file to active

status and, hence, exempt from public view pursuant to Section .

119.07(3)(4).
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The Petitioner concedes that the investigation .of the 1988

HETY LEN UFL

{ sexual battery is once again active, but denies that the file--
which was admittedly available for public inspection upon -
becoming inactive--can ever reacquire exempt status. To Support

this position, Petitioner cites Tribune Co. v, Cannella, 458 So.2d

1075 (Fla. 1984) and Tribune Co. v. Public Records, 493 So.24 480

(Fla.2DCA 1986). But neither of those cases addresses the precise
issue posed here: whether an inactive criminai investigation ffle
which has been available for pPublic view can be reactivated 50 as
to become exempt from disclosure under the Public Records Act?
‘Under the facts and circumstances presented heré, the Court
must answer that question in éhe affirmative. The recognized
legislative purpose for the exemption of active criminél
investigative information is to prdtect the process Qhereby the

State may develop new leads so as to successfully apprehend and

prosecute persons accused of crime. Public Records at page B848;

Florida Freedom Newspapers,Inc. v. Dempsey, 478 So.2d 1128

(Fla.iDCA 19B5) at page 1131. Fortunately for the Public, new
leads have developed in the unresoclved sexual battery case Of .~
1588, and this file is once again active. It makes no difference_
tpat the file was previously "available" to public examination
due to inactivity; the custodlan's only proper concern is whether

the file |is active_ now. Furthermore, ‘these facts are

distinguishable from Downs v. Austin, 522 sSo.2d 931 (Fla.lDCA
. i

1988) where the State had "gone public" with investigative data

at a sentencing hearing; here, fortuitously, no public disclosure .

of the inactive‘file occurred. As the Petiticpner has conceded
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that (1) the 1988 sexual battery case is presently active, and
{2) the contents of this file pertain to that active case, this
Court concludes that the data in question is exempt from publlc

disclosure per Section 119. 07¢(3)(d), Florida Statutes.
WHEREFORE the Petition for Writ of Mandamus is denied,

DONE AND ORDERED in Fort Myers, Lee County, Florida, this
26th of February, i%92, -

Ml

Circuit Judge

L2:56 MO.UU4 F.US
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FEB 16 ’96 15324 PRLM BEACH POST Pl

SE PO BOX 28700, WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33416-3700

?%% ? %Em %@ggh P {407) 820-4100 FAX (407) §20-4340

Februaxy 16, 1996

Mr. Michael Satz

Broward County State Attorney
FAX: (954} 831-3047

Re: Public Records Redgueast

Dear Mr. Satz;

Pursuant to Chapter 119, Flerida Statutes, I regquest an
uniredacted copy of Michael Christiansen’s memorandum from the
Jan. 16 meeting between the Walshes and Hollvwood police.

Please call we at your earliest possible convenience at
{407} 279-345¢

for your assistance.

Staff Writer
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Family
holds hope
for arrest

Walshes informed |
of ‘developments’

By'SCOTT GLOVER
Staff Writer

Americi’s Most Wanted host John
Walsh was told by Hollywaod police de-
tectives last week that there have been
_recent “impressive developments” in the
case of his son, Adam,. who was mur-

. dered 14 years ago, an attorney said .on
Monday. .

John and Reve Walsh came to Holly-
wood for an update on the investigation
of the murder of :
Adam, whe disap-
peared from 4 local
shopping mall on J uly

; 27, 1981, The boy's
-'severed-head was
found two weeks later
in a canal off Florida’s
Turnpike. His body has
".never been recovered.

_The Walshes are op- -
timistic that Adam’s
killer will be caught, Adam
said John Walsh’s attorney, George
Terwilliger. :

“They remain hopeful that there will
be an arrest,” said Terwilliger, of Wash-
ington, D.C. “They were told there have
been some impressive developments in
the case.” '

"Neither police nor Terwilliger would
describe those developments on Monday.

Stephanie Norris, a police spokeswom-
an, sought to downplay the lawyer’s

. comments.

“The case is as active today as it wag
three to six months ago,” Norris said.
think the meaning of ‘impressive devel-
opments’ is open to interpretation.”

Norris said police still intend to com-

»«hh‘*ram».ulrlﬁ-'d‘t\wr'nl(t-;.rﬂo.i-'?‘

L R N ¥ WP P

ply with a judge’s order to make the de- 7

PLEASE SEE WALSH /2B

Flerduide

z
H

LY

-
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FROM PAGE 1B

Police to release
murdered boy’s
file in February

- partment’s case fileg
public on Feb, 18, barring any
major breaks in the case, By state
law, criminal case files must be
opened to the public if there js no

hope of an arrest or prosecution.

in the foreseeable futyre.
Several newspapers, including
the Sun-Sentinel have sued the
city in an effort to open the files
on Adam’s unsolved murder, ar-
guing there is no imminent possi-
bility. of an arrest,

- WALSH

In October, Broward Circuit
Judge Leroy Moe told police offi-

' cials they have untj Feb. 16 to

produce a viable suspect in the
case or they must make their
mountain of files public,

Adam’s much-publicized disap-
bearance from a Sears across the
street from a Hollywood police
station led to a’ massive, years-
long investigation but never an
arrest. ' :

Since August 1894, the case has
been ‘assigned to Detective Mark
Smith of the department’s cold
case squad.

At the hearing before Moe in

-June, Smith said he had “two or

three” suspects, including cne
whose possible connection to the

W

murder had arisen in the past six
months, S

In the wake of Adam’s disap-
beéarance and murder, his father,
John, became a national spokes-

. man for mjssing children and lat-

er host of the TV show America ’s
Most Wanted,

Despite his public role, he has
spoken little about the details of
his son’s case over the years. His
attorney would not say -whether
Walsh is opposed to the files being
made public next month,

“John's only concern is if any-
thing would occur that's going to
interfere with the ability of the
police to close the case,” Terwil-
liger said. “All he wants is some
credible elosure to this 311 »

T
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Law OFFICES

GABEL & HAIR

GEORGE D. GABEL, JR.
MATTOX S. HAIR
JOEL B. TOOMEY
ROBERT M. DEES
SHELLEY SBONEY FORTE
TIMOTHY J. CONNER
SUZANNE M. JUDAS
MICHAEL L. BERRY, JRR.
KAREN H. WILLIAMS
ROBERT B. BIRTHISEL
KARL B. HANSON, 111
BROOKS C. RATHET

November 11,

Ralph J. Ray, Jr., Hsquire

SCOTT M. LOFTIN
(1878-1953)

HAROLD B. WAHL
(1207-1223)

DO4/3B3-7329

FACSIMILE @04/358- 1637
LAWOFFCS@GABELHAIR.COM

76 SOUTH LAURA STREET, SUITE 1600
JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA 32202-3421

1996

Chief Assistant State Attorney

Rroward County Courthouse
201 S.E. 6th Street,
Fort Lauderdale,

Dear Ralph.,

Suite 640
FL 33301-3302

You may be interested to learn that yvour Adam Walsh case

ended up in Media Law Reporter.

enclosed.

A copy of the reported opinion is

It looks like we may try our bad faith case in March.
Judge Miller is trying to get a retired judge to hear the case
gince it will last approximately four weeks.

Best regards.

GDGJr/dh
Enclogure

Very truly yours,

George D. Gabel, Jr.
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LAW OFFICES

GABEL & HAIR

78 SOUTH LAURA STREET, SUITE 1600
- JACKSONVILLE: FLORIDA 32202-3421

Ralpi(}. Ray, .ﬂ.w{wﬁ@z?@
Chief .pmmmmﬂmi% Aftorney
Brgward Coupvy Courthouse
201 §TE6th Street, Suite 640

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301-3302

—:_—__-—m__L—-_—_-:mZ_-h_—_-_m-:_::h_m:m_:

Tinl,
R ]
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IN THE CIRCUIT COCURT FOR THE
SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
OF FLORIDA, IN AND FOR BROWARD
COUNTY, FLORIDA

CASE NO. 95-06324 CACE (13)

THE MOBILE PRESS REGISTER, INC.
and JAY GRELEN,

Plaintiffs,

RICHARD WITT, as chief of police of the
City of Hollywood, Florida,

)

)

)

)

)

VS. )
)

)

)

)

.Defendant. )
)

Order Requiring Production of Public Records -

THIS cause was considered by the Court on the following motions: Plaintiff’s Renewed
Motion for an brder Requiring Production of Public Records and Defendant’s Status Advisory.

HEARING was held on October 18, 1995.

THE COURT having considered the grounds for the Motion, taken testimony. heard
argument and considered the applicable law, it is

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED as follows:

Defendant shall by no later than 12 noon on February 16, 1996, make available for

inspection and copying all records requested by the plaintiffs and any other records relating to

001803



Case No. 95-06324 CACE (13)

the Adam Walsh murder investigation in existence as of February 16, 1996. Jurisdiction is
reserved to consider any motion for costs or attorneys” fees.
Done and ordered in chambers at Fort Lauderdale, Broward County, Florida, this

day of October, 1995.

WALYH M AAT 4 1LLE

TR Dy UL <4 t;:é‘
Leroy H. Moe
Circuit Judge

Copies furnished to:
Thomas R. Julin

Counsel for Mobile Press Register, Inc., Jay Grelen,
Sun-Sentinel Co., and WFTV, Inc. d/b/a Palm Beach Newspapers, Inc.

Kathleen Pellegrino
Counsel for Sun-Sentinel Co.

Jerold 1. Budney
Counsel for The Miami Herald Publishing Company

Joel Cantor
Counsel for Richard Witt

B!
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IN THE SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN
AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
CIVIL DIVISION

CASE NO. 9506324 =

THE MOBILE PRESS REGISTER
Plaintiff,

ORIGINAL

RICHARD H. WITT, Chief of
police,

Defendant.

)
)
)
)
vs. )
)
)
)
)
)

Transcript of Proceedings beginning at 1:30
P.M., and concluding at 2:55 p.m., on Monday, June 12,
1895, taken in the Broward County Courthouse, Fort
Lauderdale, Florida, before the Honorable Jﬁdge Moe,
Cirucuit Ccourt Judge, Reported by Jeri Corona,

Shorthand Reporter.

APPEARANCES:

THOMAS R. JULIN, Esquire, cn behalf of the Plaintiff
ADAM LEVIN, Esguire, on behalf of the Plaintiff as

Lo co-gounsel. . - - . - -
JOEL CANTOR} Esguire, on behalf of thé Defendant.
JAY GRELEN ‘

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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THEREUPON, the fcllowing proceedings were had.

THE CQURT: All right. Are we ready
on the Mobile Press Register versus --

MR. CANTOR: Defendant is ready, your
Honor.

Your Honor, Joel Cantor representing
individual defendant, Chief Richard Witt,
chief of the Hollywocd Police Department.
The case of Mcbile Press Register versus
Chief Richard Witt, Hollywood pclice
chief.

MR. JULIN: Your Honor, Themas Julin
of Steel, Hector and Davis for the Mobile
Press Register, and Jay Grelen, and also
for the Sun Sentinel Company and the Palm
Beach Post.

With us today 1s alsco Jay CGrelen, one
of the plaintiffs and reporter for the
Mobile Press Register; and Adam Levin,-an

associate in my office.

e
-

PHE "COURT: Are there any other
parties to the Walsh case?

MR. JULIN: These are the only --
THE COQOURT: The Register and the

reporter?

ASSCCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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MR. JULIN: The Register and the
reporter. There has been -- motions have
been filed by Palm Beach Post and the Sun
Sentinel to join as plaintiffs to the =
case. And I spoke with Mr. Cantor about
it and he indicated there is no objection
to that motion being granted.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. JULIN: Your Honor, this is
before the court on our motion for an
order requiring the defendant, the chief
of police of Hellywood, to release the
records of the Adam Walsh murder
investigation.

This case is a public records
enforcement case and we have for your
Honor basically a dispute over an
interpretation of a single exemption to
the public records law.

I think the essential facts are not
in;&isputgliﬁ-this'case as far as the
crime at issue here took place in July of
1981, an investigation of the crime
commenced by the Hollywood Police

Department, and that investigation

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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continued for a number of years.

It is now fourteen years
approximately after the date of the crime
and the contention of the plaintiffs here
is that this can no longer under the
public records law be considered an active
criminal investigation that the defendants
are eangaged inmn.

The c¢rime remains unsclved. The
crime had been assigned to the cold case
sgquad of the Hollywood Police Department
and our contention is,; and we’ll show your
Honor, that this is not an active
investigation.

THE COURT: How do you plan to do
that? Are yvou going to present testimony
or evidence?

MR. JULIN: Your Honor, as far as
procedure goes I would propose this. In

these cases under the Barfield decision

versus thg-ﬁity of Fort Lauderdale Police

Department the Fourth Pistrict Court of
Appeal held that the burden of showing an
exemption is applicable is on the

defendant in the case, and I understand

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC.,

(305) 763-1382
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that the defendant has witnesses hexre that
are available to testify as to whether an
active criminal investigation is underway
or not. -

And we would propose, as far as
procedurally things are concerned, it
would be appropriate for the defendant to
call any witnesses or offer any testimony
that would be supportive of their
contention that there is an active
criminal investigation underway.

The statute that we’'re dealing with
is clear in its definition of active
criminal investigation. We're dealing
with Section 119.0113 D-2 which provides
that criminal investigative information
shall be considered active as long as it
is related to an ongoing investigaticn
which is continuing with a reasconable dood

faith anticipation of securing an arrest

o

for prosecution in the foreseeable future.

Now, in this case -- this case is
somewhat unique in Florida history. We
have not been able to find any Florida

cases which have addressed whether a

ASSQCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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criminal investigation can remain active
for a period of fourteen years. There
have been a number of decisions, the
Barfield decision being one of them, where
there was a fairly short period of time
from the date of the crime to the date
that the records were requested where the
courts have concluded that that short
period of time, typically a periocd of
months, is not a sufficient time to =
that there has not been enough past time
to allow the police to conduct and
conclude their investigation.

We submit in this case, where you
have had the fourteen year lapse of time,
that the defendant will not be able to
meet its burden of showing that there is
still an active criminal investigation
underway.

In fact, we d¢ have evidence to offer
from Mr. Grelen who had a cdnversation
with the chief of police about what he was
told as far as the status of the
investigation goes. But we think that

properly the burden is on the defendant.

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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THE COURT: You will assume the
burden of going forward then?

MR. CANTOR: Yes, we will, your
Honcocr. =

THE COURT: Do you care to make an
opening statement?

MR. CANTOR: Yes, I do, your Honor.

Your Honor, clearly and even out of
the articles that have been published by
Mr. Grelen, this investigation is
currently active. There are three primary
cases that will affect this issuve, Judge,
and I would like to present them now as we
review through them during the course of
our argument. |

One being the Barfield case which is
in our district. Another one, Florida
Freedom News Papers versus Dempsey and the

octher case is out of Lee County Circuit

Court opinion that was affirmed on appeal

o . - .

that is Néws‘Press-PubiishiﬂéfverSus
McDougall.

This case, your Honor, is currently
being actively investigated, has been

investigated feverishly by Detective Mark

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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Smith who is present in this courtroom who
has also supplied this court with an
affidavit verifying that he is actively
pursuing this inv?stigation in good faixh.
In good faith with the impression that he
is going to bring this case to a fimal
determinaticn in the foreseeable future.

Your Honor,'I believe that meets the
burden and certainly shifts that burden
back. But,; if need be, your Honor,
certainly we're prepared to offer Mark
Smith, Detective Mark Smith, to testify
before this court not as to the
intricacies to what he is actually
investigatihg, but certainly to further
verify what he has suggested in his
affidavit, the attached affidavit.

PHE COURT: Will you accept the
affidavit as substantive proof?

Mﬁ. JULIN: No, yocur Honor, we don‘t.
We-think that- the statute cofflicts that
evidence be offered by affidavit.

THE CQURT: Do you care to reply to
the opening statement?

MR. JULIN: Your Honor, I would only

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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say as far as the affidavit is concerned
the affidavit simply indicates that there
has been an investigation of some type on
the part of the detective to review =
reports in evidence and that says he is
coﬁtinuing to review the investigation
that had been conducted by the Hollywood
Police Department.

Essentially what happened here is the
Hollywood Police Department conducted an
investigation, which was concluded, and
then it was assigned to what I think the
evidence will show, to the cold case
squad.

The case had become cold and I think
at this point and time where the cold case
squad investigated it for almost a year
that at this point it is no longer
reasonable to contend that there is an
active ériminal investigation.

: None of the cases cited by the
defendant here would support the
proposition that a criminal investigation
can remain active for a period of fouxrteen

years unless there is an exceptional

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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circumstance where they can show your
Honor that there really 1is some additional
new evidence that has come to life which
they’'re trackin§ down and this had given
them the believe that they’re going to
secure an arrest in the foreseeable
future.

The standard has never been simply
that the case is unsolved. The standard
has been do they have a reasonable good
faith belief in securing an arrest.

MR. CANTOR: And I agree with that,
your Honor. And just one last response,
if I might, your Honor. The McDougall
case, which I just handed to you which was
affirmed correctly on an appeal, this is a
1988 homicide where during the course of
the investigation the victim passed away.

Over four vears later two sexual
battery victims alleged the same homicide
perpetrafzr“ﬁas involved as 4 défendant in
their case. The local police department
in Lee County decided to reactivate that
homicide file after it had remained

absolutely dormant for four years.

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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The District Court of Appeals and the
Circuit Court both affirmed then. And in
very specific language on page twe of that
case, your Honor, while admitting that for
a period of excess of four years this file
was inactive, the main thing to look at on
page three, custodians only proper concern
is whether the file is active now.

And clearly, vour Honor, even out of
the words of Jay Grelen, one of our
plaintiffs in this particular matter, this
case is currently under investigation.
Again, Detective Smith has suggested that
in verification and will do so, your
Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Call your
first witness.

MR. CANTOR: Your Honor, the defense
will call Detective Mark Smith.

THE COURT: All right. Come on up
here and be-sworn in and have a seat over
there, please.

THEREUPON:

MARK SMITH

a witness herein, being of lawful age and being first
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duly sworn by tﬁe court testified on his oath as
follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CANTOR: -
THE COURT: Have a seat and make
yourself comfortable.
MR. CANTOR: With the court’'s
permission I would like to inqguire with
this witness.
Q. (By Mr. Cantor) Detective Smith, you‘re

currently employed by?

A, The City of Hollyweod Police Department.
Q. In the capacity of?

A, A detective in the homicide division.

Q. Okay. With this case that seems to be the

subject matter of this pending public records
litigation, Detective Smith, how long have you been

currently investigating this case?

A. Since August of 13994.

Q. Okay. S0 approcximately ten months?

A.  Yes. .-~ ’ -

Q. Over that -- during that ten month periced,

have you been -- without getting into the
intricacies of your investigation, have ycu been

going out of town to interview suspects, have wvou
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been -- just generically, what have you been doing?
A, As you stated, I have traveled cut of
town. I have traveled out of state. I traveled

within the state as recently as a month and arhalf
ago. I went out of state about six months ago with
this case and that’s about it.

Q. Detective Smith, with as much time as you
have been devoting to this case, not withstanding
the case you’'re currently testifying for right now,
the homicide case for Mr. Magrino, but have you been
devoting as much time to this case as any of your
other cases that you have on your calendar?

A, I would say so. I mean, I have been as
far as 1I°'ve approached the prosecuters, the state
attorneys office about this case. I've dealt wifh
Mr. Magrino on this case and I would say I'm
spending about as much time as I am on any other
case that I have.

Q. Detective Smith, are you proceeding in
this investigation in good faith with the
anticipation th%t*you will eithér'éécure an érrést
or eventual prosecution in this case?

A, Absolutely. In that I don’t know why I
wonld be investigating it now if I wasn’t expecting

something like that.
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Q. Prior to you jumping on this case in
August -- let me ~- just -- the plaintiff’s counsel
mentioned something about cold case. Is there any

such things as a cold case squad? =

A, Not necessarily cold case sguad. But
we -~ I think it is generally called ~-
investigating an old case is called investigating a
¢cold case. I have investigated maybe a dozen older
cases, unsolved cases over the six years that I have
been there. This is considered one of those as
well.

Q. Let me ask you, Detective, is that
sometimes mentioned or is an investigator brought in
as a cold case detective to bring sort of like a new
fresh face or outlook to the casé?

A. That’s exactly what it is. The fact that
in murder one there is no statute cof limitations.
Any murder case we have is considered -- actually
considered open. It is never closed. Whether it is

investigated or not is another story.

- : = . . w o . . . - L
Q. ¥ Okay. -With your current -- with your -
activity that you have been involved -- let me just

even ask you, prior to your ten months that you have
been devoting to the case recently, were you alsoc

aware of approximately tweo, two and half years ago

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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when the previously assigned detective was up
interviewing Jeffrey Dahmer (phonetic) up in

Minnesota as a potential suspect in this crime?

L. Yes, I had personal knowledge of that.
Q. How long ago was that?

A. About two years ago.

Q. Is it your knowledge that this case has

been actively investigated through the years as
opposed to what plaintiff’s counsel is suggesting,
that it has been sitting dormant?

A. It has not been sitting dormant. We get
calls all the time on this case. There isn‘t a
month that doesn’t go by that we don’'t get a call.

Q. The interview with Jeffrey Dahmer two and
a half, three yeérs ago, did that regquire one of our
homicide detectives to go up and actually go to

Minnesota and interview Jeffrey Dahmer?

A. I believe we went to Wisconsin.

Q. Or Wisconsin, I'm sorry.

A, Yes.

Q. :'Okay.%vDétective Sﬁitﬁ, what affect on

your investigation would the revelation of the Walsh
file? What affect would it have on your
investigation?

A. Ch, if there is another witness out there,

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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if there is another someone that would have come
forward and spoken to me, the fact that it would be
opened up I think would harm the investigation
without a doubt. =

Q. Okay. Would it possibly impede your
eventual final determination of this case?

A, I'm sure it could.

Q. Judge, I°11 tenure any cross examination.

MR, JULIN: Thank you.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. JULIN:

Q. Detective Smith, good afternoon.
A, Good afternoon.
Q. Detective Smith, you testified that you

started working on this case in August of 19947

A. That’s correct.

Q. Was there something that precipitated your
investigation at that time or your assignment in the

investigation at that time?

A. You’re asking me why I got assigned to the
case? I T i - ‘
Q. Yes. How did you happen to start working

on it in August of 94°?
A, Well, the decision was made by the

division manager at that time, who was Major Maher,

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, IRNC., (305) 763-1382
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Major Brian Maher, who was in charge of the
detective bureau. He made the decision along with
my immediate lieutenant who assigned me the case.

Q. Did they tell you why they were assigning
vou to that case at that time?

A. Ho. I don’t remember. I don’t remember
why. They brought me and told me that they wanted
me to work the Adam Walsh case.

Q. Now, Detective, isn’t it true that one of
your specialties is working on cold cases?

A. I’ve worked them. I have worked them
maybe more than any of the other detectives in our
division, yes

Q. Isn‘t it true that you were assigned this
case because one of your specialties is working on
cold cases?

A, I guess yvou could say that’s a
possibility, ves.

Q. And this case was regarded as a cold case
by the City of Hellywood Police Department, was 1t

R -

not? S T o
A. I think, as I just mentioned before, any
homicide case that is not solved is considered T /

guess you could say cold, meaning it hasn’'t been --

a new approach hasn’t been used, new technigue. It

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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is just a different perspective. Cases haven’t been
loocked at in a different perspective.

Q. Detective, the City of the Hollywood
Police'Department does not regard every one of its
unsolved murder cases as cold cases, does it?

A, I believe they do. I woulgd.

Q. So if a murder happened yesterday and you
have an active lead and‘expect to make an arrest
tomorrow, that is a cold case?

A, I stand corrected. If you put it that
way, no. If there is a case that has been
investigated thoroughly, one day it is probably -- I
wouldn‘t use that as being -- leads that have been
exhausted in one day. I would say that if you have
a case in about a week’s time everything has been
exhausted, there are no further leads, I would think
then it would be considered possibly a cold case.

. At the time that you were assigned to the
Adam Walsh case the department had fully explored

all the leads that they had at that time, had they

oy

not? e R

A, I don't believe so.
Q. Were there active leads that had not been:

followed up at the time you were assigned to the

case?
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A, Well, it is a rather vast file. There 1is
a lot in that file that probably needs to be looked
at and it is going to take some time.

Q. And you found in August of 1994 that there
were things that had not been looked at by the
detectives, is that what you’'re testifying?

A, I have to say they weren’t locked at the
way I would loock at them or approach them.

Q. So they had been looked at by other police
ocfficers, they had not resulted in any arrests or
prosecutions, and then you decided to take another
look at them, is that your testimony?

A, I would say that that is the best way to
lecck at a case that hasn’t been solved. Maybe one
of the reasons it has not been solved is it hasn’'t
been looked at correctly.

Q. And that is what happened in this case,
others have loocked at the leads, not found anything
there, and yvou were brought in for a second look, is

that correct?

A. - Sure, there were leads that were looked
at, yes.

Q. That’'s what happened here, is that
correct?

A, Yes.

ASSQOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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Q. Now, Detective, you have been working on
this matter since August of 19%94. You have been
working a matter of ten months. Do you expect to

conclude your investigation at any time in the

future?

A. T would love to be able to answer that and
I don’t know. T don’t know when we’ll feel that
everything else has been exhausted. I don't feel
they have.

Q. Is there any way that you can quantify how

much longer you are going to be on this
investigation?

MR. CANTOR: Judge, I would object to
even the form of the guestion, your Honor,
because our case decision is very
specifically set out the fact that our
detective, who is being asked on direct or
cross examination, doesn’t have to respond
to that question of quantifying when a
prosecution or arrest may take place.

. THE COURT: Overruled.
Q. (By Mr. Julin) Can you quantify how much
longer you would expect to be working on this i
investigation?

A. That’s hard to answer. The next lead I

ASSCOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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loock up might take me in two other different
directions and those two leads might take me
somewhere else. I don’t know how I can answer that.
I would love to say it would end next week. -

Q. Can you say that it is probable that you
will make an arrest or commence a prosecution next
week?

A, No.

Q. Can you say that you will make an arrest
or commence a prosecution within the next month?

A, Very possible.

Q. You say it is possible. My quéstion is,
can you say it is probable that you will make an
arrest or commence a prosecution within the next
month?

A. It is very difficult to answer that
gquestion because I do have things planned very soon

and I don’t know where they are geilng to lead me

~from there.

Q. So you cannot answer the question, is that
S 5, . - - I , -
your answer? T T
A. I cannot tell you -- I cannot -- yes, I

cannot answer your gquestion, that’s correct.
0. Now, the department, does it have other

murders that have been unsolved for a period of
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fourteen years --

A, Oh, ves.

Q. ~- to vour knowledge?

A. Yes. -
Q. Can'you tell us approximately how many

have been unsolved for that length of period of

time?

A, I'm locking at one now that is fifteen
years. There is a few I know of that are twenty
years.

Q. All right. Has the department ever solved

a murder case where they have been investigating for
a period of fourteen years to yaur knowledge?
MR. CANTOR: Objection, Judge. I'm
not sure what tﬁe relevancy is of that.
THE COURT: Overruled.
A, (By the Witness) - Yes.
Q. Okay. How many cases did it solve after
fourteen years?
A, I know of one, maybe more. But my

personél“knbwle

dge is one because T was involved in
it‘
Q. And was there something about that

particular case that allowed you to solve that case

after a period cof fourteen years?
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A. Yes.

Q. And what was that?

A. Exactly what we have been discussing, a
new approach, a new. -- in that particular case it

was a different approach with an already known
witness and all it took was just another approach to
that witness and the case came to a conclusion.

Q. Detective, what is this different approach
that you’re using?

A, I would have to say it is anything other
than what the original investigators had. In other
words, they may have looked at -- they may look at
someone who said something -- no, I would look at
what someone said back then and just show up and
talk to that person. And that person who was a
friend of someone fifteen, fourteen years ago is now
his enemy and all it takes is coming up and talking
to him. Things l1ike that. There is other things.

0. Detective, is there anything beyond this
different approach that gives you an expectation
that ydu;re;goi;gaﬁo make an arrest in the Adam
Walsh murdexr case?

MR. CANTOR: Objection, asked and
answered, your Honor.

THE COURT: Overruled.

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382

001827




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

24

A, (By the Witness) Well, technology that we
didn‘t have back in the early eighties.

Q. Let me ask you about that, the technology.
In this particular case Adam Walsh of course =
disappeared from a Sears store in Hollywood, do you
recall that?

A. Yes, I think I do.

Q. And so it creates a difficulty for
investigating this crime, does it not, because you
don‘t have a crime scene, you don’t have a place

where the crime took place?

A. It makes it a little more difficult, yes.
Q. Makes it very difficult, does it not?

aA. Makes it more difficult, yes.

Q. Would you say this is one of the most

difficult investigations that you have worked on as
a detective?

A, I would say so, yes.

Q. And the reason for that -- one of ihe

reasons is that you don’t have a crime scene to work

with, is that correct?
A. We don’t have a crime seen that we know of
now, that’s correct.
O. Do you have reason to believe that you’'re

going to find a crime scene in the future?
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A, Absolutely. That’s a possibility.
Q. And what is your basis for your testimony?
A, The basis for the testimony is that there

might be a crime scene somewhere? =

Q. Yes, you testified you might fine a crime
scene in the future, what ‘is the basis for your
saying that?

A. There is a crime scene somewhere, that's
why I'm leaving that option open that some day maybe
it will be found.

Q. Do you have any evidence now in your
possession that is leading you to the crime scene?

MR. CANTOR: Your Honor, I ocbject to
that because this should not be a fact
finding mission for the media to get into
specific inquiries as to where this case
is going, your Honor.

THE COURT: Sustained.

Q. (By Mr. Julin) Now, Detective, you

mentioned that new technolegy is giving you a basis

wr

to beligﬁe'thatﬁydﬁ;might seéure an arrest in thé
future, what new technology are you using that is
giving you that basis?

A. I don't know. That’'s part of your same

argument that vou just mentioned. For that reason,
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I don't know if I can expound upon it.

Q. Let me ask you this way, Detective, is
there some invention, or machine, devise that youn’
now applying to evidence which could not have:keen
applied to evidence in the proceeding fourteen yea
of this investigation?

MR. CANTOR: Again, your Honorxr, I
have to object as to his methodology,
detective’s methodology now in
investigating this case. Specifically,
Judge, certainly it would disclose in the
cpen courtrocom as to what this detective
is doing.

THE COURT: Sustained.

MR. JULIN: Your Honor, could I
request that if there are matters that
would show that some new technology is
being used it might be appropriate for an
in camera review by the court to consider
what that is, because it is difficult to
crOsslexa;iné'the witnéssiabbﬁt'his
assertions that are very general without
getting into that specific.

THE CQURT: Yes, it is. I recognize

that is difficult, but at this point I

re

rs
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warranted here.
Q. (By Mr. Julin) Detective, do you have a
suspect in the case at this time? =
MR. CANTOR: Again, Judge, same
objection. Getting into the specifics for

fact finding, your Honor.

THE COURT: Qverruled.

A. (By the Witness) I have more than cne.

a. How many suspects do you have?

A. I can think of two or three possibilities.
Q. And had these people, who are currently

suspects of the Hollywood Police Department, have
they been suspects prior to your being assigned to
the case?

A. One has and one hasn’t.

Q. And at what point and time -- you said two
or three, do you have two suspects or do you have

three or can you tell?

A. Two for sure possibilities.

Q. - All rignt: T S
A. Maybe one more.

g. The one person who was a suspect before

you came on the case, how long has that person been

& suspect?

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382

001831



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

28

A, I can say about twelve years.

Q. And the one person -- the one additional
person who is now a suspect, how long has that
person been a suspect? z

A. Abcout six months.

Q. And are there specific steps that you are
taking to investigate that suspect?

A. Yes. |

0. And can you describe to us 1n a general
manner what it is that you‘re doing to conduct the
investigation?

A, Generally I would be looking for someone
that he knew and associated with back a few years,
approach that person.

Q. And in the six months that this person has

been a suspect, have you made efforts to find that

person?
A, I know where he is.
Q. And since you know where he is, have you

gone cut and interviewed this person?

A. Not j;t:'

Q. Is there some reascn that you haven’'t done
that in the six months that this person has been a
suspect?

A. Well, a lot has to do with my current case
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load. At the present time I'm in another trial
right now. It just happens.

Q. And do you have a time when you expect to
be able to conduct that interview? _ -

A, Hard to be specific on a time. I do plan

on doing it in the near future.

G. Would that be in the next week or month?
L, Hopefully.
Q. And once you have conducted that

interview, will that be sufficient to conclude your
investigation?
A. Not at all.

Q. Why is that?

A. Well, I don’'t know where that interview is
going to lead me. I hope it leads me elsewhere.
Q. In the course of conducting your

investigation, how many leads, approximately, have
vou followed up on would you say?

A. That‘s hard to answer. Iril guess‘about a
dozen.

Q. ail right; And none of those have led to
an arrest or prosecution, have they?

A. Not yet.

Q. And in the previous fourteen years of the

investigation, can you tell us approximately how
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many leads the police department has followed up on?

A, Hundreds if not thousands.

Q. And the department thoroughly investigated
each and everyone of those leads, did it not?:

A, I don’'t believe so. Not thoroughly. They
probably did as well as they could. Maybe if I look
at a few of them I’11l find out that, yes, they were
in fact looked at thoroughly.

Q. In reviewing the file you found that the
most probable leads have all been thoroughly
investigated, haven’t you?

A. I would have to say it was an exhausted
investigation on most if not all the leads.

0. The family members, friends, the usual
moét likely suspects have all been thoroughly
investigated, have they not?

A, Yes.

Q. And the department has not arrested or
prosecuted any of those people, have they?

A. That'’s correct.

Q. L'And so-what we’re talking about is‘fiﬁding>" 
a suspect who is an unusual suspect that you
wouldn’t ordinary suspect, isn’t that true?

MR. CANTOR: Objection, your Honor.

Again, I‘'m not sure where that is going.
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THE COURT: Sustained.
Q. (By Mr. Julin) Detective, there has been
no warrants issued for an arrest, has there?
A, Not to my knowledge. :
Q. And there is currently no Grand Jury that
is investigating this matter, is there?
A, That’s correct.
Q. And have you done anything to turn over
the investigation to the State’s Attorney’s Office?
A. I have been in contact with the State
Attorney’s QOffice as far back as six months ago,
maybe a little bit longer, about this case. As far
as turning it over to them, no

Q. Do you have any plans to turn over the
results of your investigation to the State
Attorney’s Office in the foreseeable future?

A, I would love to.

Q. The question is, do you have any plans to
do that in the foreseeable future?

A. My plans right now are not definitive
exactly where Q;’fé going to goéwffh this caée.i

Q. And, therefore,; you dc not have any plans
to turn over the results of the investigation to the
State Attorney’'s Office in the foreseeable future,

do wyou?
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A, When you say plan, no, I don’t have a plan
to do that. But, hopefully, yes, we do.

Q. betective, have you found in other
investigations that media coverage sometimes helps
the police to solve the crime?

A. Yes.

Q. And is it possible that i1f you turned over
this investigation, you copened this investigatioﬁ
up, that in fact the additional publicity that would

result would result in solving this crime?

A. I think it would hurt more than help.
g. But you don‘t know that?

A, No.

Q. And why do vou think that it would hurt

more than help in this case?
A. I think the fact is, as I have explained
toc Mr. Cantor here, is that the fact this case would
be -- if the press gets involved in this case I
think in this particular case it would hurt because
I don’t know -- I don‘t know what affect it would
have on aﬁyone ;hOVOriginally wanted to come g
forward, that anyone I had planned on seeing in the
near future would like the fact that it had been

opened up to the press like that. I don’t know.

Q. Is there some aspect of the investigation
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that you’re particularly concerned about keeping
away from the press?

A, No, absclutely not. A homicide case is,
due to its very nature, considered confidential to
the press. It has been like that as long as I have
known.

0. A1l right. Then, Detective, from your
testimony I understand that you do not know ﬁhen you
will complete your investigation, is that correct?

A. That’s right.

Q. You don't have any time table as far as

how long you will be assigned to this case, do you?

A, How long I will be assigned to the case?
Q. Yes.

A. No. That will be up to my superiors.

Q. Has the chief or superiors told you we

want you to work on this for a pericd of a certain

nunber of months?

A, They have not given me a time limit
whatsoever.
Q. - You’réuaésigned to this ‘case .on an o

indefinite basis, is that correct?
A, I would assume sSO. i
Q. Are there any other members of the City of

Hollywood Police Department that are assigned to
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this case with you?

A. Yes, there will be. Ancother detective
will be accompanying me very s$o00n.

0. Will be accompanying you very soon to
conduct the interview of the witness that you are

talking about?

A, o conduct a few interviews with the
witness.
Q. And when will that be happening?

MR. CANTOR: Objection, your Honor.
Again, getting into now the very specifics
of what they will be doing.
THE COURT: No, he can answer when.
If you know when, you can answer that.
A. (By the Witness) I have it planned withiﬁ
the next few weeks.
Q. Thank you, your Honor. No further
guestions.
MR. CANTOR: I have no further
redirect.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you
very much for coming, sirz.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
MR. CANTOR: Just one last witness,

vour Honor. That would be Mike
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Christianson as the representative of the

Adam Walsh Foundation. Probably just

answer two or three questions and that it

will be it. Mike Christianson. :
THEREUPON :

MICHAEL CHRISTIANSON

a witness herein, being of lawful age and being first

duly sworn by the Court testified on his ocath as
follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CANTOR:
MR, CANTOR: With permission of the
court.

Q. (My Mr. Cantor) Mike, you‘re friends of
John Walsh, are vou not?

A. I am.

Q. We met a couple weeks ago in reference to
the series of newspaper articles that have been
issued through the reporter, Jay Grelen, in
reference to this matter, correct?

A.  We did: " )

Q. Okay. Did we discuss what impact
disclosure of this file would have on the
investigation?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And what was that?

A. Negative.

Q. Ckay. Mike, the series of articles that
have been published -- first of all, to your -

knowledge and through your discussions with John
Walsh, what is the purpose of this public records
disclosure for Mr. Grelen?

A. As far as we're concerned it is to sell
more newspapers. It has nothing to do with the
integrity of the investigation and it has nothing to
do with finding Adam’s killer.

0. Has there been insinuations in these
articles suggesting that John Walsh is still somehow
the suspect in this crime because of his social
connections? |

A, Yes.

Q. Have you spoken to John Walsh and is John
Walsh very disturbed about those defamatory
comments?

MR; JULIN: Objection, hearsay.
THE COURT: Sustained.
MR. CANTOR: I have no further
questions. Tenure the witness.
CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. JULIN:
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Q. Mr. Christianson, your testimony was that
the disclosure of the investigation would be
negative as far as you were concerned, the impact on
the investigation, is that correct? -

A, Yes.

Q. What is the basis of your testimony?

A. What we’'re told by the Hollywood police.

Q. What have you been told by the H&llywood
police?

A. That it would have a negative impact on
the investigation.

Q. Did they explain to you why it would have
a negative impact on the investigation?

A. Part of it has to do with the integrity of
the reporter and the integrity of the newspaper in
which it is being reported.

I mean, we're locking at a series of
articles here that publish a photograph of John
Walsh’s house. I mean, here is a man who has been
instrumental in the capture of 370 of the nation’s
deadliest criminals and this reporter and this A
newspaper publish a photograph of his house which is
secured twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week

for obvious reasons.

The house in which resides a family who
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have already had one child abducted and murdered. A
man who is responsible for putting many bad actors
in jail. This reporter and this newspaper publish a
photograph of his house in the geographic area in
which the house is located.

This reporter and this newspaper also
infer where the other children are going to school.
Now, this is not, to our way of thinking,
responsible journalism.

Q. S8ir, Mr. Walsh is a member of the media,

is he not?

A, In what respect? He is a television
personality.
Q. John Walsh is on television and his job in

television is to publicize unsolived crimes, is it
nct?

A. Yes.

Q. And Mr. Walsh is wvery proud of the fact
that through publishing information about unsolved

crimes that he has been able to solve many crimes,

i - - o

is that not.true? -

A, Yes. And so he knows ~-
Q. Thank wyou.
A. -~ when media exposure would be helpful

and when it would not be.
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Q. I have no further guestions.
MR. CANTOR: Just one redirect, your
Honor.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION =
BY MR. CANTOR: |
Q. Mike, do vou have any knowledge as to
whether Mr. Grelen requires the information from the
Walsh file in order to complete his bocock or novel?
A, That’s what I understand. I understand
that he has a book in the works. I understand that
the conclusions that he is going to draw in his book
have already been determined before he has had
access to this file. Further causes us to guestion
the integrity of his work.
MR. JULIN: I move to strike the
testimony about Mr. Grelen is working on,
what he believes is happening in the
future.
THE COURT: Well, you can inguire in
cross. I decline to strike it.
~ MR. CANTOR: No further Questions.
MR. JULIN: No further questions.
THE COURT: All right. Thank vou
very much. All right. What says the

department?
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MR. CANTOR: C(Clearly, your

felt the affidavit --

Honor, I

THE COURT: Any other witnesses?

MR. CANTOR: ©No.

IR

THE COURT: Any further evidence

involved?

MR. CANTOR: I‘m sorry, your Honor?

THE COURT: Do you have any other

evidence?
MR. CANTOR: No.

THE COURT: Do you rest?

MR. CANTOR: That’s correct.

MR. JULIN: Defendant calls Jay

Grelen. Plaintiff, I'm sorry, calls Jay

Grelen.

THE COURT: Come on up here and be

sworn in. I‘'1l allow both sides to make

motions at the close of all the
THEREUPOHN:
JAY GRELEN
a witnésé*hereiﬁf*ﬁéing of lawful age
duly sworn by the court, testified omn
follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. JULIN:

evidence.

and being first:

his oath as
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Q. Jay, would you state your name for the
record.

A. Jay Grelen.

Q. And by whom are you employed? =

A. Mobile Press Register in Alabama.

Q. All right. Have you been -- did you do an

investigation of the Adam Walsh murder investigation

that was conducted by the City of Hollywood Police

Department?
A, Yes .
Q. All right. Over what course of time did

you work on that investigation?

A, I made the first trip down here last
November and then started full time on it in
January. And the stories were published in eariy
May.

Q. During the course of that investigation,
did yvou have an occasion to interview Chief Witt?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And did you ask the chief about the status
of the iﬁvestigéti@n at the time that you coﬁduéted
that investigation?

A. Yes. /

Q. What did the chief tell you about the

status of the investigation?
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A, The chief -- at that point the chief said
that he had pulled in Detective Smith to do -- he
explained the concept of a cold case squad to me and
said -- explained the value of that. And he said
that cold cases are generally cases that have been
lying dormant for awhile and he is bringing in a new
detective to take a fresh look, reinterview people,
pretty much like Detective Smith explained.

Q. Did Chief Witt tell yvou that Detective
Smith was brought in because this has been a dormant
case, cold case, and that’s his specialty?

A, Maybe not specifically like that. He was
very high in the praise of Detective Smith’s ability
as an investigator and indicated that he had been
successful in other cold cases;

Q. Did the chief tell you that this was a
cold case as far as he was concerned?

A, Yes. That was the implication of what he
said. )

Q. Did the chief tell you that this case had
been dormﬁnt fo;.aJPericd of time before Detective
Smith had been assigned to it?

A, He didn’'t use dormant specifically to this
case but he said that that’s when you bring in the

cold case squad is when a case has been lying
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dormant.
Q. Did you ask Chief Witt whether an arrest

was eminent in this case?

A, Yes, I did. =
0. What did he tell you?
A. He said that that would be strictly

speculation at this point.

Q. Did you have an opportunity to talk to
other members of the Hollywood Police Department?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And did any of them tell you that an
arrest was foreseeable in the future?

A. No. Generally the response was no
comments about the case.

MR.'JULIN: Now, your Honor, I would
like simply to offer into evidence, have
the witness identify 4if necessary, the
correspondence that was attached to the
complaint. This would be Plaintiff’'s
Exhibité 1 through 4.

‘ THE COURT: Is that only for the
purpose of laying a predicate for the
statute?

MR. JULIN: Yes, it is, your Honor.

THE COQURT: 1°11 accept that. - Is
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there any objection?

MR. CANTOR: I have no objection,
your Honor. Both one by Norris and one by
myself. =

MR. JULIN: For the record Exhibit 1
is the January 31 reguest from Mr. Grelen.
Exhibit 2 is the February 2nd response
from Stebhanie Norris of the City of
Hollywood Police Department. Exhibit 3 is
the request that was made on behalf of Jay
Grelen to the police department again and
then Exhibit 4 is a February 15th response
from the city.

MR. CANTOR: ©No objection.

THE COURT: All right. I’11
recognize all the documents that are
already in the file. .

MR. JULIN: &And I just like to focus
on one aspect of Exhibit 4, if I may

apprcach the witness.

Q. --(By Mr.-Julin) Jay, can You read the last

paragiaph of that. This is the letter from the City

of Hollywood Police Department from Mr. Cantor.
fact, responding to the request for the document,

can you read the last paragraph for the court?

In:
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A, You have also inguired about when we
expect in good faith to secure an arrest for the
murder of Adam Walsh. We must respectfully decline
to make any such projection. Such a forecast:would
not serve any public interest at this time.

MR. JULIN: ©No further questions to
this witness, your Honox.
MR. CANTOR: Your Honor, Jjust a few
questions.
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. CANTOR:

Q. Mr. Grelen, when vou met with Chief Witt
did you get the impression -- first of all, during
this meeting vou were down hére on vacation?

A, Absclutely not.

Q. You just walked into the police department
and asked if you could speak to him?

A No. I was down here to pursue a newspaper
project. I called the chief’'s office shortlf after
I arrived in town, explained to the receptionist,
who answered th;-phone, who I w;s,ﬂhhy.l was here,
and ask if I will be able to see the chief.

And much to my surprise she said, well,
can you be here at ten. I called sometime around

nine in the morning. And so, of course, I was there
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at ten, so there was absclutely no --

Q. Mr. Grelen, did you inform the chief that
this was sort of a public interest inguiry as
opposed to venturing or trying to just get z
disclosure of information in order to complete your
book?

A, I'm not sure of where this talk of a book
comes from. I work for the newspaper. There is no
book in the works.

0. You never mentioned to Chief Witt that you
had to complete your book?

A, Absoclutely not. I‘'m not writing a book.

0. Did you tell him, though, this is a public
interest ingquiry as opposed to you wanted to report
information for the Mobile Préss Register?

A. No. I represented myself as a reporter
for the Mobile Press Register and that’s the only
way I represented myself to anybody throughout this
project.

Q. So while on vacation, is it safe to say

you didn‘t walk im just as a public interest

inguiry =--
A, Sir, I have not been on vacation for more’
than a year. Ever since last September I have not

been on wvacation.
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Q. And you never told Chief Witt you were on
vacation?

A. Absolutely not.

Q. About the interview itself, you mentioned
during direct examination about the chief telling
you indirectly that the Walsh file was somehow
dormant, correct, before it got assigned to
Detective 8Smith?

A, When I asked about the case in the process
ﬁf explaining what a cold case squad is he said that
a cold case squad comes into cases that are
considered dormant.

Q. Okay. Mr. Grelen, did he menticn to you
that one of our investigators just three years ago,
prior to Deteétive Smith being assignéd to the case;

went up to interview Jeffrey Dahmer on this case?

A, Yes.
Q. Okay. Three years ago?
A, I don’'t remember the time frame but‘he

mentioned that interview had taken place.
0. "Okay.%-Uid he say thaé was prior to
Detective Smith jumping on the case?
A, it was clear that that was the case.
Q. Okay. If a detective was going up to

investigate and discuss with Jeffrey Dahmer about

|
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his potential involvement with the Adam Walsh
disappearance three years ago or two and a half
years ago, would that lead you to believe that this
case was dormant prior to Detective Smith taking
this case ten months ago?

A, My understanding was that they made the
trip based on a tip that came to them not on a tip
that they turned up because of the investigation.
It was a tip that was phoned in which they followed.

Q. Who was that detective that went up to
meet with Jeffrey Dahmer?

A. Jack Hoffman.

Q. Okay. Did he tell you about somé other
detectives and some other perscnnel that may have
been involved in the review of this case over the
past few years? ©Not six months, ten months, but a
few years?

A. I don't remember discussing with any
specific detective, no.

MR. CANTOR: I have no further

o e

questionsi-'”
MR. JULIN: I have no redirect, your
Honor,
THE CQOURT: All right. Have a seat

back here at the table, please. Do you
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have any other witnesses or other
evidence?

MR. JULIN: Your Honor, the plaintiftf
rests. :

MR. CANTOR: Your Honor, since it is
my burden, if I might go forward just for
a minute in closing.

Normally, your Honor, I supply the
court with a memorandum of law discussing
this topic briefly and discussing these
three cases, which appear to affect this
particular decision as much as any other
cases in the State of Florida.

I want to spend a little bit of time
just going over the motion for order
requiring productions of public record
that has been submitted by the plaintiff.

What they do is suggest that we
should take a loock at three individual
cases, your Honor -- excuse me, four
in&ividué&-céses. Out of those fdur
individual cases three of them protect
against disclosure.

So even walking in here today, into

this courtroom, your Honor, I thought it

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., {305) 763-1382

001853




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
18
20
21
22
23
24

25

50

was a little unusual that the plaintiff
spends time discounted three out of the
four cases they cite to because it
protects disclosure and because I -
mentioned it in my memorandum of law.

mhe fourth case is Bloodworth, which
I have a copy of, your Honor. And the
only reason Bloodworth has no relevance
here, your Honor, is because our state
attorney up in Palm Beach released
information to defense counsel and to the
defense and then thereafter could not
protect the file because it had already
been disclosed.

Well, that hasn‘t happened, your
Honor. Even though this case will be
fourteen years old as of next month, this
case has certainly never been disclosed.

Just for a second, Judge, going
through this motion. Just through a
doﬁple of{juét brief remarks. on page
four plaintiff says the murder in gquestion
occurred almost fourteen years ago and
that reguested records could not be

regarded as active at this time.

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382

001854




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
i8
18
20
21
22
23
24

25

51

Your Honor, I would suggest the
plaintiff may make an interpretation of
what active is all about. But active has
been determined and has been defined not
just by the Fourth DCA but by this court
in Barfield and has also been decided by
the Second District with the Lee County
decision with McDougall.

Active is related to an ongoing
investigation which continuing with a
reasonable good faith participation in
securing an arrest or prosecution in the
foreseeable future. Must an arrest or
prosecution occur? Absolutely not, your
Honor. Must that be testified to and must
detectives get up here and suggest that aﬁ
arrest or prosecution must occur?
Absolutely not,; your Honor.

In the Barfield case on the second

page so correctly interpreted active means

-

so long as- an investigation 'is prOCeeding‘
in good faith and the state attorney or
Grand Jury will reach determination in the
foreseeable future requested inforﬁation

is not subiject to disclosure. It is only
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necessary that an arrest or prosecution
may result. Not that it must.

Now, just to go on just a littlie bit,
your Honox. On page six, even if we're:
going to suggest, and that hasn’t even
been suggested here, but take the
plaintiff’s side, give them the benefit of
the doubt that the case has been sitting
dormant hypothetically, even for years.

The McDougall case speaks clearly to
that issue, your Honor. A four year old
case where the Lee County Sheriff
specifically said it was an inactive
investigation. But in 1992 it is
reactivated because the homicide suspéct
is also a suspect in a sexual battery
crime. It is now reactivated.

And the only thing that the court was
looking at was on page four, which is,
your Hoﬁor -- excuse me. The custodians
oniy propér'ﬁoncern is whether the file is
active now. And that’s what the court
made as a proper determination. Since it
is active now, it is protected from

disclosure. Soc the McDougall case
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certainly speaks to that even if
hypothetically you're going to accept
plaintiff’s arguments.

Plaintiffs suggest on page eight, the
investigation now appears to be limited to
responding to information sent to it on an
infrequent basis, that the department
ceased actively investigating the incident
issue a long time ago.

I‘m not sure where they’'re getting
this information, your Honor. Detective
Smith testified today that he has been as
actively investigating this case as any
other case among his case lecad and even
prior to that. 7

I just brought up, for example,
because the chief already disclosed that
one piece of information to Jay Grelen and
Jay Grelen repcrted it in his newspapef,
the fact that an investigatof went up and

spoke to Jeffrey Dahmer. Two and a half,
three vears ago, your Honor. Well before
Mark Smith was assigned to this case.

So I’'m not sure where he is getting

this information that this case ceased to
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be actively investigated and it is not
even being investigated now. 1In fact, the
defendant himself has stated -- exXcuse me,
the plaintiff in fact stated in his own:
article that it is currently being
investigated.

Again, McbDougall, plaintiffs speaks
on page nine that here hypothetically if
the investigation has been concluded and
later may be closed to the public once the
investigation is reopened such an
interpretation of the statute would make
no sense. |

McDougall made an interpretation of
the stétute that clearly says that even if
the case lay dormant it can be reopened
and reinvestigated. Again,
hypothetically, your Honor, because we're
not suggesting that this case has ever
laid doimant, ever laid dormant.

| Must we show that a érdéécution or an
arrest might result? Absolutely not, your
Honor. Barfield, so coxrect with its

interpretation, yecur Honor, said that an

arrest or prosecution as long as you can
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testify that it may come about in the
foreseeable future. And I believe that is
exactly what the detective testified to.

One last thing, your Honor, before:rI
just get into the three cases, one last
time is Barfield, Bloodworth, even the Lee
County case, not so much the Lee County
case, 1'm sQrry. Barfield, Blcodworth,
and the News Press Case versus Dempsey all
speak to cases which have no statute of
limitations restricting the investigation
of the case.

Clearly if we were looking at an
aggravated battery an aggravated assault,
maybe even a sexual battery, your Honor,
as long as it is not capital sexual
battery, there is a statute of limitations
where if the case goes on too long, you
can‘t find a prosecution, you can’'t reach
accumulation with an arrest because we
have statuté of limitations restrictions.

There is no statute of limitations
here with a homicide. And clearly the
detectives in the Hollywood Police

Department they implore for the leeway to
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continue investigating this case and
following up the leads that they feel will
bring this case to fruition by either an
arrest, Grand Jury indictment, -
prosecution.

Active has been defined by both
Barfield and News Press. Barfield has
suggested that as long as the police
agency is acting in good faith, regardless
of whether for sure an arrest or
prosecution may occur.

In the Florida Freedom Newspaper case
versus Dempsey specifically says there is
no fixed time limit fcr naming suspects or
making arrests other than the applicable
statute of limitations.

Clearly, both of these two cases on
appeal suggest and affirmed on appeal,
suggested that if there is a statute of

limitation, that réstricts the amcunt of

o - -

time that case can remain active. This
case is a homicide case.

The Barfield case, that is so
correctly interpreted by the Appellate

Ccurt, this decision indicates the police
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so long as they're acting in good faith
shall be given substantial leeway in
conducting an ongoing investigation even
where there may be no immediate prospect
of an arrest or prosecution.

Dempsey stands for the proposition
that it is unnecessary to show an actual
suspect will be arrested or prosecuted in
order to prove an investigation is still
active.

Again in Barfield, we do not believe
the legislation intended that
confidentiality be limited to
investigations where the ocutcome and
arrest or prosecution was a certainty or
even a probability.

Your Honor, there is no contention
here that detectives from the Hollywood
Police Department unduly delayed this
investigation, stalled this investigation.
I donit thimk there is<an§ cbhtenfion.éf )
bad faith.

Clearly active has been met here,
your Honor, with both these cases and also

followed up with McDougall which, your
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Honor, I believe is just right on point
except for the fact that this case has
never been dormant.

Your Honor, to disclose this file at
this point would not just impede the
investigation of Detective Mark Smith, but
would also, from all probability, keep
Detective Smith from following up the
leads that he needs to to try to bring
this case to fruitiom.

Your Honor, with that in mind, I
would implore this court to deny the
request for -- request for disclosure of
the Adam Walsh file.

THE CQURT: Well, how do you meet
their allegation based upon testimony that
this case, and the circumstances
surrounding it, including the
non-participation of the Walsh family, has
been prbbably the most widely publicized

-

caée in the mame of crime in the United
States.

MR. CANTOR: &And I think that speaks
for the integrity of the Hollywood Police

Department by not disclosing the

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382

001862




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

i8

18

20

21

22

23

24

25

59

information so as not to impede on the
investigation.

In fact, your Honor, when I met with
John Walsh two weeks agao, John =-- z
Mr. Walsh, I only met him one time. He
spoke very specifically, your Honor ==go
ahead, I‘m sorry.

THE COURT: Well, is his testimony --

MR. CANTOR: I'm sorry?

THE COURT: His testimony is not in
evidence. I'm talking about what has been
testified to.

MR. CANTOR: That’s correct.

THE COURT: I forget the name of the
program, the one he is on ocften on T.V.‘

MR. CANTCR: Americas Most Wanted.

THE CQURT: Yeah. And the Adam Walsh
Foundation, you know, what news is there
to reveal? )

MR. CANTOR: What?

THE COURT: What news is there to
reveal from the file? What is the purpose
and intent of keeping it a secret? I
mean, the statute has a purpose and intent

that is =~
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MR. CANTOR: I would agree.

THE COURT: -=- a very valid purpose.
What ==~

MR. CANTOR: I believe by revealing
the contents from the file now, and, your
Honor, this is the sort thing I would
prefer to reserve for in camera.

I believe Detective Smith would nct
be able to properly interview the last
remaining witnesses that he wishes to now,
and that he plans te do it,; as he
suggested, over the next two to three
weeks.

THE COURT: All right. What says the
plaintiff?

MR. JULIN: Your Honer, with respect
to that specific point let me just pick up
on that. If the problem that the police
department has is it needs to conduct an
interview in the next two to three weeks,

I think your Honor can properly fashion to
allow that interview be conducted prior to
the release of the records. '

Once the interview has been

conducted, I think if it were not

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPCORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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somethihg that came cut of that that would
require further confidentiality, then at
that point the records could be released.
If that’s the problemn. :

I don‘t think that there has been a
sufficient evidentiary basis established
by the defendant in this case to show that
that particular interview gives them a
reason to believe that they're likely to
make an arrest in the foreseeable future.

Your Honor, this is a copy of the
statute itself with the particular
exemption highlighted at the bottom of the
page. It has the particular language. It
says aétually in the statute this is not
an interpretation of the cases.

There simply must be an ongoing
investigation which is continuing within a
reasonable good faith anticipation of

securing an arrest or prosecution in the

5 - - -

-

foreseeable -future.
In the case of an unsolved murder

obviously have conflicting interest here.

There is a strong public interest in

knowing why this investigation has not

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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resulted in an arrest in over fourteen
vears. There is & continuing interest in
the police department in solving the case.

But, your Honor, in resclving those
conflicting interests vou must look at the
evidence that has been presented on this
particular point. What is a good faith
belief? What is the basis for belief
there is going tc be an arrest in the
foreseeable future?

Not just two years or three years or
five years down the road something might
happen, something might break, but there
must be something definite and concrete
about it.

Foreseeable is a term which is
defined under Florida: law. There are a
couple of cases in the negligence area
that talk about foreseeability as beind
not simply a possibility that something
wiil occu;frﬁ-the futuie,ibdf'a'
probability.

I would cite, vour Honor, the Florida
Power and Light versus Lively case, 465

Scuthern Second 1270, and Firestone Tire

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., {305) 763-1382
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and Rubber versus Lippincott, which is at
383 Southern Second 1181. Those cases
talk about the concept of foresesability.

Again, not in the ccntext of the :
public records law, but just in general
Florida law terms dealing with a
negligence concept. And this term
foreseeability as used in the Firestone
case talks about a foreseeable consequence
as one which a prudent man would
anticipate as likely to result.

It says that the consequence that a
prudent man would anticipate as likely to
result from an act are those conseguences
that happen so frequently that they may be
expected to happen again and are therefore
probable consequences. I think that those
definitional terms can be applied in this
context.

What we have is a police department
which. justifiably and rightfully .so is
hoping-that they will solve this crime.
And as we have said in our papexs, we
appiaud the Hollywood Police Department

for assigning Detective Smith to this case

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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and trying to get it solved after all this
time.

But the facts are that the
investigation was thoroughly conducted,:
that most obvious leads were followed up
upon, even the non-obvious leads were
followed up upon over the course of a
fourteen year investigatiocn, and then,
according to Chief Witt himself, the case

became dormant and Detective Smith was

brought into this because of his specialty

in dealing with cold cases.

Again there is nothing wrong with
that. We think it is perfectly
appropriate. But at this point where
there has been s¢ much passage of time, -
this is the kind of case which the public
should have full access to to see what
happened in this.

The public, the media may be able to

- - .

solve-thié case by drawing more attention
to what happened in the investigation.

There is a strong, strong public interest
in allowing that possibility to happen at

this time.

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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This is not a case where we have not
allowed the police department a full an
adequate opportunity to conduct the
investigation.

The Barfield case is, I think, the
case to look to, and although it comes to
the conclusion that the records will
remain sealed, that case is very impertant
because it’s -- the Fourth DCA very
recently, in 1994, saying the act -- the
Public Records Act dealing with this
exemption is to be construed liberally in
favor of openness. And all exemptions of
disclosure construed narrowly and limited
to their designated purpocse. Using --

THE COURT: Do vou know who the judge
was on that was?

MR. JULIN: Yes, your Honor, I noted
that very closely. And that is one of the
reasons that I think this is the case that
we should all look to. 1Is the case from A
this court, obviocusly, dealing with the
same exemptions and offered this guidance
that the act is to be liberally construed.

Now, in this particular case the

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., {305) 763-1382

001869




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
15
20
21
22
23
24

25

66

result was that the records remain sealed.
What factual distinctions do we have that
could explain that? Well, in that case
the testimony was that there would be -+
the matter would be submitted to the Grand
Jury within a matter of three weeks.

There is no indications in the case
of how long it was from the particular
crime. There is a police shooting
involved, a dog bite involved in that
case., But my understanding is, and
perhaps your Honor knows better, it was a
relatively short period of time between
the crime itself and the time that the
records were sought. |

In any event, there was a Grand Jury
investigation underway, the records were
to be turned over in a matter of three
weeks. In this case we have no Grand Jhry
investigation, we have no plans even by
the depargméht, according to their own
detective, to turn over the results of the
investigation that they have undertaken.

This is simplv a case where there is

no likelihood of a prosecution or am
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arrest in the foreseeable future. Sure it
might happen, but that'’'s not enoﬁgh=
Particularly where you have a fourteen
vear gap in time. z

The Dempsey case that is referred to
by counsel for the department is another
one where the crime had taken place, the
request was made four and a half months
after the crime tocok place. There the
court concludes that’s not enocugh time for
the investigatioﬁ and allowed it to go on.
It is certainly nothing like fourteen
years.

The News Press case versus Sapp,
another case relied upon, the case where
the Grand jury was to receive the material
from the police within four days of the
hearing that was conducted. And the
McDougall case, of course, is one, and I
héve noﬁ seen this one, but that one was a
crime"thag-tdok place in 1988  and an 7
investigation followed thereafter was
revived. |

There, of course, at most we had

seven years. In this case we have double

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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that amount of time, fourteen years. At
some point -- at some point it is no
longer reasonable to contend that an
investigation is going to result in a -
prosecution.

THE COURT: Well, in the McDougall
case part of it reads by neither of those
cases addresses the precise issue posed
here. Whether an inactive criminail
investigation file which has been
available for public view can be
reactivated so-to exempt from disclosure
in public records act, that’'s why the case
is in court.

MR. JULIN: And I think that is an
important point. I don’'t think that we
have an evidentiary basis to establish
that this case at this point and time,
even if the police department made a
conscious decision let’s take another look
atrthis c;se; and that’s what™ the evidence
says, that we’'re going to bring someone in
who has a fresh look, he has got to have
something more to go on that gives him a

basis to believe that the arrest is going
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to happen in the foreseeable future.

It is not enough just to assign a
detective to the case and say take a fresh
look at it and go to work on this case.;
There must be something there that gives
the police department a basis to believe
that an arrest or prosecution will be
secured in the foreseeable future.

And none of the evidence that has
been offered by the police department
today shows that there is such a belief.
All the testimony has been we cannot make
a determination.

The testimony that Mr. Grelen gave
the court was that the chief himself said
it would be purely speculation as to
whether an arrest will be made in the
future. Not just the foreseeable future,
but any future. ’

Under those facts the court I think
construes the act liberally consistent
with the mandate of Barfield must rule
that this investigation should be made

available to the public.

MR. CANTOR: Your Honor, just a very
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extremely brief response, if I may.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. CANTOR: Your Honor, some of the
language to me just has to be embraced in
Barfield. Again, we don’t get to one of
the more important issues between these
cases that protect disclosure but we also
need to talik about the statute of
limitations prohibition.

Your Henor, there is no statute of
limitations that restricts a homicide
investigation. But as I get to page 1017
of the Barfield case, just in the last
paragraph of the page, the Appellate Court
so correctly affirmed the decision of -~
thus we interpret the definition of active
to mean that even though there is no
immediate anticipation of an arrest so
long as the investigation is proceedind in
good faith.

. Good faith is just embellished
throughout this case opinion. Another
sentence down, quite differently we
construe the phrase anticipation of an

arrest or presecution toc mean that an
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arrest or prosecution may result, not that
it must.

Two last things, your Honor. In
Florida Freedom versus Dempsey, nc doubt,
this is a guote, no doubt the legislature
fully comprehended the disclosure of the
status of & criminal investigation by
requiring production of particular
information developed during this progress
wounld often impede the development of new
leads, prevent successful conclusion of
the investigation in the arrest of the
offender.

Your Honor, again, as a last remark
out of the Florida Freedom Newspaper, a
law enforcement agency, as I mentioned in
my own memorandum of law, a law
enforcement agency should never be forced
to guess whether or not an incident will

or will not result in an arrest or

prosecution. Barfield suggests the same.

¥lorida Freedom suggests the same.
MecDougall suggests the same.
Your Honor, the only reason why we

don‘t have a case on point discussing
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fourteen years is because there is no
statute of limitation prohibition or
restrictions. There are some with four
vears, with five years, with seven years.

Fourteen years, your Honor? As long
as McDougall suggests that you have an
officer going forth in good faith and
éuggests that he is actively investigating
the case. And he has done that. I heard
his testimony. And I would suggest it is
quite different than plaintiff’s version
of what was heard today.

MR. JULIN: One point. That the
holding of the Barfield case is on page
1017 just quoted from and it is because
the evidence used below demonstrated the
investigations were ongoing and soon to be
presented to the Grand Jury, we hold the
city satisfied its burden of proving its
entitlement to the exemption in guestion.

. There i$ no Grand Jury that .is —
looking at this. There is no plans to
present this to the Grand Jury. This is a

case that simply has been confidential

long enough and public interest now, after
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fourteen years, weighs in favor of
disclosure.

THE COURT: Well, the case is
certainly not about whether or not the
reporter is writing a book or whether or
not he is writing an article tec sell
newspapers. Obviously, the freedom of the
press guarantees him that right.

And certainly the case is not whether
or not Mr. Walsh's picture -~ or picture
of his house has been printed in the
newspaper. Certainly there is laws
relating to liability and invasion of
privacy and other things that protect
that. |

But according to the testimony in the
evidence I received here in court, this
case was a cold case. It’s been reopened
by reassigning it to what probably is best
described as a crack detective who
testified that he has iegitiﬁ&te.leads;

Now, I'm not going to allow a
constant reopening of a cold case to serve i
as a rouse to deny the public the right

to access to materials that should be in
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the public domain. But Detective Smith
does have a legitimate opportunity to

pursue the leads that he is now pursuing
before this file becomes public domain.:

Therefore, the motion to enforce the
public records law as to this
investigative file at this time is denied
without prejudice.

MR. JULIN: Thank you, very much,
your Honor. I think, for the record, we
had the motion to intervene the Palm Beach
Post and Sun Sentinel and I'm not sure we
got a ruling on that.

THE COURT: Can we call that moot?

MR. JULIN:- Your Honor, since you're
denying without prejudice, and I think
that is the appropriate procedure, we may
well be back at some period of time to ask
the matter be revisited and I think those

parties would like to be --

-

THE COURT: Is there any objection to
that, to them intervening?

MR. CANTOR: I don’t have an
ocbjection to them intervening, your Honor,

if they truly are intervening as opposed

ASSOCIATES/CERTIFIED REPORTING, INC., (305) 763-1382
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to bringing local flavor to this case.
THE COURT: Local flavor?
MR. CANTOR: I have no objection,
yecur Honor. I have an order. What I°11l
do is see if there is anything to be

modified and we'll present this order to

the court this afternoon. Thank you, your

Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Again, in a
very non condescending way, I appreciate
the way in which this matter was
presented. Compliments on both sides.
This hearing is adjourned.

{Whereupon, the hearing was

concluded at 2:55 p.m.)
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STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF BROWARD

I JERI CORONZA, Professional Reporter, certify that
I was authorized to and did stenographically report the
forgoing proceedings and that the transcript is a true

record.

Dated this é%J day of <é%@yng ;, 1995,

JERLT CORONA
thand Reporter

JER! CORONA

MY GOMIMISSION # CC 203404
X EXPIRES: May 23, 1596

"G Bondad Thr Notary Public Underwriters
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CHERI NOLAN
Executive Assistant o John Walsh

5151 Wisconsin Avenve, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20014
Telephonz (202) 895-3092
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February 1, 1996

Mr. Ralph Reys

Chief Deputy States Attorney

Broward County States Attorney’s office
201 S.E. 6th Street, Suite 655

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL
Dear Mr. Reys:

John Walsh has asked me to send te you the enclosed letter
which arrived in today’s mail. Mr. Walsh wanted you to have the
original as soon as possible. Also at the request of Mr. Walsh,
I have enclosed a copy of a tip recelved recently over the
América’s Most Wanted hotline.

Please call me at (202) 895-3092 if you have any questions.

Sincerely, _
Cheryl Nolan

Executive Assistant to
John Walsh

Enclosure
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FUGITIVE

OPERATOR

When and where did you see him?

Why do you believe it's him?

What was he doing? -
.
i.
Where is ke now?
What else can you ell
$ us about the fugitive?
4 : o ™~
May we give your name and telephone number fo law enforcement agents? /{ES
They may wish fo call you back for more information. QN
Nome ouie Kempnes Please characterize the caller __*
: Location J
I Phone 12
:: N | Y.
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
IN AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

THE MOBILE PRESS REGISTER, INC.

and JAY GRELEN, et al., ' CASE NO: 95-06324 CACE
Plaintiffs, . DIVISION: 13

vs.

RICHARD WITT, as Chief of Police of . @g?i

City of Hollywood, Florida ; i ,,gg&‘%}g kﬁﬁﬁé@&
Defendant, ; ' "agu 2R

Emergency Mation To Intervene and for
Temporary and Permanent Stay of Order Requiring Production of Public Records

Michael J. Satz, State Aubmey, Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, Broward County,
Florida, by and through the undersigned Assistant State Attorney, moves this Court pursuant
. to Rule 1.230 of the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure to intervene in this cause as a party.
defendant and be heard as to the issues herein prior to the implementation of this Court’s Order
Requiring Production of Public Records dated October 24, 1995, and as grounds says:

1. Intervenor Movant is, and at all times material hereto was, the duly elected
State Attorney, Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, Broward County, Florida;

2. Intervenor Movant is charged with the constitutional and statutory duties of
prosecuting all misdemeanor and felony crimes before the courts of this circuit
and acting as legal advisor to the Grand Jury, whenever required, and preparing
bills of indictment; (Fla. Const. Art V. & 17, Ch. 27, FSA)

3. Murder in the first degree is a capital offense and must be charged by

001890



presentment and "i;dictment by grand jury, (Const. Art. I, 115).

The kidnaping of Adam Walsh in Broward County, Florida and the subsequent
homicide of said Adam Walsh could constitute murder in the first degree, a
capital offense, prosecutable in Broward County, Florida,

Intervenor Movant should have been joined in this cause as an indispensable
party and given an opportunity to be heard concerning the issues herein.

On or about January 26, 1996, the Intervenor Movant was delivered the
Hollywood Police Department investigatory file concerning the kidnaping and
homicide of Adam Walsh which occurred on or about July 27, 1981, for
purposes of review and to provide assistance to said police department in the
investigation,

Intervenor Movant and/or his assistants had previously assisted in this
investigation from time to time in the past but had never completely reviewed
the entire investigative file nor arrived at any prosecution opinion as said
investigation had not been concluded nor is said investigation concluded as of
this date.

A review of said file by Intervenor Movant leads to the conclusion that further
immediate investigative actions need to oceur prior to Intervenor Movant being
responsibly able to render an opinion as to whether an imminent arrest or
prosecution in the foreseeable future is reasonably anticipated.

The release and dissemination of the contents of this investigative file to the

public and/or to the media at this time would be premature and may negatively

- 001891
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affect and prejuciii:e the on-going criminal investigation and any successful
prosecution of any suspect or suspects in the foreseeable future,

10.  Intervenor Movant adopts and herein incorporates by reference the Defendant’s
Answer and Affirmative Defenses to Verified Complaint and Memorandum of
Law, all testimony addressed on behalf of the Defendant and all legal argument

made on behalf of Defendant in this cause.

11.  This Motion To Intervene is made in good faith and not for purposes of delay.

WHEREFORE, Intervenor Movant respectfully requests this Court to enter its
Order permitting Intervention by said Michael J. Satz, State Attoméy and allow hearing on the
issues herein prior to the implementation of said Order Requiring Production of Public Records
and/or enter an Order to stay said Order until this Motion can be heard by the Court and such

other relief as this Court deems proper.

ITHEREBY CERTIFY that a copy of the foregoing was furnished by U.S. Mail/
Hand Delivery this /27 day of February, A.D. 1996, to: Thomas R. Julin, Esquire aad
Edward M. Mullins, Esquire, Counsellors for Plaintiffs at: 200 W. Biscayne Boulevard, 40th
Floor, Miami, Fl1 33131-2395; Joel D. Cantor, Esquire, Counsel for Defendant at: 3250
Hollywood Boulevard, Hollywood, F1 33021 and to: Kathleen Pellegrino, Esquire, Counsel for
Sun-Sentinel Company, at: 200 E. Las OGlas Boulevard, Suite C10, Fort Lauderdale, ¥1 33301

and
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to: Jerold 1. Budney, Esquire, Counsel for The Miami Herald Publishing Company at: One

Herald Plaza, Miami, F1 33132-1693.

MICHAEL J. SATZ
State Attorney

o i 2 L

Ralph J. Kay, Jr.\Cllief As¢’t Stard Atty
Florida Bar #108894

201 Southeast Sixth Street

Fort Lauderdale, 133301

Telephone No: (954) 831-7911
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE

- SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND
FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA '
THE MOBILE PRESS REGISTER, INC,

and JAY GRELEN, et al.,

Case No. 95-06324 CACE

Plaintiff, :

Division 13

V.

RICHARD WITT,as Chief of Police of
City of Hollywood, Florida,

Defendant. E

MEMORANDUM OF I AW IN SUPPORT OF
EMERGENCY MOTION TQ INTERVENE AND FOR
TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT STAY OF ORDER REQUIRING PRODUCTION
OF PUBLIC RECORDS ' '

COMES NOW Movant, Michael J. Satz, as State Attorney of the Seventeenth Judicial
Circuit, Broward County, Florida, by and through undexsigned counsel, and files this
Memorandum of Law in Support of Emergency Motion to Intervene and for Temporafy and
Permanent Stay of Order Requiripg Production of Public Records filed in the above-styled cause

_yesterday, February 12, 1996. In support thereof, Movant states:

1. The State Attorney, as a constitutional and statutory officer, has the responsibility
to investigate and prosecute violations of the criminal laws of this State. Doe v. State, 634
So.2d 613, 615 (Fla. 1994). The State Attorney’s discretion in deciding whether or not to
prosecuté is absoluter, State v. Johns, 651 So. 2d 1227-1228 {Fla. 2d DCA 1995); State v. Cain,
381 So. 2d 1361, 1367 (Fla. 1980).

2. As the release of the Hollywood Police Department’s Adam Walsh investigative
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file, pursuant to this lawsuit, would seriously impede valid investigative leads still being pursued

and the State Attorney’s review of the file for possible prosecution, the State Attorney should

be allowed full participation in this case as an intervenor. Askew v. Green. Simmons, Green

and Hightower, 348 So. 2d 1245, 1247 (Fla. 1st DCA 1977).

3. The State of Florida stands to lose valuable rights to an effective and untainted
potential prosecution if the Hollywood Police Department’s file is made public record and
intervention by the State Attorney should therefore be allowed in the interests of justice. Schiller
y. Schiller, 625 So. 2d 856, 860 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993). Based on the Emergency Motion, this
Court is entitled to conclude that the State Attorney has demonstrated "...sufficient equities or
other special reasons to justify (his) participation in the proceedings". Cole v. Glynn, 397 So.
2d 996, 997 (Fla. 4th DCA 1981).

- 4, The Fourth District Court of Appeal, in affirming this Honorable Court’s denial
of disclosure in a case very similar to that sub judice, stated that “...so long as the investigation
is proceeding in good faith, and the State Attorney or grand jury will reach a determination in

the foreseeable future, the requested information is not subject to disclosure”. ‘Barfield v. City

of Fért Lauderdale Police Department, 639 So. 2d 1012, 1017 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994), emphasis
added. "Put differently, we construe the phrase ‘anticipation of an arrest or prosecution’ to
mean that an arrest or pr.osecution may result, not that it must". Id.

WHEREFORE, Movant, Michael J. Satz, as State Attomey of the Seventeenth Judicial
Circuit, Broward County, Florida, by and through undersigned counsel, files this Memorandum
of Law in Support of Emergency Motion to Intervene and for Temporary and Permanent Stay
of Order Requiring Production of Public Records filed in the above-styled cause yesterday,

February 12, 1996.
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- I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was furnished by

=
b

FAX this 13th day of February, A.D. 1996, to be followed by U.S. Mail Delivery, to: Thomas
R. Julin, Esquire and Edward M. Mullins, Esquire;, Counsellors for Plaintiffs at: 200 W.
Biscayne Boulevard, 40t1i Floor, Miami, Florida 33131-2395; Joel D. Cantor, Esquire, Counsel
for Defendant at: 3250 Hollywood Boulevard, Hollywood, F‘iorida 33021 and to: Kathleen
Pellegrino, Esquire, Counsel for Sun-Sentinel Company, at: 200 E. Las Olas Boulevard, Suite
C10, Fort Lauderdale, F1 33301 and to: Jerold 1. Budney, Esquire, Counsel for The Miami

Herald Publishing Company at: One Herald Plaza, Miami, Florida 33132-1963.

Michael J. Satz
State Attorney

Gty ST &

RALPH J. RAY,JR., / \J
Chief Ass’t State Attorney
Florida Bar #108894

201 Southeast Sixth Street

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301
(954) 831-7911

e f [ n

JAMES P. McLANE

Assistant State Attorney

Florida Bar No. 354521

675 Broward County Courthouse
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301
Telephone: (305) 831-7913
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. IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE

u SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND
FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA ’
THE MOBILE PRESS REGISTER, INC,
and JAY GRELEN, et al.,

Case No. 95-06324 CACE
Plaintiff,
Division 13
v.

RICHARD WITT,as Chief of Police of
City of Hollywood, Florida,

Defendant.

MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT OF
EMERGENCY MOTION TO INTERVENE AND FOR
TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT STAY OF ORDER REQUIRING PRODUCTION
OF PUBLIC RECORDS

COMES NOW Movant, Michael J. Satz, as State Attorney of the Seventeénth Judicial
Circuit, quward County, Florida, by and through undersigned counsel, and files this
Memorandum of Law in Support of Emergency Motion to Intervene and for Temporary ;md
Permanent Stay of Order Requjrk_lg Production of Public Records filed in the above-styled cause
 yesterday, February 12, 1996. In support thereof, Movant states:

1. The State Attorney, as a constitutional and statutory officer, has the responsibility
to investigate and prosecute violations of the criminal laws of this State. Doe v. State, 634
So.2d 613, 615 (Fla. 1994). The State Attorney’s discretion in deciding whether or not to
prosecute is absolute. State v. Johns, 651 So. 2d 1227-1228 (Fla. 2d DCA 1995); State v. Cain,
381 So. 2d 1361, 1367 (Fla. 1980). |

2. As the release of the Hollywood Police Department’s Adam Walsh investigative
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file, pursuant to this Iawsuif, would seriously impede valid investigative leads still being pursued

L3

and the State Attorney’s review of the file for possible prosecution, the State Attorney should

be allowed full participation in this case as an intervenor. Askew v. Green. Simmons, Green

and Hightower, 348 So. 2d 1245, 1247 (Fla. 1st DCA 1977).

3. The State of Florida stands to lose valuable rights to an effective and untainted
potential proSecution if the Hollywood Police Department’s file is made public record and
intervention by the State Attorney should therefore be allowed in the interests of justice. Schiller
v. Schiller, 625 So. 2d 856, 860 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993). Based on the Emergency Motion, this
Court is entitled to conclude that the State Attorney has demonstrated “...sufficient equities or
other special reasons to justify (his) participation in the proceedings". Cole v. Glynn, 397 So.
2d 996, 997 (Fla. 4th DCA 1981).
| | 4, The Fourth Distridt Court of Appeal, in affirming this Honorable Court’s denial
of disclosure in a case very similar to that sub judice, stated that "...so long as the investigation
is proceeding in good faith, and the State Attorney or grand jury will reach a determination in

the foreseeable future, the requested information is not subject to disclosure". Barfield v. City

of Fort Lauderdale Police Department, 639 So. 2d 1012, 1017 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994), emphasis
added. "Put differently, we construe the phrase ’anticipation of an arrest or prosecution’ to
mean that an arrest or prosecution may result, not that it must". Id.

WHEREFORE, Movant, Michael J. Satz, as State Attorney of the Seventeenth Judicial
Circuit, Broward County, Florida, by and through undersigned counsel, files this Memorandum
of Law in Support of Emergency Motion to Intervene and for Temporary and Permanent Stay
of Order Requiring Production of Public Records filed in the above-styled cause yesterday,

February 12, 1996.
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
IN AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

THE MOBILE PRESS REGISTER, INC.

and JAY GRELEN, et al., ' CASE NO: 95-06324 CACE
Plaintiffs, : DIVISION: 13
vs.
RICHARD WITT, as Chief of Police of {;0? o
City of Hollywood, Florida : : ,T\?:\)% 0%\5;&00
. ‘ N et e
Defendant, C % 8 12 o
.................................................................... /

Emergency Motion To Intervene and for
Temporary and Permanent Stay of Order Requiring Production of Public Records

Michael J. Satz, State Attbmey, Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, Broward County,
Florida, by and through the undersigned Assistant State Attorney, moves this Court pursuant
to Rule 1.230 of the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure to intervene in this cause as a party
defendant and be heard as to the issues herein prior to the implementation of this Court’s Order
Re(iuiring Production of Public Records dated October 24, 1995, and as grounds says:

1. Intervenor Movant is, and at all times material hereto was, the duly elected
State Attorney, Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, Broward County, Florida;

2. Intervenor Movant is charged with the constitutional and statutory duties of
prosecuting ali misdemeanor and felony crimes before the courts of this circuit
and acting as legal advisor to the Grand Jury, whenever required, and preparing
bills of indictment; (Fla. Const. Art V. & 17, Ch. 27, FSA)

3. Murder in the first degree is a capital offense and must be charged by
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presentment and i;dictment by grand jury; (Const. Art. I, 115).

The kidnaping of Adam Walsh in Broward County, Florida and the subsequent

homicide of said Adam Walsh could constitute murder in the first degree, a

capital offense, prosecutable in Broward County, Florida,

Intervenor Movant should have been joined in this cause as an indispensable

party and given an opportunity to be heard concerning the issues herein.

On or about January 26, 1996, the Intervenor Movant was delivered the

Hollywood Police Department investigat('ary file concerning the kidnaping and

homicide of Adam Walsh which occurred on or about July 27, 1981, for

purposes of review and to provide assistance to said police department in the

investigation.

Intervenor Movant and/or his assistants had previously assisted in this

investigation from time to time in the past but had never completely reviewed

the entire investigative file nor arrived at any prosecution opinion as said

investigation had not been concluded nor is said investigation concluded as of

this date.

A review of said file by Intervenor Movant leads to the conclusion that further
- immediate investigative actions need to occur prior to Intervenor Movant being

responsibly able to render an opinion as to whether an imminent arrest or

prosecution in the foreseeable future is reasonably anticipated.

The release and dissemination of the contents of this investigative file to the

public and/or to the media at this time would be premature and may negatively
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‘e

affect and prejudi?;e the on-going criminal investigation and any successful
prosecution of any suspect or suspects in the foreseeable future. IV

10.  Intervenor Movant adopts and herein incorporates by reference the Defendant’s
Answer and Affirmative Defenses to Verified Complaint and Memorandum of
Law, all testimony addressed on behalf of the Defendant and all legal argument
made on behalf of Defendant in this cause.

11.  This Motion To Intervene is made in good faith and not for purposes of delay.

WHEREFORE, Intervenor Movant respectfully requests this Court to enter its
Order permutting Intervention by said Michael J, Satz, State Attornéy and allow hearing on the
issues herein prior to the implementation of said Order Requiring Production of Public Records
and/or enter an Order to stay said Order until this Motion can be heard by the Coust and such

other relief as this Court deems proper.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a copy of the foregoing was Mshed by U.S. Mail/
- Hand Delivery this / o?% day of February, AD. 1996, to: Thomas R. Julin, Esquire and
Edward M. Mullins, Esquire, Counsellors for Plaintiffs at: 200 W. Biscayne Boulevard, 40th
Floor, Miami, Fl 33131-2395; Joel D. Cantor, Esquire, Counsel for Defendant at: 3250
Hollywood Boulevard, Hollywood, F133021 and to: Kathleen Pellegrino, Esquire, Counsel for
Sun-Sentinel Company, at: 200 E. Las Olas Boulevard, Suite C10, Fort Lauderdale, F1 33301

and
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"

t0: Jerold 1. Budney, Esquire, Counsel for The Miami Herald Publishing Company at: One

Herald Plaza, Miami, F1 33132-1693.

MICHAEL J. SATZ
State Attorney

o ok L

Ralph J. Kay, Jr.\CHief As¢’t Stare Atty
Florida Bar #108894

201 Southeast Sixth Street

Fort Lauderdale, F1 33301

Telephone No: (954) 831-7911
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE
17TH JUDICIAL COURT OF FLORIDA, IN
AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

Case 95-06324 CACE (13)

THE MOBILE PRESS REGISTER, INC.,
et al.

Plaintiffs,

RICHARD WITT, Chief of Police
of the City of Hollywood, Florida,

)
)
)
)
)
V. )
)
)
)
)
Defendant. )

)

MOTION TO INTERVENE

John and Reve Walsh ("Movants"), by and through counsel, hereby move to
intervene in this matter pursuant to Rules 1.210 and 1.230 of the Florida Rules of Civil
Procedure. As the parents of Adam Walsh, Movants have a right to be heard in this matter
under Article 1, § 16(b) of the Florida Constitution. Movants seek an opportunity to be
heard in this proceeding in order to urge the court to ensure that investigation of their son’s
death is not compromised through disclosure of the investigative file to the media.

Movants are aware of both the current status of the investigation and the consideration cof
the matter by the Broward County State Attorney’s Office and of the fact that there is an

active, ungoing investigation in the Adam Walsh case.
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1. Movants are the next of kin fo the deceased Adam Walsh, who was their son.
See Affidavit of John Walsh attached as Exhibit A (hereinafter "Walsh Affidavit"). The
Walshes have maintained knowledge concerning the status of the investigation into the
murder of their son through contact with the appropriate authorities. Id. at § 6. The
Walshes have also assisted that investigation by providing to the police information that has
been volunteered to them on a regular basis over a period of time.

2. In January of this year, the Walshes learned that after it had initially opposed
the release of the Adam Walsh investigative file pursuant to this lawsuit, the Hollywood
Police Department had agreed, in October 1995, to make this file available in February
1996. The Walshes also learned that the police department through its chief, Richard Witt,
planned to publicly identify the person they believed responsible for the Adam Walsh
homicide at the time the file was to be released. See Walsh Affidavit at § 7. Upon
learning that the police department had not consulted with the Broward County State
Attorney’s Office, the Walshes asked for an opportunity to meet and discuss this
development with that office. Id. at 9. The Broward County State Attorney’s Office, of
course, is jurisdictionally responsible for any prosecution of the Adam Walsh homicide.

See FLA. STAT. ANN. § 27.02 (West 1996).

001904



3. The Movants met with the State Attorney’s Office on January 29, 1996. See
Walsh Affidavit, at § 9. At that meeting, the Walshes learned that many of the facts which
had been developed in the case over the last several months were not known to the State
Attorney’s Office. Moreover, the Walshes also learned that the prosecutor’s office had not
been consulted regarding the decision to release the file or to name a suspect in the case.
Since that meeting, the Walshes also learned that the prosecutor’s office has since requested
and reccived the investigative case file, and is actively involved in pursuit of the
investigation. Id. at § 10. The State Attorney’s Office has told Movants that there are
valid investigative leads being pursued or yet to be pursued, and that at the conclusion of a
thorough investigation, the State Attorney’s Office will consider bringing the matter before

the grand jury for prosecution of the responsible individual or individuals. Id.

ARGUMENT

4. Because the unsealing of the Adam Walsh investigative file could adversely
affect further investigation and/or prosecution, Movants respectfully submit that they have a
substantial interest regarding the unsealing of the file, as well as a constitutional right to be
heard as the parents of Adam Walsh. An interest which would entitle a party to intervene
must be of a direct and immediate character such that the intervenor will either gain or lose

by direct le¢gal operation and effect of a judgment. Castro Convertible Corp. v. Castro, 596
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F.2d 123, 125 (5th Cir. 1979). Although permission to intervene is a matter for the court’s
discretion, the aim of the rules of civil procedure is to allow liberal joinder of parties.

Miracle House Corp. v. Haige, 96 So0.2d 417, 418 (Fla. 1957); National Wildlife Fed’n. Inc.

v. J.T. Glisson, 531 So0.2d 996, 998 (Fla. 1st DCA 1988). The decision to release this file
constitutes a crucial stage in the case and as such the Movants have a right to assert their
objections to the disclosure. The release of the investigative file would have irreparable
consequences on the potential for apprehending the perpetrator in the murder of the
Movants” son. The Movants have a clear interest in preventing this injustice and should be

allowed to intervene in this matter.

- In addition, the release of the investigative file will have important
repercussions on the State Attorney’s ability to initiate proseoﬁtion in the Adam Walsh
homicide. Therefore, the Movants further submit that the Broward County State Attorney’s
Office was, and is, a necessary party in interest in this matter where its lawful,
Jurisdictional responsibilities are clearly implicated by any decision to permit the disclosure

of the file to the news media. See Blue Dolphin Fiberglass Pools of Florida, Inc. v. Swim

Industries Corp., 597 So.2d 808, 809 (Fla. 2d DCA 1992) {"A person whose rights and

interests are to be affected by a decree and whose actions with reference to the subject
matter of litigation are to be controlled by a decree is a necessary party to the action and

the trial court cannot proceed without that person.")
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6. The fact that the plaintiffs chose to name only the Hollywood Police
Department as a defendant in this suit does not determine whether the interests of all parties

necessary to resolve the matter at issue are represented in the case. See In re Adoption of a

Minor Child, 593 So.2d 185, 189 (Fla. 1991) (noting that intervention allows persons not
originally named in a lawsuit to protect their interésts in subject matter). The State
Attorney’s Office has a lawful and well recognized function to determine whether or not to
initiate a prosecution, whether before or after an arrest by a law enforcement official or

agency. See FLA. STAT. ANN. § 27.02 (West 1996); see also State v. Johns, 651 So.2d

1227, 1227-28 (Fla. 2d DCA 1995); State v. Cain, 381 So.2d 1361, 1367 (Fla. 1980) ("the
discretion of a prosecutor in deciding whether and how to prosecute is absolute"). Thus,
resolution of its interests is necessary to the just resolution of the matters put in issue by
plaintiffs’ complaint. In addition, as the next of kin to the victim in this homicide, and
pursuant to Florida’s constitutional and statutory victim’s rights provisions cited above, the
Movants have a right to be heard as to this matter. The Movants support the prosecutor’s
motion to intervene and its position that disclosure of the file is subject to the criminal

investigative information exemption from the disclosure requirements of the Act.

7. It is clear from the language of the statute in question, and the court decisions
interpreting and applying that statute, that the fundamental purpose of the criminal
investigative information exemption from disclosure is to avoid the very situation that has
been created here: that is, a contest between the responsible investigative authorities and

the media over access to investigative information. FLA. STAT. ANN. § 119.07(3}(d) (West
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1996). The exemption authorizes the authorities to withhold investigative information so
long as they are pursuing a case that may result in an arrest or prosecution. The role of the
court when confronted with a criminal information exemption issue is to determine if the
facts support a showing that the authorities’ representations that the case is “active”, as that

statutory term is used and applied, are made in good faith. See Barfield v. The City of Fort

Lauderdale Police Dept., 639 So.2d 1012 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994); Florida Freedom

Newspapers, Inc. v. Dempsey, 478 So. 2d 1128 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985); News-Press

Publishing Co. v. Sapp, 464 So. 2d 1335 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985).

8. The compelling similarity of the circumstances in Barfield to the instant case

is instruetive. In Barfield, the respondent police agency opposed disclosure and asserted

that a criminal investigation was underway and, when that investigation was completed, the

findings would be forwarded to the State Attorney’s Office for review and subsequent

investigation by the grand jury. Barfield, 639 So.2d at 1014. The responsible investigator
for the police agency in Barfield stated that he did not know whether he had a reasonable
good faith anticipation of securing an arrest or prosecution in the investigative matter in
that case. Id. In the instant case, the investigative file has been forwarded to the State
Attorney’s Office, the State Attorney’s Office is actively investigating and giving
consideration to prosecution of the matter, and it believes that disclosure of the file could

compromise its efforts. As in Barfield, the authorities cannot say with certainty that they

anticipate securing an arrest or prosecution of a culpable individual at this time. However,

as the Barfield court makes abundantly clear, the phrase "anticipation of an arrest or
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prosecution” means only that an arrest or prosecution may result, not that it is a certainty.

Id. at 1017. As the Barfield court succinctly stated:

[AJs can be seen from the historical discussion [in that decision], the purpose
of the "active criminal investigative information" exception is to prevent
premature disclosure of information during an ongoing investigation being

conducted in good faith by criminal justice authorities.

Id. at 1017.
It is precisely such a premature disclosure that Movants oppose in this case.
9. As the Barfield court recognized, "we do not believe the Legislature intended

that confidentiality be limited to investigations where the outcome, and an arrest or

prosecution, was a certainty, or even a probability." Barfield, 639 So.2d at 1016-17

(emphasis added). The reason for that construction is, of course, cbvious. The very
purpose of an investigation is to determine if there are sufficient facts of record to support
an arrest and/or a prosecution. A requirement that there be a prospective characterization of
the results of an investigation would be an illegical and unsound basis for the exemption.
Whether or not there is a prime suspect or suspects, or even identifiable suspect is not
determinative of the issue of whether an investigation is "active." See Dempsey, 478 So.2d

at 1131. As the Barfield court stated after reviewing the Dempsey decision:
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This decision indicates the police, so long as they are acting in good faith,
should be given substantial leeway in conducting an ongoing investigation

even where there may be no immediate prospect of an arrest or prosecution.

Barfield, 639 So.2d at 1016.

Thus, the determinative issue in applying the exemption is not whether the police or
prosecutors can state that a suspect will be arrested or prosecuted, but rather whether these
authorities can represent in good faith that thev are continuing to conduct an active

investigation.'

! In Plaintiffs’ motion for an order requiring production of public records in this case,
they assert that they "do not believe that the essential facts of this case are in dispute . . . ."
(Plaintiffs’ Motion, at 2.) Movants dispute the facts as presented by the plaintiffs. For
example, Plaintiffs assert that the investigation "has been dormant for an extended period."
(Id. at 2). If the court were to inguire of the police department and the prosecutfor, it would
learn that far from being dormant, the case has been frenetically pursued during the last
several months, largely in response to the artificial deadline created by the February 16
presumptive release date agreed to by police department officials. Plaintiffs also assert that
"six months of investigation by the cold case squad has not resulted in sufficient evidence to
make an arrest or to commence an investigation." The internal inconsistency of that very
statement, i.e. that an investigation has not resulted in sufficient evidence to commence an
investigation, could certainly give the court significant pause in considering the accuracy of
Plaintiffs’ factual averments.

Unsupported by any citation to authority, Plaintiffs in their motion argue: "Once the
case was so classified [as a cold case], the investigation ceased to be active and the records
became public." This conclusion of law strains credulity even when considered under the
license granted by zealous advocacy.

Finally, Plaintiffs posit in their motion that there is no imminent consideration of this
case by the grand jury, "the State Attorney, or any other law enforcement entity that could
make an arrest or commence a prosecution.” Whatever the merits of that argument, it is
now clear that the factual circumstances are changed and that the case is, in fact, under the
current consideration of the State Attorney.
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10.  Several public policy considerations support the construction and application
of the criminal investigative information exemption to prevent disclosure. The exemption
recognizes that the public interest in the apprehension and conviction of criminals,
especially violent criminals, is a matter of paramount importance to the public. Clearly,
there is not an even balance between this consideration and the media’s statutory right to
review public records. The statute should not be read to permit the media to second guess
the judgment of the police and prosecutors as to whether an investigation, no matter what
its age as long as it is within the statute of limitations, deserves the devotion of resources to
continue to be investigated and/or prosecuted. This factor is especially important in regard
to capital crimes. A fugitive from a capital crime should be offered no quarter because he
or she has successfully evaded capture for a period of time or for some period stymied the
police investigation. While the court need not decide the issue in this case, public policy
considerations do beg the question as to whether any unsolved capital crime should be

construed as inactive for purposes of disclosure.

11.  In addition, public policy should militate against creating artificial deadlines
for the closure of the investigation of a crime. The public, the prosecutorial authorities, and
a putative defendant all have a vested interest in a thorough and complete investigation.
Such an investigation is one that is concluded in a time frame dictated by the needs of the

investigation, not by the demands of a third party arising from a Sunshine Act lawsuit.
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From common experience, we know that an unnecessary rush to judgment can produce

njustice.

12. Finally, public policy considerations as applied to this particular case should
militate against premature disclosure of the invesﬁgative file. The death of Adam Walsh is
one of the most notorious homicides that have occurred in Florida, and indeed, in the
counfry. Public confidence in the criminal justice system, an important societal interest
standing alone, will not be enhanced by any premature investigative disclosure of the file
that may compromise bringing closure to the case through an arrest and/or prosecution. To
the extent that the Plaintiffs assert the need for the file information to fulfill a purported
public interest in making judgments regarding the police investigation, it can easily be
recognized that that judgment will, at some time, be had - based on the results of a
complete investigation. Preserving the integrity of the investigative file at this point only
postpones, but does not defeat, that event. In any case, the public interest in closing the

case with an arrest or prosecution is clearly paramount to such a claim.

13, As the parents of the victim in this case, Mr. and Mrs. Walsh assiduously
seek justice for their son. Other victims of crime similarly situated will look to the
outcome of this matter for comfort that they might find justice in their own cases. The
public and such victims share a compelling interest in the successful closure of the
investigations of the offenses wherein they were victimized. In this case and in these

circumstances, the statute in question does not compel disclosure. Rather, the law

10
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recognizes a legitimate basis for exemption from disclosure. The facts, if fully known to
the court, render this an easy case to decide in favor of maintaining the exemption. The
fact that the Hollywood Police Department, as only one of several parties in interest here,
opted not to contest disclosure should not override the compelling interests of the
prosecutor, the victim, and the public in maintaining the integrity of this investigative file

further.
WHEREFORE, for the reasons stated herein, Movants respectfully request that they
be heard in this matter and that the court enter an ORDER denying access to the file

presently and for such other relief as the court deems necessary and appropriate.

Respectfully submitted,

1627 Eye Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20006

M=

i¢hdel E. Christiansen
Mastriana & Christiansen, PA
2750 North Federal Highway
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33306
(954) 5366-1234
Florida Bar #217794
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THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE
17TH JUDICIAL COURT OF FLORIDA,
IN AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

Case 95-06324 CACE (13)

The Mobile Press Register, Inc., et al.
Plaintiff

V.

Richard Witt, Chief of Police
of the City of Hollywood, Florida

Defendant

AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN WALSH
I-John Walsh, being duly sworn to state as follows:

I am submitting this affidavit on behalf of myself and my spouse, Reve Walsh, in
connection with our motion to iniervene in the captioned case. Our motion seeks to have
the Court’s order releasing the investigative file of the Hollywood Police Department
concerning the investigation of the death of Adam Walsh to the media stayed in the
interests of justice.

Mrs. Walsh and I are the next of kin to the deceased Adam Walsh. Adam Walsh was
our son. Adam was kidpapped in the Hollywood, Florida in 1981 and subsequently
killed. As the next of kin I have endeavored to remain apprised and aware of the

“progress of the investigation and any potential prosecution of any individual responsible
for my son’s death.

Up to this time, I have not spoken publicly in any detail concerning the position of Mrs.
Walsh and me regarding the handling of the investigation of Adam’s death, the details
arising from that investigation as knmown to us or to the issue of whether the file
containing the results of the investigation should be released to the plaintiff newspapers.

We have remained silent despite some newspaper articles containing slanderous innuendo
which invade our privacy and maliciously attack our personal character.

Our privacy interests are important to us for reasons of personal security and the heaith
and well-being of ourselves and our children. Mrs. Walsh and I have been married for

24 years and have had three children subsequent to Adam’s death. I have chosen to
dedicate both my professional and personal endeavors to aiding lawful authorities in

At
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finding and apprehending dangerous fugitives and to aiding victims and potential victims
of violent crime. The high degree of visibility I have had in this work has resulted in
numerous and, according to the appropriate authorities, credible death threats against me,
my wife and my children. This has necessitated that I take appropriate security
precautions for both myself and my family. One of the plaintiff newspapers in this case
invaded our privacy and jeopardized our security by publishing both photographic and
written information concerning our home and the physical security of our property.

Approximately two years ago we were informed that the investigation into our son’s
death was being assigned to a new detective at the Hollywood Police Department who
was going to review the entire case file and reinvigorate the investigative effort. Since
that time we have been provided with information by the police department which
includes new information from existing witnesses, new information from new witnesses,
further information about existing suspects and new information about new suspects.
Because we seek to preserve the integrity of the investigative information so as not to
jeopardize further investigation and/or prosecution, we will refrain from disclosing in any
detail the information that has been provided to us by the police.

I requested and had a meeting with the Hollywood Police Department on January 16,
1996. At that meeting, Hollywood Police Chief Richard Witt, the defendant in this
action, informed us that his department had agreed in October of 1995 to settle this
Sunshine Act lawsuit by releasing the investigative file on February 16, 1996. At the
January 16 meeting, the police chief told us he intended fo release the file and at the
same time to publicly iderntify the person he believed responsible for Adam’s murder.
Counsel with me at that meeting thereupon asked the Chief of Police if he had consulted
with the responsible prosecutor regarding the release of the file and the public
identification of a suspect. Chief Witt said he had not.

At that same Jamuary 16 meeting we were provided by the detective responsible for the
case a summary of his recent investigative activity and an outline of many significant
investigative leads to be pursued.

Following that meeting I requested and received an opportunity to meet with Broward
County States Attorney Michael Satz, and Chief Deputy States Attorney Ralph Ray,
which meeting occurred on January 29, 1996. At that meeting, I provided to Mr. Satz
and Mr. Ray the information related above concerning our meeting with Chief Witt. As
the next of kin to the victim in the Adam Walsh case, I asked the Broward County States
Attorney to review the investigative file as the responsible prosecutor in the case before
the case was for all intents and purposes closed by Chief Witt by the unsealing of the
file. In discussions with the prosecutors, it was apparent that there were recent
investigative results known to the police department that had not been made available to
the prosecutor’s office as of January 29.

I have thereafter been informed by the prosecutor’s office that the prosecutor’s office has
received the case file and that they have concluded that there is additional investigatory
work to be done in Adam’s case. They have also informed us that they would consider

001915



prosecution of the case based on the results of further investigation. In addition, they
have informed us that the State’s Attorney’s office believes that release of the file could
compromise further investigation and/or prosecution in this capital criminal case.

11.  Thave asked only one thing of the prosecutor and ask only one thing of this Court, to do
whatever the law allows to permit the opportunity that there might be justice done for the
murder of my son.

day of February, 1996.

John Walsh

Subscribed to and sworn before me this _I 32 dgyof Felffuar »1996.
( [4

Notary Public
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

IHEREBY CERTIFY that a copy of the foregoing Motion to Intervene has been furnished

to the attached service list either by fax or hand delivery, this ! l day of February, 1996.

MASTRIANA & CHRISTIANSEN, P.A.
Attorney’s for John and Reve Walsh
2750 North Federal Highway

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33306

(305) 566-1234

w [N

LﬂtmEL ERIC CHRISTIANSEN
Florida Bar No. 217794
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Thomas R. Julin, Esquire and
Edward M. Mullins, Esquire
Counselors for Plaintiffs at
200 West Biscayne Boulevard
40th Floor

Miami, Florida 33131-2395
By Fax

Kathleen Pellegrino, Esquire
Counsel for Sun-Sentinel Company
200 East Las Olas Boulevard

Suite C10

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301

By Fax

Ralph J. Ray, Jr., Esquire

Chief Assistant State Attorney for
Michael J. Satz, State Attorney
201 Southeast Sixth Street

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301
By Hand Delivery

SERVICE LIST

Joel D. Cantor, Esquire
Counselor for Defendant
3250 Hollywood Boulevard
Hollywood, Florida 33021
By Fax

Jerold 1. Budney, Esquire

Counsel for The Miami Herald Publishing Co.
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Miami, Florida 33132-1693

By Fax
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DR AFT (2/12/96)
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE
17TH JUDICIAL COURT OF FLORIDA, IN
AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

Case 95-06324 CACE (13)

THE MOBILE PRESS REGISTER, INC.,
et al.

Plaintiffs,
v.

RICHARD WITT, Chief of Police
of the City of Hollywood, Florida,

Defendant.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

MOTION TO INTERVENE

John and Reve Walsh ("Movants"), by and through counsel, hereby move to
intervene in this matter pursuant to Rules 1.210 and 1.230 of the Florida Rules of Civil
Procedure. As the parents of Adam Walsh, Movants have a right to be heard in this matter
under Article 1, § 16(b) of the Florida Constitution. Movants seek an opportunity to be
heard in this proceeding in order to urge the court to ensure that investigation of their son’s
death is not compromised through disclosure of the investigative file to the medie.
Movants are aware of both the curtent status of the investigation and the consideration of
the matter by the Broward County State Attorney’s Office and of the fact that there is an

active, ongoing investigation in the Adam Walsh case.
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FACTS
i. Movants are the next of kin to the deceased Adam Walsh, who was their son.
See Affidavit of John Walsh attached as Exhibit A (hereinafter "Walsh Affidavit”). The
Waishes have meintained knowledge concerning the status of the investigation into the
murder of their son through contact with the approprié.te authorities. Id. at 6. The
Walshes have also assisted that investigation by providing to the police information thet has
been volunteered to them on a regular basis over a peried of time.
2. In January of this year, the Walshes learned that after it had initially opposed
the release of the Adam Walsh investigative file pursnant to this lawsuit, the Hollywood
Police Department had agreed, in October 1995, to make this file available in February
1996. The Walshes also learncd that the police department through its chief, Richard Witt,
planned to publicly identify the person they believed responsible for the Adam Walsh
homicide at the time the file was to be released. See Walsh Affidavit at § 7. Upon
~ learning that the police department had not consulted with the Broward County State
Attorney’s Office, the Walshes asked for an opportunity to meet and discuss this
development with that office. Id. at §9. The Broward County State’s Attorney’s Office, of
course, is jurisdictionally responsible for any prosecution of the Adam Walsh homicide.
See Fra. STAT. ANN. § 27.02 (West 1996).
3. The Movants met with the State’s Attorney’s Office on January 29, 1996.
Seg Walsh Afﬁdavit, at 1 9. At (hat meeting, the Walshes learned that many of the facts

which had been developed in the case over the last several months were not known to the
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State Attorney's Office. Moreover, the Walshes also learned that the prosecutor’s office
had not been consulted regarding the decision to release the file or to name a suspect in the
case. Since that meeting, the Walshes also learned that the prosecutor’s office has since
requested and received the investigative case file, and is actively involved in pursuit of the
investigation. Id. at 9 10. The State Attorney’s Office has told Movants that there are
valid investigative leads being pursued or yet to be pursued, and that at the conclusion of 2
thorough investigation, the State Attorney’s Office will consider bringing the matter before

the grand jury for prosecution of the responsible individual or individuals. Id.

GUMENT

4, Because the unsealing of the Adam Walsh investigative file could adversely
affect further investigation and/or prosecution, Movants respectfully submit that thef have a
substantial interest regarding the unsealing of the file, as well as a constitutional right to be
he&d as tﬁe parents of Adam Walsh. An interest which would entitie a party to intervene
must hé of a direct and immediate character such that the intervenor will either gain or lose
by direct legal operation and effect of a judgment. Castro Convertible Corp. v, Castro, 596
F.2d 123, 125 (5th Cir. 1979). Although permission to intervene is a matter for the court’s
discretion, the aim of the rules of civil procedure is to allow liberal joinder of parties.
Miracle House Corp, v. Haige, 96 So.2d 417, 418 (Fla. 1957); Naticnal Wildlife Fed’n, Inc.
v. LT. Glisson, 531 So.2d 996, 998 (Fla. 1st DCA 1988). The decision to release this file

constitutes a crucial stage in the case and as such the Movants have a right to assert their
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objections to the disclosure. The release of the investigative file would have irreparable
consequences on the potential for apprehending the perpetrator in the murder of the
Movants' son. The Movants have a clear interest in preventing this injustice and should be
allowed to intervene in this matter.

5. In addition, the release of the investigative file will have important
repercussions on the State Attorney’s ability to initiate prosecution in the Adam Walsh
homicide. Therefore, the Movants further submit that the Broward County State Attorney’s
Office was, and is, a necessary party in interest in this matter where its lawful,
jurisdictional responsibilities are clearly implicated by any decision to permit the disclosure
of the file to the news media. See Bluge Dolphin Fiberglass Pools of Elgrida, Inc. v. Swim
Industries Corp., 597 Sc;.Zd 808, 809 (Fla. 2d DCA 1992) ("A person whose rights and
interests are to be affected by a decree and whose actions with reference to the subject
matter of litigation are to be controlled by a decree is a necessary party to the action and
the {rial court cannot proceed without that person.")

6. The fact that the plaintiffs chose to name only the Hollywood Police
Department as a defendant in this suit does not determine whether the interests of all partics
necessary to resolve the matter at issue are represented in the case. See In re Adoption of a
Minor Child, 593 So.2d 185, 189 (Fla. 1991} (noting that intervention allows petsons not
originally nemed in a lawsuit to protect their interests in subject matter). The State
Attorney’s Office has a lawful and well recognized function to determine whether or not to

initiate » prosecution, whether before or after an arrest by a law enforcement official or
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agency. See FLA. STAT. ANN. § 27.02 (West 1996); see also State v. Johns, 651 So.2d

1227, 1227-28 (Fla. 2d DCA 1995); State v._Cain, 381 So.2d 1361, 1367 (Fla. 1580) ("the

discretion of a prosecutor in deciding whether and how to prosecute is absolute”). Thus,

resolution of its interests is necessary to the just resolution of the matters put in issue by

plaintiff's complaint. In addition, as the next of kin to the victim in this homicide, and
pursuant to Florida's constitutional and statutory victim’s rights provisions cited above, the
Movants have a right to be heard as to this matter. The Movants support the prosecutor’s
motion io intervene and its position that disclosure of the file is subject to the criminal
investigative information exemption from the disclosure requirements of the Act.

-7 It is clear from the language of the statute in question, and the court decisions
interpreting and applying that statute, that the fundamental purpose of the criminal
investigative information exemption from disclosure is to avoid the very situation that has
been created here: that is, a contest between the responsible investigative authorities and
the media over access to investigative information. FLA. STAT. ANN. § 119.07(3)(d) (West
1996). The exemption authorizes the authorities to withhold investigative information so
long as they are pursuing a casc that may result in an arrest or prosecution. The role of the
court when confronted with a criminal information exemption issue is to determine if the
facts support a showing that the authorities representations that the case is “active”, as that

statutory term is used and applied, are made in good faith. Seec Barfield v. The City of Fort

I auderdale Police Department, 639 So.2d 1012 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994); Florida Freedom
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Newspapers, Inc, v, Dempsey, 478 So. 2d 1128 (Fla. Ist DCA 1985); News-Press
Publishing Company v. Sanp, 464 So. 2d 1335 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985).

8. The compelling similarity of the circumstances in Barfigld to the instant case
is instructive. In Barfield, the respondent police agency opposed disclosure and asserted
that a criminal investigation was underway and, when that investigation was completed, the
findings would be forwarded to the State Attorney’s Office for review and subsequent
investigation by the grand jury. Barfield, 639 So0.2d at 1014. The responsible investigator
for the police agency in Barfield stated that he did not know whether he had a reasonable
good faith anticipation of securing an arrest or prosecution in the investigative matter in
that case. Id. In the instant case, the investigative file has been forwarded to the State .
Attorney’s Office, the State Attorney's Office is actively investigating and giving
consideration to prosecution of the matter, and it believes that disclosure of the file could
compromise its efforts. As in Barfield, the authorities cannot say with certainty that they
anticipate securing an arrest or prosecution of an culpable individual at this time. However,
as the Barfield court makes abundantly clear, the phrase "anticipation of an arrest or
prosecution” means only that and arrest or prosecution may result, not that it is a certainty.
1d. at 1017. As the Barfield court succinctly stated:

[A]s can be seen from the historical discussion [in that decision], the purpose

of the "active criminal investipative information” exception is to prevent

premature disclosure of information during an ongoing investigation being

conducted in good faith by criminal justice authorities.

1d. at 1017.

It is precisely such a premature disclosure that Movants oppose in this case.
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9. As the Barfield court recognized, "we do not believe the Legislature intended
that confidentiality be limited to investigations where the outcome, and an arrest or
prosecution, was a certainty, or gven a probability.* Barfield, 639 So.2d at 1016-17
(emphasis added). The reason for that construction is, of course, o'bvious.‘ The very
purpose of an investigation is to determine if there are sufficient facts of record to support
an arrest and/or & prosecution. A requirement that thcrc. be a prospective characterization of
the results of an investigation would be an illogical and unsound basis for the exemption.
Even whether or not there is a prime suspect or suspects, or even identifiable suspect is not
determinative of the issue of whether an investigation is "active." See Dempsey, 478 So.2d
at 1131. As the Barfield court stated after reviewing the Dempsev decision:

This decision indicates the police, so long as they arc acting in good faith,

should be given substantial leeway in conducting an angoing investigation

even whete there may be no immediate prospect of an arrest ot prosecution.
Barfield, 639 So.2d at 1016.
Thus, the determinative issue in 2pplying the exemption is not whether the police or
présccutors can state that a suspect will be armrested or prosecuted, but rather whether these
authorities can represent in good faith that they are continuing to conduct an active

investigation.

. 1 In Plaintiffs’ motion for an order requiring production of public records in this cause,
they assert that they "do not believe that the essential facts of this case are dispute . . . ."
(Plaintiffs’ Motion, at 2.) Movants dispute the facts as presented by the plaintiffs. For
example, Plaintiffs® assert that the investigation "has been dormamt for an extended period.”
(Id. at 2). If the court were to inguire of the police department and the prosecutor, it would
learn that far from being dormant, the case has been frenetically pursued during the last
several months, largely in response to the artificial deadline created by the Pebruary 16

7
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16.  Several public policy considerations support the construction and application
of the criminal investigative information exempﬁon to prevent disclosure. The exemption
recognizes that the public interest in the apprehension and conviction of criminals,
especially violent criminals, is 2 matter of paramount importance to the public. Clearly,
there is not an even balance between this consideration and the media’s statutory right to
review public records. The statute should not be read to permit the media to second guess
tke judgment of the police and prosecutors as to whether an investigation, no matter what
its age as long as it {3 within the statute of limitations, deserves the devotion of resources to
continue to be investigated and/or prosecuted. This facter is especially important in regard
to capital crimes. A fugitive from a capital crime should be offered no quarter because he
or she has successfully evaded capture for a period of time or for some period stymied the

police investipation. While the court need not decide the issue in this case, public policy

presumptive release date agreed to by police department officials. Plaintiffs also assert that
"six months of investigation by the cold case squad has not resulted in sufficient evidence to
make an arrest or to commence an investigation”. The internal inconsistency of that very
statement, i.e. that an investigation has not resulted in sufficient evidence to commence an
investigation, could certainly give the court significant pause in considering the accuracy of
Plaintiffs’ factual averments.

Unsupported by any citation to authority, Plaintiffs in their motion argue: “Once the
case was so classified [as a cold case], the investigation ceased to be active and the records
became public.” This conclusion of law strains credulity even when considered under the
license granted by zealous advocacy.

Finally, Plaintiffs posit in their motion that there is no imminent consideration of this
case by the grand jury, "the State Attorney, or any other law enforcement entity that could
make an arrest or commence a prosecution.” Whatever the merits of that argument, it is
now clear that the factual circumstances are changed and that the case is, in fact, under the
current consideration of the State Attomey.
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considerations do beg the question as to whether any unsolved capital crime should be
construed as inactive for purposes of disclosure.

11.  In addition, public policy should militate against creating artificial deadlines
for the closure of the investigation of a crime. The public, the prosecutorial authorities, and
a putative defendant all have a vested interest in a thorough and complete investigation.
Such an investigation is one that is concluded in a time frame dictated by the needs of the
investigation, not by the demands of a third party afising from & Sunshine Act lawsuit,
From common experience, we know that an unnecessary rush to judgment can produce
injustice.

12.  Finally, public policy considerations as applied to this particular case should
militate against premature disclosure of the investigative file. The death of Adam Walsh is
one of the most notorious homicides that have occurred in Florida, and indeed, in the
country. Public confidence in the criminal justice system, an important societal interest
standing alone, will not be enhanced by any premature investigative disclosure of the file
that may compromise bringing closure to the case through an arrest and/or prosecution. To
the extent that the Plaintiffs assert the need for the file information to fulfill a purported
public interest in making judgments regerding the police investigation, it can easily be
recognized thet that judgment will, at some time, be had - based on the results of a
complete investigation, Preserving the integrity of the investigetive file at this point only
postpones, bui does not defeat, that cvent. In any case, the public interest in closing the

case with an arrest or prosecution is clearly paramount to such a claim.
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13.  As the parents of the victim in this case, Mr. and Mrs. Walsh assiduously
seek justice for their son, Other victims of crime similarly situated will look to the
outcome of this matter for comfort that they migﬁt find justice in their own cases. The
public and such victims share a compelling interest in the successful closure of the
investigations of the offenses wherein they were victimized. In this case and in these
circumstances, the statute in question does not compe! disclosure. Rather, the law
recognizes a legitimate basis for exemption from disclosure. The facts, if fully known to
the court, render this an easy case to decide in favor of maintaining the exemption. The
fact that the Hollywood Police Department, as only one of several parties in interest here,
opted not to contest disclosure should not override the compelling interests of the
prosecutor, the victim, end the public in maintaining the integrity of this investigative file

further.
WHEREFORE, for the reasons stated herein, Movants respectfully request that they
be heard in this matter and that the court enter an ORDER denying access to the file

presently and for such other relief as the court deems necessary and appropriate.

Respectfully submitted,

George J. Terwilliger, I
McGuire, Woods, Battte & Boothe, L.L.P.

10
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1627 Eye Street, NW.

Washington, D.C. 20006

Michael E. Christiansen
Mastriana & Christiansen, PA
2750 North Federal Highway
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33306
(954) 566-1234

Florida Bar #217794
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT onthis __ day of February, 1996, copies of this
MOTION TO INTERVENE was sent by facsimile with original to follow by first class

mail to the following:

Thomas R Talin

Steel Hector & Davis

200 South Biscayne Blvd.
Miami, Florida 33131

Joel A. Cantor, Legal Advisor
Hollywood Police Department
3250 Hollywood Bivd.
Hollywood, F1 33021

Michael A. Satz

Broward County State Atiorney
201 SE 6th Sfreet

Ft. Launderdale, FL. 33301

George J. Terwilliger, 11l

Michae! E. Christiansen

12
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THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE

17TH JUDICIAL COURT OF FLORIDA,

IN AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
Case 95-06324 CACE (13)

The Mobile Press Register, Inc., et al.

Plaintiff

V.

Richard Witt, Chief of Police
of the City of Hollywood, Florida

Defendant

AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN WALSH
1, John Walsh, being duly sworn to state as follows:
[ am submitting this affidavit on behalf of myself and my spouse, Reve Walsh, in
connection with our motion to intervene in the captioned case. Our motion seeks to have
the Court’s order releasing the investigative file of the Hollywood Police Department
concerning the investigation of the death of Adam Walsh to the media stayed in the

interests of justice.

Mrs. Walsh and I are the next of kin to the deceased Adam Walsh. Adam Walsh was
our son. Adam was kidnapped in the Hollywood, Fiorida in 1981 and subsequently
killed. As the next of kin I have endeavored to remain apprised and aware of the
lprogrcss of the investigation and any potential prosecution of any individual responsible

for my son’s death.
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Up 1o this time, T have not spoken publicly in any detail concerning the position of Mrs.
Walsh and me regarding the handling of the investigation of Adam’s death, the details
arising from that investigation as knownr to us or to the issue of whether the file

containing the results of the investigation should be released to the plaintiff newspapers.

We have remained silent despite some newspaper articles containing slanderous innuendo

which invade our privacy and maliciously attack our personal character.

Qur privacy interests are important to us for reasons of personal security and the health
and well-being of ourselves and our children. Mrs. Waish and I have been married for
24 years and have had three children subsequent to Adam’s death. 1 have chosen to
dedicate both my professional and personal endeavors to aiding lawful authorities in
finding and apprehending dangerous fugitives and to aiding victims and potential victims
of violent crime. The high degree of visibility I have had in this work has resulted in
numerous and, according to the appropriate authorities, credible death threats against me,
my wife and my children. This has necessitated that T take appropriate security
precautions for both myself and my family. One of the plaintiff newspapers in this case
invaded our privacy and jeopardized our security by publishing both photographic and

written information concerning our home and the physical security of our property.

Approximately two years ago we were informed that the investigation into our son’s

death was being assigned to a new detective at the Hollywood Police Department who
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was going to revie‘;v the entire case file and reinvigorate the investigative effort. Since
that time we have been provided with information by the police department which
includes new information from existing witnesses, new information from new witnesses,
further information about existing suspects and new information about new suspects.
Because we seek to preserve the integrity of the investigative information so as not to
jeopardize further investigation and/or prosecution, we will refrain from disclosing in any

detail the information that has been provided to us by the police.

I requested and had a meeting with the Hollywood Police Department on January 16,
1996. At that meeting, Hollywood Police Chief Richard Witt, the defendant in this
action, informed us that his department had agreed in October of 1995 to settle this
Sunshine Act lawsuit by releasing the investigative file on February 16, 1996. At the
January 16 meeting, the police chief told us he intended to releasc the file and at the
same time to publicly identify the person he believed responsible for Adam's murder.
Counsel with me at that meeting thereupon asked the Chief of Police if he had consuled
with the responsible prosecutor regarding the release of the file and the public

identification of a suspect. Chief Witt said he had not.

At that same January 16 meeting we were provided by the detective responsible for the
case a summary of his recent investigative activity and an outline of many significant

investigative leads to be pursued.
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Following that meeting I requested and received an opportunity to meet with Broward
County States Attorney Michael Satz, and Chicf Deputy States Attorney Ralph Ray,
which meeting occurred on January 29, 1596. At that meeting, I provided to Mr. Satz
and Mr. Ray the information related above concerning our meeting with Chief Witt. As
the next of kin to the victim in the Adam Walsh case, I asked the Broward County States
Attorney to review the investigative file as the responsible prdsccutor in the case before
the case was for all intents and purposes closed by Chief Witt by the unsealing of the
file. In discussions with the prosecutors, it was apparent that there were recent
investigative results known to the police department that had not been dee' available to

the prosecutor’s office as of January 29,

I have thereafter been informed by the prosecutor’s office that the prosecutor’s office has
received the case file and that they have concluded that there is additional investigatory
work to be done in Adam’s case. They bave also informed us that they would consider
prosecution of the case based on the results of further investigation. In addition, they
have informed us that the State’s Attorney’s office believes that release of the file could

compromise further investigation and/or prosecution in this capital criminal case.

I have asked only one thing of the prosecutor and ask only one thing of this Court, to do
whatever the law allows to permit the opportunity that there might be justice done for the

murder of my son.
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Dated at city in the State of , this

day of February, 1996.

John Walsh

Subscribed to and sworn before me this day of February, 1996.

Notary Public
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE
17TH JUDICIAL COURT OF FLORIDA, IN
AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

Case 95-06324 CACE (13)

THE MOBILE PRESS REGISTER, INC,, )
et al, }
)

Plaintiffs, )

)

v. )
)

RICHARD WITT, Chief of Police )
of the City of Hollywood, Florida, )
‘ )

Defendant. )

)

MOTION TO INTERVENE

John and Reve Walsh ("Movants"), by and through counsel, hereby move to
intervene in this matter pursuant 1o Rules 1.210 and 1.230 of the Florida Rules of Civil
Procedure. As the parents of Adam Walsh, Movants have a right to be heard in this matter
under Article 1, § 16(b) of the Florida Constitution. Movants seek an opportunity to be
heard in this procesding in order Eto urge the court to ensure that investigation of their son’s
death is not compromised through disclosure of the investigative file to the media.
Movants are aware of both the current status of the investigation and the consideration of
the matter by the Broward County State Attorney’s Office and of the fact that there is an

active, ongoing investigation in the Adam Walsh case.
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FACTS

i Movants are the next of kin to the deceased Adam Walsh, who was their son.
See Affidavit of John Walsh attached as Exhibit A (hereinafter "Walsh Affidavit”). The
Walshes have maintained knowledge concerning the status of the investigation into the
murder of their son through contact with the appropriate authorities. Id. at 9§ 6. The
Walshes have also assisted that investigation by providing to the police information that has
been volunteered to them on a reguiar basis over a period of time.

2. In January of this year, the Walshes learned that after it had initially opposed
the release of the Adam Walsh investigative file pursuant to this lawsuit, the Hollywood
Police Department had agreed, in October 1995, to make this file available in February
1996. The Walshes also learned that the police department through its chief, Richard Witt,
planned to publicly identify the person they believed responsible for the Adam Walsh
homicide at the time the file was to be released. See Walsh Affidavit at § 7. Upon
learning that the police department had not consulted with the Broward County State
Attérney's Office, the Walshes asked for an opportunity to meet and discuss this
development with that office. Id. at §9. The Broward County State’s Attorney’s Office, of
course, is jurisdictionally responsible for any prosecution of the Adam Walsh homicide.
Seg¢ FLA. STAT. ANN. § 27.02 (West 1996),

3 The Movants met with the State’s Attorney’s Office on January 29, 1996.
Seg Walsh Affidavit, at §9. At that meeting, the Walshes learned that many of the facts

which had been developed in the case over the last several months were not known to the
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State Attorney’s Office. Moreover, the Walshes also learned that the prosecutor’s office
had not been consulted regarding the decision to release the file or to name & suspect in the
case. Since that meeting, the Walshes also learned that the prosecutor’s office has since
requested and received the investigative case file, and is actively involved in pursuit of the
investigation. Id. at 9 10. The State Attorney’s Office has told Movants that there are
valid investigative leads being pursued or yet to be pursued, and that at the conclusion of 2
thorough investigation, the State Attorney’s Office will consider bringing the matter before

the grand jury for prosecution of the responsible individual or individuals. Id.

ARGUMENT
4, Because the unsealing of the Adam Walsh investigative file could adversely

affect further investigation and/or prosccution, Movants respectfully submit that they have a
substantial interest regarding the unsealing of the file, as well as a constitutional right to be
he&d as the parents of Adam Walsh. An interest which would entitle a party to intervene
must be of a direct and immediate character such that the intervenor will either gain or lose
by direct legal operation and effect of a judgment. Castro Convertible Corp. v, Castro, 596
F.2d 123, 125 (5th Cir. 1979). Although permission to intervene is a matter for the court’s
discretion, the aim of the rules of civil procedure is to allow liberal joinder of parties.
Miracle House Corp, v. Haige, 96 So.2d 417, 418 (Fla. 1957); National Wildlife Fed’n, Inec.
v. 1.T. Glisson, 531 So0.2d 996, 998 (Fla. Ist DCA 1988). The decision to release this file

constitutes a crucial stage in the case and as such the Movants have a right to assert their
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objections to the disclosure. The release of the investigative file would have irreparable
consequences on the potential for apprehending the perpetrator in the murder of the
Movants® son. The Movants have a clear imcres{ in preventing this injustice and should be
allowed to intervene in this matter.

5. In addition, the release of the investigative file will have important
repercussions on the State Atftorney’s ability to initiate prosecution in the Adam Walsh
homicide. Therefore, the Movants further submit that the Broward County State Attorney’s
Office was, and is, a necéssary party in interest in this matter where its lawful,
jurisdictional responsibilities are clearly implicated by any decision to permit the disclosure
of the file to the news mediza. See Blue Dolphin Fiberglass Pools of Florida, Ine. v. Swi
Industries Corp., 597 S§.2d 808, 809 (Fla. 2d DCA 1992) ("A person whose rights and
interests are to be affected by a decree and whose actions with reference to the subject
matter of litigation are to be controlled by a decree is a necessary party to the action and
the trial court cannot procead without that person.")

6.  The fact that the plaintiffs chose to name only the Hollywood Police
Department as a defendant in this suit does not determine whether the interests of all parties
necessary to resolve the matter at issue are represented in the case. See In re Adoption of a
Minor Child, 593 So.2d 185, 189 (Fla. 1991) (noting that infervention allows persons not
originally named in a lawsuit to protect their interests in subject matter). The State
Attorney’s Office has a lawful and well recognized function to determine whether or not to

initiate » prosecution, whether before or after an arrest by a law enforcement official or

001941




el

DR A F T (2/12/96)

agency. See FLA. STAT. ANN, § 27.02 (West 1996); see also State v, Johns, 651 So.2d

1227, 1227-28 (Fla. 2d DCA 1995); State v, Cain, 381 So0.2d 1361, 1367 (Fla. 1980) ("the
discretion of a prosecutor in deciding whether and how to prosecute is absolute™), Thus,

| resolution of its interests is necessary to the just resolution of the matters put in issue by
plaintiff°s complaint. In addition, as the next of kin to the victim in this homicide, and
pursuant to Florida's constitutional and statutory victim's rights provisions cited above, the
Movants have a right to be heard as to this matter. The Movants support the prosecutor’s
motion io intervene and its position that disclosure of the file is subject to the criminal
investigative information exemption from the disclosute requirements of the Act.

7. It is clear from the language of the statute in question, and the court decisions
interpreting and applying that statute, that the fundamental purpose of the criminal
investigative information exemption from disclosure is to avoid the very situation that has
been created here: that is, a contest between the responsible investigative authorities and
the media over access to investigative information. FrLa. STAT. ANN. § 119.07(3)(d) (West
1996). The exemption authorizes the authorities to witbhold investigative information so
long as they are pursuing a case that may result in an arrest or prosccution. The role of the
court when confronted with a criminal information exemption issue is to determine if the
facts support a showing that the authorities® representations that the case is “active”, as that
statutory term is used and applied, are made in good faith. See Barfield v. The City of Fort

Lauderdale Police Department, 639 So.2d 1012 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994); Florida Freedom
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Newspapers, Inc, v, Dempsey, 478 So. 2d 1128 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985); News-Press
Publishing Compagy v. Sapp, 464 So. 2d 1335 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985).

8. The compelling sitﬁilaxity of the circumstances in Barfield to the instant case
is instructive. In Barfield, the respondent police agency opposed disclosure and asserted
that a criminal investigation was underway and, when that investigation was completed, the
findings would be forwarded to the State Attorney’s Office for review and subsequent
investigation by the grand jury. Barfield, 639 So.2d at 1014, The responsible investigator
for the police agency in Barfigld stated that he did not know whether he had a reasonable
good faith anticipation of securing an arrest or prosecution in the investigative matter in
that case. Id. In the instant case, the investigative file has been forwarded to the State
Attorney’s Office, the State Attorney’s Office is actively investigating and giving
consideration to prosecution of the matter, and it believes that disclosure of the file could
compromise its efforts. As in Barfield, the authorities cannot say with certainty that they
anticipate securing an arrest or prosecution of an culpable individual st this ime. However,
as the Barfield court makes abundantly clear, the phrase "anticipation of an arrest or
prosecution” means only that and arrest or prosecution may result, not that it is a certainty.
Id. at 1017. As the Barfield court succinetly stated:

[Als can be seen from the historical discussion [in that decision], the purpose

of the “"active criminal investigative information™ exception is tc prevent

premature disclosure of information during an ongoing investigation being

conducted in good faith by criminal justice authorities.

Id. at 1017.

It is precisely such a premature disclosure that Movants oppose in this case.
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9. As the Barfieid court recognized, "we do not believe the Legislature intended
that confidentiality be limited to investigations where the outcome, and an arrest or
prosecution, was a certainty, or gven a probability.” Barfield, 639 So.2d at 1016-17
(emphasis added). The reason for that construction is, of course, obvious.l Tﬁe very
purpose of an investigation is to determine if there are sufficient facts of record to support
an arrest and/or a prosecution. A requirement that there be a prospective characterization of
the resulis of an investigation would be an illogical and unsound basis for the exemption.
Even whether or not there is a prime suspect or suspects, or even identifiable suspect is not

determinative of the issue of whether an investigation is “active.” See Dempsey, 478 So.2d

at 1131. As the Barfield court stated after reviewing the Dempsey decision:

This decision indicates the police, so long as they are acting in good faith,

should be given substantial leeway in conducting an ongoing investigation

even whete there may be no immediate prospect of an arrest or prosecution.
Barfield, 639 So.2d at 1016.
Thus, the determinative issue in applying the exemption is not whether the police or
prosecutors can state that a suspect will be arrested or prosecuted, but rather whether these

authorities ¢an represent in good faith that they are continuing to conduct an active

investigation.!

! In Plaintiffs’ motion for an order requiring production of public records in this cause,

. they assert that they "do not believe that the essential facts of this case are in dispute . . . "

(Plaintiffs' Motion, at 2.) Movants dispute the facts as presented by the plaintiffs. For
example, Plaintiffs’ assert that the investigation "has been dormant for an extended period.”
(Id. at 2). If the court were to inquire of the police department and the prosecutor, it would
learn that far from being dormant, the case has been frenetically pursued during the last
several months, largely in response to the artificial deadline created by the Pebruary 16

7
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10.  Several public policy considerations support the construction and application
of the criminal investigative information exemptipn to prevent disclosure. The exemption
recognizes that the public interest in the apprehension and conviction of criminals,
especially violent criminals, is a matter of paramount importance to the public. Clearly,
there is not an even balance between this consideration and the media’s statutory right to
review public records. The statute should not be read to permit the media to second guess
the judgment of the police and prosecutors as to whether an investigation, no matter what
its age as long as it is within the statute of limitations, deserves the devotion of resources to
continue to be investigated and/or prosecuted. This factor is especially important in regard
to capital crimes.. A fugitive from a capital crime should be offered no quarter because he
or she has successfully evaded capture for a period of time or for some period stymied the

police investigation. While the court need not decide the issue in this cese, public policy

presumptive release date agreed to by police department officials. Plaintiffs also assert that
"six months of investigation by the cold case squad has not resulted in sufficient evidence to
make an arrest or to commence an investigation". The internal inconsistency of that very
statement, i.e. that an investigation has not resulted in sufficient evidence to commence an
investigation, could certainly give the court significant pause in considering the accuracy of
Plaintiffs’ factuat averments.

Unsupported by any citation to authority, Plaintiffs in their motion argue: “"Once the
case was §0 classified [as a cold case], the investigation ceased to be active and the records
became public.” This conclusion of law strains ¢redulity evers when considered under the
license granted by zealous advocacy.

Finafly, Plaintiffs posit in their motion that there is no imminent consideration of this
case by the grand jury, "the State Aftorney, or any other law enforcement entity that could
make an arrest or commence & prosecution.” Whatever the merits of that argument, it is
now clear that the factual circumstances are changed and that the case is, in fact, under the
current consideration of the State Attorney.
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considerations do beg the question as to whether any unsolved capital crime should be
constreed as inactive for purposes of disclosure.

11.  In addition, public policy should militate against creating artificial deadlines
for the closure of the investigation of a crime. The public, the prosecutorial authorities, and
a putative defendant all have a vested interest in a thorough and complete investigation.
Such an investigation is one that is concluded in a time frame dictated by the needs of the
investigation, not by the demands of & third party arising from a Sunshine Act lawsuit,
From common experience, we know that an unnecessary rush to judgment can produce
injustice.

12.  Finally, public policy considerations as applied to this particular case should
militate against premature disclosure of the investigative file. The death of Adam Walsh is
one of the most notorious homicides that have occurred in Florids, and indeed, in the
country. Public confidence in the criminal justice system, eu important societal interest
standing alone, will not be enhanced by any premature investigative disclosure of the file
that may compromise bringing closure to the case through an arrest and/or prosecution. To
the extent that the Plaintiffs assert the need for the file information to fulfill a purported
public interest in making judgments regarding the police investigation, it can easily be
recognized that that judgment will, at some time, be had - based on the results of a
complete investigation, Preserving the integrity of the investigative file at this point only
postpones, but does not defeat, that event. In any case, the public interest in closing the

case with an arrest or prosecution is clearly paramount to such a claim.
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13.  As the parents of the victim in this case, Mr. and Mrs. Walsh assiduously
seek justice for their son. Other victims of crime similatly situated will look to the
outcome of this matter for comfort that they miglﬁ find justice in their own cases. The
public and such victims share a compelling interest in the successful closure of the
investigations of the offenses wherein they were victimized. In this case and in these
circumstances, the statute in question does not compel disclosure. Rather, the law
recognizes a legitimate basis for exemption from disclosure. The facts, if fully known to
the court, render this an easy case to decide in favor of maintaining the exemption. The
fact that the Hollywood Police Department, as only one of several pe.rtieé in interest here,
opted not to contest disclosure should not override the compelling interests of the
prosecutor, the victim, and the public in maintaining the integrity of this investigative file

furthes.

WHEREFORE, for the reasons stated herein, Movants respectfully request that they

be heard in this matter and that the court enter an ORDER denying access to the file

presently and for such other relief as the court deems necessary and appropriate.

Respectfully submitted,

George J. Terwilliger, II1

MeGuire, Woods, Battle & Boothe, L.L.P.

10
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1627 Eye Street, N'W.
Washington, D.C. 20006

Michael E. Christiansen
Mastriana & Christiansen, PA
2750 North Federal Highway
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308
(954) 566-1234

Florida Bar #217794
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1 HEREBY CERTIFY THAT on this

MOTION TO INTERVENE was sent by facsimile with original to follow by first class

mail to the following:

Thomas R. Julin

-~ Steel Hector & Davis

200 South Biscayne Blvd.
Miami, Florida 33131

Joel A. Cantor, Legal Advisor
Hollywood Police Department
3250 Hollywood Blvd.
Hollywood, FI 33021

Michael A. Satz

Broward Counfy State Attorney
201 SE 6th Street

Ft. Lauderdale, FL. 33301

12

George J. Terwilliger, III

Michsel E. Christiansen

day of February, 1996, copies of this
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THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE

17TH JUDICIAL COURT OF FLORIDA,

IN AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
Case 95-06324 CACE (13)

The Mobiie Press Register, Inc., et al.

Plaintiff

v.

Richard Witt, Chief of Police
of the City of Hollywood, Florida

Defendant

AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN WALSH
I, John Walsh, being duly sworn to state as follows:
I am submitting this affidavit on behalf of myself and my spouse, Reve Welsh, in
connection with cur motion to intervene in the ceptioned case. Our motion seeks to have
the Court’s order releasing the investigative file of the Hollywood Police Department
concerning the investigation of the death of Adam Walsh to the media stayed in the

interests of justice.

Mrs. Walsh and I are the next of kin to the deceased Adam Walsh, Adam Walsh was
our son. Adam was kidnapped in the Hollywood, Florida in 1981 and subsequently
killed. As the next of kin I have endeavored to remain apprised and aware of the
brogress of the investigation and any potential prosecution of any individual responsible

for my son’s death.
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Up to this time, T have not spoken publicly in any detail concerning the position,of Mrs.
Walsh and me regarding the handling of the investigation of Adam’s death, the details
arising from that investigation as known to us or to the issue of whether the file

containing the results of the investigation should be released to the plaintiff newspapers.

We have temained silent despite some newspaper articles containing sfanderous innuendo

which invade our privacy and maliciously attack our personal character.

Our privacy interests are important to us for reasons of personal security and the health
and well-being of ourselves and our children. Mrs. Waish and I have been married for
24 years and have hid three children subsequent to Adam’s death. I have chosen to
dedicate both my professional and personal endeavors to aiding lawful authorities in
finding and apprehending dangerous fugitives and to aiding victims and potential victims
of violent crime. The high degree of visibility I have had in this work has resulted in
numerous and, according to the appropriate authorities, credible death threats against me,
my wife and my children. This has necessitated that 1 take appropriate security
precautions for both myself and my family. One of the plaintiff newspapers in this case

invaded our privacy and jeopardized our security by publishing both photographic and

_written information concerning our home and the physical security of our property.

Approximately two years ago we were informed that the investigation into our son’s

death was being assigned to a new detective at the Holiywood Police Department who
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was going to revie"w the entire case file and reinvigorate the investigative effort. Since
that time we have been provided with information by the police department which
includes new information from existing witﬁesscs, new information from new witnesses,
further information abont existing suspects and new information about new suspects.
Because we seck to preserve the integrity of the investigative information so as not to
jeopardize further investigation and/or prosecution, we will refrain from disclosing in any

detail the information that has been provided to us by the police.

I requested and had a meeting with the Hollywood Police Department on January 16,
1996. At that meeting, Hollywood Police Chief Richard Witt, the defendant in this
action, informed us that his department had agreed in October of 1995 to settle this
Sunshine Act lawsuit by releasing the investigative file on Pebruary 16, 1996. At the
January 16 meeting, the police chief told us he intended to release the file and at the
same time to publicly identify the person he believed responsible for Adam’s murder.
Counsel with me at that meeting thereupon asked the Chief of Police if he had consulied
with the responsible prosecutor regarding the release of the file and the public

identification of & suspect. Chief Witt said he had not.

At that same January 16 meeting we were provided by the detective responsible for the
case a summary of his recent investigative activity and an outline of many significant

investigative leads to be pursued.

001952



10.

11.

DR A F T (2/12/96)
Foliowing that meeting I requested and received an opportunity to meet with Broward
County Staies Attorney Michael Satz, and Chief Deputy States Attorney Ralph Ray,
which meeting occurred on January 29, 1996. At that mecting, I provided to Mr. Satz
and Mr. Ray the information related above concerning our meeting with Chief Witt. As
the next of kin to the victim in the Adam Waish case, I asked the Broward County States
Attorney to review the investigative file as the responsible prosecutor in the case before
the case was for all intents and purposes closed by Chief Witt by the unsealing of the
file. In discussions with the prosecutors, it was apparent that there were recent
investigative results known to the police department that had not been made available to

the prosecutor’s office as of January 29.

I have thereafter been informed by the prosecutor’s office that the prosecutor’s office has
received the case file and that they have concluded that there is additional investigatory
work to be done in Adam’s case. They have also informed us that they would consider
prosecution of the case based on the results of further investigation. In addition, they
have informed us that the State’s Attorney’s office believes that release of the file could

compromise further investigation and/or prosecution in this capital criminal case.

1 have asked only one thing of the prosecutor and ask only one thing of this Court, to do
whateves the law allows to permit the oppartunity that there might be justice done for the

murder of my son.
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Dated at city in the State of , this

day of February, 1996.

John Walsh

Subscribed to and sworn before me this day of February, 1996.

Notary Public
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State Attorney

SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA
SUITE 600 BROWARD COUNTY COURTHOUSE
FORT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 323301
TELERHONE (305) 7654100

MricHAEL J. SaTz
STATE ATTORNELY

August 11, 1992

Mr. John Walsh

c/o America’s Most Wanted
STF Productions, Inc.

5151 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20016

Dear Mr. Walsh:

This office has been notified by Detective Jack Hoffman of
the Hollywocd Police Department that Jeffrey Dahmer may be
willing to speak to members of the Hellywooed Police
Department concerning the murder of your son Adam, if the
State of Florida would not seek the death penalty if he was
charged and convicted of the first degree murder of Adam.

I have received your 1letter stating that in light of
Dahmer’s demands, you, therefore, request that this office
not seek the death penalty, should Dahmer be charged and
"convicted of the first degree murder of Adam.

This office has therefore communicated in writing to
Detective Hoffman that we would not seek the sentence of
death, should Jeffrey Dahmer be charged and convicted of the
homicide of your son Adam. I am enclosing a copy of this
letter for your perusal and your files.

It is my sincere hope that one day the person who committed
this horrible crime that has caused such great pain to your
family and to all those who loved Adam will be brought to
justice.

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me in that regard.

Yours very truly,

Ml LA

MICHAEL J. SATZ
State Attorney

MIS:jh
Enclosure: as noted
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MICHAEL J. SATZ
STATE ATTORNEY

SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCULIT OF FLORIDA

- BROWARD COUNTY COURTHOUSE
FORT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33301-3360
PHONE {305) 357-6955 -

August 10, 1992

Richard Witt, Chief
Hollywood Police Dept.
3250 Hollywood Boulevard
Hollywood, F1 33021

Attention: Detective Jack Hoffman, Homicide Unit
Dear Detective Hoffman:

This will acknowledge receipt of your letter under date August 7,
1992, wherein you expressed your intention to interview Jeffrey Dahmer
in Milwaukee, Wisconsin concerning any involvement he may have had in
the disappearance and/or homicide of Adam Walsh, which occurred at the
Hollywood Mall, in Hollywoeod, Florida con July 27, 1681, This will
also acknowledge the enclcsures with your letter consisting of the FBI
memorandum; the Milwaukee Police Department's supplemental report; the
transcribed statements of William Bowen and Willis Russell Morgan and

the copy of the letter that you had recetved dated August 6, 1992 from
John Walsh. '

Upon examining all these enclosures together with a reading of your
letter. combined with our persconal conversations regarding this
matter, we understand that it may be necessary for this office te make
a definitive statement regarding whether or not we would seek the
death penalty against Mr. Dahmer should he be prosecuted in this
Jurisdiction for Murder in the First Degree, In connection with the
death of Adam Walsh.

The purpose for this letter therefore, is to notify you and anvone
else who may read this letter that should Mr. Dahmer be prosecuted for
the -offense of Flrst Degree Murder In comnection with the homicide of
Adam Walsh, this office agrees and will be bound by this letter, that
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the sentence of death would not be sought for punishment should he be
convicted for this offense. Mr. Dahmer, however, will be exposed to
any other punishment provided by law except death, should he be
conwvicted of First Degree Murder in connectlion with the death of Adam
Walsh.

Sincerely,

(

i

/ 7 &, (j‘"
RALPH J. RAY, JR.
Chief Assistant State Attorney

RJR,Jr:pa

cc: Michael J. Satz
State Attorney

cc: Richard Witt, Chief
Hollywood Police Dept.
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MICHAEL J. SATZ
STATE ATTORNEY

SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA

BROWARD COUNTY COURTHOUSE
FORT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33301-3360
PHONE (305) 357-6955

August 10, 1992

Richard Witt, Chief
Hollywood Pelice Dept.
3250 Hollywood Boulevard
Hollywoed, F1 33021

Attention: Detective Jack Hoffman, Homicide Unit
Dear Detective Hoffman:

This will acknowledge receipt of your letter under date August 7,
1992, wherein you expressed your intention to interview Jeffrey Dahmer
in Milwaukee, Wisconsin concerning any involvement he may have had in
the disappearance and/or homicide of Adam Walsh, which occurred at the
Hollywood Mail, in Hollywood, Florida on July 27, 1981, This will
also acknowledge the enciosures with vour Tetter consisting of the FBI
memorandum; the Milwaukee Police Department's supplemental report; the
transcribed statements of Wiliiam Bowen and Wiilis Russell Morgan and
the copy of the letter that you had received dated August 6, 1992 from
John Walsh. .

Upon examining all these enclosures together with a reading of your
letter combined with our perscnal conversations regarding this
matter, we understand that it may be necessary for this office tc make
a definitive statement regarding whether or not we would seek the
death penalty against Mr. Dahmer should he be prosecuted in this
Jurisdiction for Murder in the First Degree, in comnection with the
death of Adam Walsh,

The purpose for this letter therefore, is to notify you and anyone
else who may read this letter that should Mr. Dahmer be prosecuted for
the offense of First Degree Murder in connection with the homicide of
Adam Walsn, this office agrees and will be bound by this letter, that
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the sentence of death would not be sought for punishment should he be
convicted for thls offense., Mr., Dahmer, however, will be exposed to
any other punishment provided by law except death, should he be
convicted of First Degree Murder in connection with the death of Adam
Walsh.

Sincerely,

RALPH J. RAY, JR.
Chief Assistant State Attorney

RJR,Jripa

cc: Michael J. Satz
State Atiorney

cc: Richard Witt, Chief
Hollywcod Police Dept.
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MICHAEL J. SATZ

STATE ATTORNEY .
SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA

BROWARD COUNTY COURTHOUSE
FORT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33301-3360
PHONE (305) 357-6955

August 10, 1992

Richard Witt, Chief
Hollywood Police Dept.
3250 Hollywood Boulevard
Hollywood, F1 33021

Attention: Detective Jack Hoffman, Homicide Unit
Dear Detective Hoffman:

This will acknowledge receipt of your letter under date August 7,
1992, wherein you expressed your intention to interview Jeffrey Dahmer
in Milwaukee, Wisconsin concerning any involvement he may have had in
the disappearance and/or homicide of Adam Walsh, which occurred at the
Hollywood Mail, in Hollywood, Florida on July 27, 1681, This wili
also acknowledge the enclosures with your letter consisting of the FBI
memorandum; the Milwaukee Police Department's supplemental report; the
transcribed statements of William Bowen and Willis Russell Morgan and
the copy of the letter that you had received dated August 6, 1992 from
John Walsh. .

Upon examining all these enclosures together with a reading of your
letter combined with our personal conversations regarding this
matter, we understand that It may be necessary for this office to make
a definitive statement regarding whether or not we would seek the
death penality against Mr. Dahmer should he be prosecuted in this
Jurisdiction for Murder in the First Degree, in connecticn with the
death of Adam Walsh. -

The purpose for this letter therefore, is to notify you and anyone
else who may read this letter that should Mr. Dahmer be prosecuted for
the offense of First Degree Murder in comnection with the homicide of
Adam Walsh, this office agrees and will be bound by this letter, that
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Richard Witt. Chief -2- August 10 1992

the sentence of death would not be sought for punishment should he be
convicted for this offense. Mr. Dahmer, however, will be exposed to
any other punishment provided by law except death, should he be
convicted‘of First Degree Murder in connection with the death of Adam
Walsh.

Sincerely,

Q
! dJ"

RALPH J. RAY, JR.
Chief Assistant State Attorney

RJR,Jdripa

cc: Michael J. Satz
State Attorney

cc: Richard Witt, Chief
Hollywood Police Dept.
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VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL

August 6, 1992

Mr. Michael Satz

State Attorney - 17th Judicial Circuit
201 South East 6th Street

Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301

Dear Michael:

STF Productions, Inc:

T have béen speaking on and off to Jack Hoffman, the

5161 Wiseonsin Avenue, N\ lead investigator in my son Adam's murder case, for
several months about the need of the Hollywood police

Washington, D.C. 20016 to speak to Jeffrey Dahmer concerning Adam's case.

Tolaphone (202] 895-3100 It is my understanding that Dahmer's father came

forward and said that his son had mustered out of the
Army and was hanging around the Hollywood Florida area
at the time of Adam's death. I also understand two
credible witnesses have come forward placing Dahmer
ineide and outside the Hollywood mall the day of Adam's
abduction.

Fax {202) 895-3096

A subsidiary of
I had hoped the Hollywood police could talk to Dahmer

during the early stages of his case, but it is my
understanding that Dahmer's defense attorney prevented
any law enforcement agency with an unresolved case to
talk to Dahmer if the state the case was from;was a
death penalty state. I believe the FBI's assisting
Jack Hoffman in getting access to Dahmer.

Fox Telgvision Statiens Inc.

I have discussed the situation with my wife Reve, and
we both concur that it is acceptable for you to offer
whatever concessions you deem necessary in order for
the Hollywood police to gquestion Dahmer.

We are not vigilantes nor are we obsessed with
vengeance, but after ten years of heartache and the
nightmare of wondering why and who took Adam and if
they would ever strike again against our family or our
two beautiful new children, we need to know something.
I know Dahmer will never get out of prison and I
believe he will receive justice in the next life as
well. At least knowing whether he did it or not would
be some consolation.
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Mr. Satz - State Attorney
August 6, 1992
Page 2

Many people in the criminal justice system and the
public have forgotten that Jeffrey Dahmer started out
as a pedophile, kidnapper, and torturer of young boys

and committed the ultimate travesty to a family. After ;
being released on parole for the kidnapping and
molestation of the youngest son in the family, in an

act of cold blooded brutal revenge, he kidnapped,

tortured, and murdered the other son in that family.

He certainly fits the profile of someone who might be

capable of murdering a beautiful six-year-o0ld boy.

You have our confidence, and I know you will proceed
full speed ahead.

If I can be of assistance with any law enforcement
agency please don't hesitate to call me or my
assistant, Xaren Tate, at 202/895-3092.

Respectively submitted

John Walsh

JW:kt

cc: Jack Hoffman, Hollywood Police Department
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STF Productions, Inc.
5151 Wisconsin Avenue, NV,

Washington, D.C, 26015

Mr. Michael Satz
State Attorney - 17th Judicial Circuit
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CITY of HOLLYWOOD, FLLORIDA

RICHARD H. WITT
Police Chief

August 7, 1992

Mr. Michael Satz

State Attorney

201 S.E. 6 Street

Ft. Lauderdale, F1. 33301

Dear Mr. Satz:

As you know the Hollywood Police Department has been actively
investigating the abducticon/homicide of Adam Walsh since July 27,
1981. Over the years this agency has pursued numerous leads and
interviewed many potential suspects. As of this date no
individuals have been charged in this murder case.

Oon July 22, 1991 the Milwaukee Police Department arrested
Jeffrey Dahmer, charging him with 11 counts of homicide. After
Jeffrey Dahmer’s arrest, he received naticnal media coverage.

The Milwaukee Police along with the Federal Bureau of
Investigation profiled Jeffrey Dahmer as a serial murderer
responsible for more than 17 deaths over 10 or more yesars.

As a result of this background 1investigation of Jeffrey
Dahmer, 1t was revealed that Dahmer was discharged from the
Military, March 26, 1981. Mr. Dahmer then flew to Miami, Florida.
Jeffrey Dahmer lived 1in South Florida for 5 months, leaving
September 1881 returning to Bath, Chio.

After Dahmer’s arrest, Gerald Boyle was assighed as the
attorney of record. Mr. bDahmer continued speaking with the
Milwaukee Police about the murders he committed. When outside
agencies wanted to speak with Jeffrey Dahmer confirming unresolved
homicides, his attorney Geraid Boyle would not allow police
departments whose state had the death penalty to speak with Mr.
Dahmer. 8Since Jeffrey Dahmer’s convictions for murder, he is no
longer represented by council. Mr. Dahmer has no other cases
pending against him.

(),

ronic

POLICE DEPARTMENT - 3250 HOLLYWOOD BOULEVARD -+ ZIP 33021-6967
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On July 30, 1881 William Bowen drove to Hollywood, Florida
from Birmingham, Alabama at his own expense. Mr. Bowen advised
this detective that he has been following the Jeffrey Dahmer case
through the media. After seeing Jeffrey Dahmer both on television
and in the newspapers, he recalled an incident which he withessed
on July 27, 1981 at the Hollywood Mall. Mr. Bowen said he was
Tiving in Hollywood at the time.

Mr. Bowen was parking his vehicle on the west side of the
Sears Store. After he exited from his vehicle, he witnhessed a W/M
early 20’s who was wearing an army fatigue Jjacket struggling with
a small child. The child was saying "no I’m not going, no I don’t
want to go". The W/M then threw the child into a van that was
parked 1in the fire lane next to Sears. The van then sped off.
When Mr. Bowen learned of the abduction of Adam Walsh, he said he
gave this information te a police officer. Mr. Bowen then moved
back to Alabama and thought this case was eventually resolved.

On July 28, 1991 Mr. Bowen was reading the Birmingham News
which had written that Jeffrey Dahmer may be a suspect in the Adam
Walsh murder. When Mr. Bowen saw the photograph of Dahmer, he got
a flashback that the W/M he saw forcing a child into a van back on
July 27, 1981 may have been Jeffrey Dahmer. See attached
statement.

On October 23, 1991 this detective met with Willis Morgan at
police headquarters. Mr. Morgan informed this detective that he saw
the photograph of Jeffrey Dahmer in the Miami Herald on July 28,
1891, After viewing Jeffrey Dahmer’s photograph, Mr. Morgan
recalled having contact with this subject back on Monday, July 27,
1881 at the Hollywood Mall.

Mr. Morgan stated that this subject attempted to pick him up.
Mr. Morgan walked away from this subject and proceeded to the Sears
Store where he lost this subject. Mr. Morgan said this W/M
appeared to be in his early 20’s.

That evening while watching the 11:00 0’Ciock news, Mr. Morgan
learned of the kidnapping of Adam Walsh. Mr. Morgan reported his
incident to a uniformed police officer. According to Mr. Morgan,
he is positive that the person he had contact with at the Ho1lywood
Mall was Jeffrey Dahmer. See attached statement.

This detective has been corresponding with Special Agenht Neil
Purteil of the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Agent Purtell has
been conducting numerous interviews with Jeffrey Dahmer in his
prison facility 1in Madison, Wisconsin. Agent Purtell having
knowledge of the two aforementioned witnesses, and the knowledge
that Jeffrey Dahmer was in the South Florida area for 5 months at
the time of Adam Walsh’s kidnapping and murder, he feels it would
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be extremely important that I interview Jeffrey Dahmer.

I have been in constant contact with John Walsh regarding his
son’s murder for the past 11 years. Mr. Walsh was informed at the
beginning, after Jeffrey Dahmer’s arrest that he was in the South
Florida area when Adam was kidnapped.

Mr. Walsh was advised at the time that Mr. Dahmer’s attorney
did not want any police agencies whose state had the death penaity
to speak with his client. After speaking with his wife Reve, John
Waish informed this detective that he personally had no objections
if the State Attorney’s Office waived the death penalty for Jeffrey
Dahmer in order for this agency to interview him.

Mr. Waish has conveyed his feelings in a Tletter recently
mailed to your office. I am requesting at this time that your
office draw up a letter to Jeffrey Dahmer or a representative of
his that the State of Florida would not pursue the death penalty
should Mr. Dahmer make admissions regarding the death of Adam
Walsh. I would need this letter as soon as possible to take with
me when I go and interview Jeffrey Dahmer sometime next week. It
may not be necessary to reveal this letter to Mr. Dahmer when I
interview him unless he brings up the death penalty for the State
of Fiorida.

Sincerely,

£ “
DetectiVe J. Hoffman
Homicide Unit
HOLLYWOOD POLICE DEPARTMENT
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VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL

August 6, 1992

Mr. Michael Satz

State Attorney - 17th Judicial Circuit
201 South East 6th Street

Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301

Dear Michael:

STF Productions, Inc.

I have been speaking on and off to Jack Hoffman, the

5151 Wiscansin Avente, NI lead investigator in my son Adam's murder case, for
- several months about the need of the Hollywocod police

Wasiington, 0.C. 20016 to speak to Jeffrey Dahmer concerning Adam's case.

Teleghone [202) 895-3100 Tt is my understanding that Dahmer's father came

forward and said that his son had mustered out of the
Army and was hanging around the Hollywood Florida area
at the time of Adam's death. I also understand two
credible witnesses have come forward placing Dahmer
inside and outside the Hollywood mall the day of Adam's
abduction.

Fax [202) 895-3035

A subsidiary of
" I had hoped the Hollywood police could talk to Dahmer
o Television Sratians Inc. during the early stages of his case, but it is my
. understanding that Dahmer's defense attorney prevented
any law enforcement agency with an unresolved case to
+alk to Dahmer if the state the case was from,was a
death penalty state. I believe the FBI's assisting
Jack Hoffman in getting access to Dahmer.

T have discussed the situation with my wife Reve, and
we both concur that it is acceptable for you to offer
whatever concessions you deem necessary in order for
the Hollywood police to question Dahmer.

We are not vigilantes nor are we obsessed with
vengeance, but after ten years of heartache and the
nightmare of wondering why and who took Adam and if
they would ever strike again against our family or our
two beautiful new children, we need to know something.
T know Dahmer will never get out of prison and I
pelieve he will receive justice in the next life as
well. At least knowing whether he did it or not would
be some consolation. ‘
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Mr. Satz - State Attorney
August 6, 1992
Page 2

Many people in the criminal justice system and the
public have forgotten that Jeffrey Dahmer started out
as a pedophile, kidnapper, and torturer of young boys
and committed the ultimate travesty to a family. After
being released on parole for the kidnapping and
molestation of the youngest son in the family, in an
act of celd blooded krutal revenge, he kidnapped,
tortured, and murdered the other son in that family.
He certainly fits the profile of someone who might be
capable of murdering a beautiful six-year-old boy.

You have our confidence, and I kﬁow you will proceed
full speed ahead. ‘

If T can be of assistance with any law enforcement
agency please don't hesitate to call me or my
assistant, Karen Tate, at 202/895-3092,

Respectively submitted
/iz;éfl' &féA;éZZZ?V
John Walsh

JW:kt

cc: Jack Hoffman, Hellywood Police Department
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COMPLAINT #: 21-BA0GT3
OFFENSE & CLABSIFICATIC -+ MURDER
STATEMENT OF: ROWENs WiceIaM ’ FAGE I

THE FOLLOWING WILL BE A VOLUNTARY BWORN STATEMENT HOLLYWOOD CASE #&21-
54073, THIE STATEMENT IS BEING - TAKEN EBY DETECTIVE J. HOFFMaN EHIELD #0038
AT THE HOLLYWGOD FOLICE  DEFARTMENT HOMICIDE UNIT. THIEZ STATEMENT I8 BEING
TAKEN FROM A WITNESS IDENTIFIED AS WILLIAM RAYMON EBOWENs B.O.W.E.N. THE
ZMND. HE RESIDEES AT 3741 CHESTNUT RIDGE LANE APTHZO7 BIRMINGHAM: ALARAMA.
TELEFPHONE NUMBER (Z05) 988-474%. PMR. BOWEN HAE CERTAIN KNOWLEDGE AND
INFORMATION POSSIBLY PERTAINING TG THE OBDUCTIGN AND SURBRSESUENT HOMICIDE OF
ADAM WALSH THAT CQCCURRED ON JULY E7THs 1%81. THIE INCIDENT DCCURRING AT 300
HOLLYWCOOD MALL LOCATED IN THE CITY OF HOLLYWOOD. RBROWARD COUNTYs FLORIDA.

L. FRIOR TO TAKING YOUR STATEMENT ARE YOU AWARE THAT IT IS A CRIME UNDER
FLORIDA STATE STATUTES TO EKNOWINGLY FURNISH FALSE INFORMATION WHILE UNDER
OATHY

A YES.

3t AT THIS TIME I'M GOING TGO PLACE YOU UNDER QATH FOR YOUR TESTIMONY WILL
YoU FPLEASE RAIBE YOUR RIGHT HaND. LET THE RECORD REFLECT THE SUBJIECT'S
RIGHT HAND IS RAISED. WILLIAM RAYMON BOWEN THE ZND. DO YOU SOLEMNLY SWEAR
TO TELL THE TRUTH . THE WHOLE TRUTH AND NOTHING EUT THE TRUTH &0 HELF  YOU
G0OD7T ' .

& I DO,

G WILLIAM RBOWEN HAVING APFEARED BEFORE ME A CERTIFIED 3JSWORN FOLICE
GFFICER FOR THE CITY OF HOLLYWOOD: EBEROWARD COUNTYs FLORIDA AND HAVING BEEN
DULY SWORN DEPOSES AND STATES. FOR THE RECORD  THIS STATEMENT 15 COMMENCING
oM JULY 20TH. 1991 AT AFPPROXIMATELY 1455 AT THE HOLLYWOOD POLICE DEFARTMENT
DETECTIVE ERBUREAU. WILL YOU FLEASE STATE YOU COMPLETE 'GIVEN NAME. YOUR DUOX.
AND YOUR FLACE OF EMFLOYMENT?

A WILL.IAM RAYMON EOWEN THE ZND. MY DOB IS JANUARY 13THs 19703, I WORK FOR
A COMPANY CALLED BTRAIGHT FURROW FRODUCTIONS. '

. AND YOUR FOSITION THERE?

Ha I AM I GUEEES YDU'D-CBNEIDER THE PRODUCTION MANAGER.

Q. Gkl AND YOUR ADDRESS?

A 741 CHESTNUT RIDGE LANE #zZ07 BIRMINGHAM, ﬁLﬂBAMA R4,

. Ok. WHMaT IS THE HIGHEST GRADE LEVEL 0OF EDUCATION THAT YOUIP'VE
COMFLETED?

AL I HAVE A BACHELOR OF ARTS DEGREE IN BROADCASTING FILM COMMUNICATIONS

FORM THE UNIVERSITY OF ALABAMA.
. Ok. MR. PBOWEN YOU HAD CONTACTED ME EBY A TELEPHONE Call IS  THaAT
CORRECT? . : .
A . YE=.
7
TRANS.SERIAL: Z134 . REPORTING OFF. : HOFFMAN
SERIAL: OO3E DATE: O7-31-91 SUPERV.AFFROV. BERIAL:
REVIEWER®
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COMPLAINT #: 21-550732
OFFENDE & CLASBIFICATIL . MURDER , -
STATEMENT OF 3 BOWEN: WILLIAM FAGE &

&, AND WHAT DATE DID YOU CaLL THE HOLLYWOED POLICE DEFPARTMENTT?
A THAT WAS A BUNDAY I BELIEVE THAT WAS JULY Z%TH. 1991,
3. 4. THE 29TH WAS YESTERDAY WHICH WAS YESTERDAY WHICH WAE MONDAY.

A I'M B0RRY THEN THE Z8TH.

al. OnN A SUNDAY?

A ON A..WELL I CALLED SUNDAY AND LEFT A& MESSAGE AND THEN YOU CALLED ME
EACK YESTERDAY MORNING.

. 0N MONDAY?

A.  YES.

[rm . FINE. AND WHAT WAS YOUR PURFOSE  FOR CaLLING THE HOLLYWOOD FOLICE
DEFARTMENT®? )

A UH.. I HAD READ AN ARTICLE IN THE BIRMINGHAM NEWSPAPER AROUT THE
MILWAUKEE HOMICIDES THAT UHs JEFFREY DOMER: DAMER COMMITTED THERE WAE A SUR
HEADING UNDER THAT TALKING ABOUT THE FLORIDA POLICE INVESTIGATE FOSSIELE
LINKS TO ADAM WALZH., WHEN I LIVED HERE I KNEW AROUT THE CABE BECAUDE I7
HAFPENED AT A TIME WHEN I WaZ LIVING HERE.

Q. AND WHEN WERE YOU RESIDING IN HOLLYWOOD. FLORIDATY

H. UH..IN THE EARLY TO MIDDLE FART 0OF 1%81.

. Uk AND WHERE WERE YOU RESIDING IN HOLLYWOOD?

A UH AT 1424 DOUTH 17TH AVE AFPT #4“HDLLYNDDD9 FLORIDA 2ZCE0 IS THE ZIF.
. QK YOU HAD FURNISHED ME WITH SOME COFIES OF SOME DOCUMENTE REGARDING

UHs YOUR RESIDENCY HERE IN HOLLYWDOD . FOR THAT PERICGD OF TIME: IZ  THAT
CORRECT? .

A CORRECT.

. O . ANﬁ THERE'S ONE DOCUMENT HERE UMs  WHICH YOU I EBELIEVE YOU HaD
CHARGED SOME THINGES AT SEARES ROERUCK DATED JULY EZENDs 1921 IS THAT CORRECTY

A NO THAT IS NOT CORRECTs THAT IS A BILL THAT I WENT INTO PAY ON THE
ZZND FORM SOME PREVIGUS ITEMS THAT I HAD CHARGED AT SEARS BEFORE. I BELIEVE
IN EITHER HUNTEVILLE 0OR TUSCALOOSA BEFORE I LEFT FOR SCHOOL. UHs  I'M NOT
SURE. .

Gia S0 YO CaME TO THE BOLLYWOOD FLORIDA BTORE..

B T FAY & BILL.

L. TG FAY THIS BILL THAT YOU GIVE FURNISHED ME & COPY OF7?
TRANS .BERIAL 2 2134 REFORTING OFF. : HOFFMAN ggah
SERIAL: 0032 DATE: O7-31-%1 SUPERV.AFﬁ/UV.TEEIQL=
REVIEWER:
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COMPLAINT #: B1-5&073
OFFENSE & CLASEIFICATI? : MURDER
ETATEMENT OF: BOWEN: WInt IAM o PAGE 3

A RIGHT THAT IS5 WHMY IT IS STAMPED WITH THE DATE ON THERE.

Bl CORRECT AND THIS UHs ETAMP INDRICATED JULY ZZND. 1%81s UH: EEARS
ROEEUCK AND COMFANY HOLLYWOOD. FLORIDA AND IT BHOWS FAID.

A RIGHT.

. (k.. AND UM.RELATE TO ME EXACTLY UH..THE DATE OF THIE BILL THAT YOuU

#AID AND THE DATE OF THE OBDUCTION.

AL ALRIGHT. I COULD NOT REMEMBER THAT DATE THE EZZND UNTIL I LOOKED EBEACK
THROUGH A PERFETUAL CALENDAR THAT I Call THE LIBRARY BERVICE TO MARE SURE.
THAT WAS ON A WEDNEZDAY: UH: WHEN I DETERMINED THAT THAT WAS A WEDNESDAY T
REMEMEER VERY VIVIDLY COMING RBaACK TO THE MALL ON MOMDAY. I EELIEVE THAT
CALDER HOREE TRACK WHICH WAZ THE SITE. I WAS A VENDER CONTRACTOR THERE
THROUGH aAUTOMATIC TOTALIZATORSs UH: I WAS I ERELIEVE OFF WORK THAT DAY  AND
HaD COME RBACK T THE MALL BECAUSE 1. I THINK I WAS LOOKING FOR A DROOK OR
SOMETHING AND THAT WOULD OF EBEEN THE ZND TIME I HAD EBEEN TO THE MALL. 1 HAD
NEVER BEEN TO THAT MALL REFORE I. I DON'T EBELIEVE UNTIL I WENT TOQ &GO PAY
THAT BILL. ' :

Gl aK..

A AND 1 HAD GONE EBACK JUST TO LODK THROUGH THE MalLl I WAE JUST KILLING
TIME JUST LOUKING ARDUND.

P DID YOU CWN AND OFERATED A VEHICLE AT THAT TIME?
A YES.
. WHAT TYFE OF VEHICLE D2 YOU CWN?

A, AT THE TIME IT WAE MY FATHER'S CAR I RELIEVE IT WaB & BLUE CUTLASS
SUPREME . :

. oK NOW YOU'RE TELLING ME THAT DN THAT SUBSERUENT MONDAY T THE TIME
THAT YOU FAID THAT RILL UHs MAKING IT JULY E7TH. 1951 YOU BELIEVE THaT Yau
WENT TO THE ZEARS STORE THE 2nND TIME CORRECT?

A RIGHTs I WAS ON MY WAY THROUGH THE SEARE STORE TO GO INTO THE MaLL TO
Locks AROUND. I HAD NOT LOOKED ARCOUND ON THE Z2ND. I HAD JUST WENT IN TO FaAY
A BILL ANMD...

. DO YO RECALL NOW APPROXIMATELY WHAT TIME YOU ARRIVED AT SEARST

A NO I CAN NOT. IT WAS DURING THE DaY TIME. I DO NOT KNOW IF IT Wad
EARLY MORMINGs LUNCH. 0OR LATE AFTERNOON AT THIZ POINT 1. I'VE THOUGHT ABOUT
IT AND DO NGT REMEMEBER.

1. Ok WHEN  YOoU DROVE INTO THE PARKING LOT  AREAs WHAT FPORTION OF THE

FARKING LOT DID YOU PARK YOUR VEHMICLE IN RELATICNSHIFP TO SEARS?

AL I GUESE 1 WOULD OF EEEN OVER ON THE WEET EZIDE OF BEARS RY ONE OF THE
TRANS .SERIAL.¢ Z134 : REFAORTING QFF. 2 HOFFMAN 7

SERIAL: 0032 DATE: O07-31-%1 SUFERV.APRROV . BERIAL ¢

REVIEWER:
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COMPLAINT #: B1-54073
DFFENSE & CLASSBIFICATI( : MURDER
STATEMENT OF: BOWEN, WILLIAM . FAGE 4

ENTR&NCES THAT IS BETWEEN THE GARDEN ESHOF AND WHAT IS NoW THE APPLIANCE
ENTRANCE. :

'

Bl k.
A I WAS FACING SOUTH.
L. 0K YOU WERE FACING HOLLYWOOD BLVD IN THE PARKING LOT.

A.  RIGHTs: RIGHT.

Gt NOW  FROM THAT PGINT ON EXPLAIN TO ME EXACTLY AFTER YOU PFAREED YOUR
VEHICLE WHAT YyOU DID AND WHAT YOU OBSERVED AT THAT PARTICULAR TIME.

& I WAS LOOKING FOR A FARKING PLACE THAT WAS CLOEE TO  THE EMTRANCE OF
SEARS I REMEMBER THE MALL BEING VERY CROWDEDRD AND I WAE LODEING FOR A
PARKING FLACE. I WANTED TG PARK NEAR THEs MNEAR THE OFEMING. A5 I GOT CQUT OF
MY CAR I SLAMMED THE DOOR AND AR I LRQOKED UF TOGWARD THE SEARE TO START
WALKING I HEARD THE RACKET OF A& MAN DRAGGING A BOY OUT BY HIZ ARMZ REALLY
MAN HANDLING HIM AND TG THE. TO THE BEET OF MY RNOWLEDGE BEING THE DISTANCE
THAT I WAS MAYEE S0 FEET I DON'T ENOW UHs T HEARD THE LITTLE BOY SAYING I
DON'T WaNT TO &0 I'M NOT GOINGs SOMETHING ALONG THOSE LINEZ. THE MaN
PROCEEDED TO FICK THE EBOY UF  THROW HIM PHYSICALLY INTO THE VAN THAT WaAB
FARKED MWHAT I THOUGHT AT THE TIME LOOKED LIKE A FIRE LANEs UHs AND I
VIVIDLY REMEMBER THIS WVAN. SCREECHING OFF. YOU COULD HEAR THE TIREED
SCREECHING AZ THE VAN TOUK OFF AS IF THIZ MAN WERE REALLY...

. WHAT DIRECTION WAS THE VAN FACINGs PARKED?

A, THE VAN WAS FACING aAWAY FROM ME HEADED TOWARDE S0UTH S0 I Wab LOOKING
AT THE EACK END OF THE VAN AND TOWARD THE FRONT SIDE FROM THAT BACK END.

it Ok WHEN YOU FIRSET HEARD THE COMMOTION THAT UMy EROUGHT YOAUIR ATTENTION
TO THE AREAs HOW FaR APPROXIMATELY WERE YOU FROM THE LOCATION WHERE THIS
MAaN WAS PULLING THE BOY?

A I HAD WALKED MAYEE 2 OR 4 STEPE JUST RIGHT oUT OF THE FPARKING SPACES
IN TO THE ROAD THAT GOES BESIDE SEARE AND I JUST STOPPED BECAUSE OF THE
COMMOTION THAT I HEARD AND FOR WHATEVER REASDN I JUST STOPFED.

7 WHAT WAS YOUR APPROXIMATE DISTANCE?

A UHs: LET'S SAY 40 FEET. IF I WERE BO FEET FORM MY CAR TO IT I WOULD SaY
I'D WALKED MAYEE YOU ENIOW 10 FEET: 8 FEETs SUMETHING LIKE THAT.

3l CAN YO DESCRIRBE UHs THE FERSON YOU SaW UHs DRAGEING THIZ CHILD FROM
THE ETORE®Y

A WHAT I REMEMEER MOST OF aALL WAS A DARK BLUE DRAZEBALL CAFs AND
SUMETHING THAT WAS OUT OF FLACE AND THAT WAS WHAT LOOKED Ta EBE LIKE AN ARMY
TYPE JACKETs WHICH I THOUGHT WAS.KIND OF DD FOR JULY IT WAS LIKE TODaAY
VERY HOT VERY STEAMY DIDN'T MAKE & LOT OF SENEZE.

. AND YOU'RE ZAYING ARMY TYFE JACKET WHAT COLOR WAS ITY

TRANS.SERIAL: 21324 REFORTING OFF. 3 HOFFHMAN ﬁ
SERIAL: Q032 DATE: O7F-31-%1 SUFERV.AFPROV.SERIAL:
REVIEWER:
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COMPLAINT #: 21-D40732 .
OFFENBE & CLABSIFICATIC : MURDER

STATEMENT OF: BOWEN» WILLIAM i PAGE B
A IT WAS AN ARMY GREEN. JUSTs JUST YOUR BASIC PRIVATES ARMY JACKET.

Q. 50L.1D GREENT?

A.  YEAH.

D, OK..

A. MAYBE A LITTLE WORN THE JACKET IT WAS NOT: IT WAS NOT PRISTINE IT WAS

YL KNOW JUST A LITTLE WORN OUT LOGKING. FROM THE BEST I COLD TELL IN THAT
SHORT PERIOD OF TIME. THE OTHER FEATURE THAT 1 REMEMBER WAB A JUDDING CHIN.
I DIDMN'T GET TO BEE TO MUCH OF THE FACE RBUT WHAT I DO REMEMEBER IT Wak A
FRETTY FRONCSUNCED CHIN. I GOT WHAT WOULD BE THE RIGHT SIDE OF HIS FACE AND
REMEMEBER QUITE A& BIT OF JUDDING CHIN COMING OUT WHICH WAS ANOTHER FEATURE
THAT JUST STUCK IN MY MIND. .

Q. 80 YOU BaABSICALLY SAW THE RIGHT FROFILE GF THE SURJECT?Y

4. RIGHT. YES. THE CHILD WAS BEING DRUG. ON THE OTHER SIDE FROM WHERE 1

. alAY FROM YOU?

AL AlAY FROM ME.

o, S THE SUBFECT WAS BETWEEN YGOU AND THE CHILD?
AL RIGHT.
. sy UHL W WAS THIS A W/Ms B/M?

A WHITE.
&. AND APPROXIMATELY HOW OLDY

Ha HE LOOKED TO EBE YOUNG UHs AT THE TIME 1 WaAB 23, B0 I WOULD GUESS,
ESTIMATION SAY ROUGHLY IN MY AGEs YOU KNOW Z0'E EARLY Z0'E .

@. ° HOW TALL DID HE APPEAR?
A. 1 WOULD SAY AVERAGE HEIGHT MAYBE 5'9, 5'10, 5'ii SOMEWHERE ARCUND IN
THERE . | ,
©. AND HIS BUILD?
A. MEDIUM NOT, NOT A VERY HEAVY PERSON BUT NOT VERY THIN.
@. AVERAGE FOR THE HEIGHT THAT YOU DESCRIBED?
A. YES I BELIEVE S0.
©@. DID YOU NOTICE ANY FACIAL HAIR?
J""
TRANS.SERIAL: 2134 REPORTING OFF. : HOFFMAN |
SERIAL: 0033 DATE: O7-31-%1 SUPERV . APFRDY . SERTAL 1
REVIEWER:
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COMPLAINT #: 281-84073
OFFENEE & CLAESIFICATIC = MURDER '
STATEMENT OF: BCOWENs WILLIAM : . FAGE &

4. I DID NOTICE A& LITTLE EBIT OF SCRUFF.
Q. LIKE HE HADN'T SHAVED IN A COUFLE DAYS?
AL MAYBE S0 YEAH: MAYRE JUEBT A LITTLE BIT OF BCRUFF.

. THIS BASEBALL CAF THAT YOU DESBCRIRBEDys DID  YOU NOTICE IF THERE WASZ ANY
INSIGNE ON THE BASERALL CAF?Y

A. I ERELIEVE THAT THERE WAS 1T SEEMED TO EBE JUST ©BOME TYPE OF NON
DESCRIFT WHMITE.: IT DID NOT SEEM TO SPELL CUT ANYTHING I. LOOKING BACK: KIND
OF A CIRCLE TYPE DESIGN RBUT I WAS SO FAR AWAY I COULD NOT DETERMIKE WHAT
THE INSIGNE ON THE CAF SAID. .

&l Ok UH..DID ¥OU NOTICE THE FPANTS THAT HE WAZS WEARINMGY

& BEEM TO BE JUST JEANS FROM THE BEST OF MY RECOGLLECTIOM: RECOLLECTION.
JUST SOME DARK COLCORED PANTSs MAYEBE JEANS ANDs AND SHOES.

. DO YOU RECALL WHAT THE CHILD WAS BAYING T4 THIE INDIVIDUALT

Al UHs THE FEW WORDS THAT 1 HEARD ARE NO I'M NOT GOING NO I DON'T WANT TO

GO. I REMEMBER THAT THE MAN ZEEMED TC HAVE HIE HANDE FULL WITH THIS KIDs
THE KID WAS..

Gl DID HE RESPOND BaCk TO THE CHILD?

A UH,.I THINK HE TURNED AND SAID SOMETHING WHAT HE ZAID 1 REaALLY DON'T
REMEMEER I THINK HE YELLED AT THE KEID AND AT THAT PFPOINT THAT'S WHEN THE
FERSON PICKED THE CHILD UP THREW THE ¥ID IN THE TRUCK. IN THE VAN..

Q. DID HE HAVE TO OFEN THE DGOR OF THE VAN TG GET INT

A, YES AND THAT WAS ONE OF THE PROBLEMS HE WAS HAVING LIKE I SAID ALL
THIS HAFPENED VERY QUIICKLY BUT HOLDING ON TO THE KID OFENING THE DOOR  AND
THROWING THE KID IN UH.. HE THREW THE CHILD IN SLAMMED THE DOOR VERY HaRD
AND THEN I HEARD THE VAN SCREECH OFF. THAT s THAT IE THE MOET FOR
WHATEVER REAZEGN THAT ISZ WHAT STICKE IM MY MIND THE MOET. MRET WAS THE S0UND
THAT THIS vAN MADE WHEN IT TOOK OFF WHICH I8 THE REASON WHY I HAE
SUZPICIOUS AS TO WHAT I HAD SEEN. I JUST: AFTER THE VAN SCREECHED OFF LIKE
THAT 1T BEEMED AT FIRET I THOUGHT MAYBE JUST A UH.UH..FATHER AND CHILD.

N RIGHT .

AL EUT YQU KNOW TO BE STANDING MORE OR LESS OUT IN THE MIDDLE 0OF THE RGAD
AND SEE A VAN TAKE OFF FROM THE SIDE OF THIE AREA...

©.  WHAT TYFE OF VAN WAS THIS?

& UH» TO THE BEST OF MY RECOLLECTION IT WAE A CARGO VAN CARGD TYFE VANs
A DARK BLUE I DON'T REMEMEBER SEEING ANY WINDOWS IT BEEMED TO JUST EBE...

L. COMMERCIAL TYFE VANT?
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<2
A SEEMED TO BE A COMMERCIAL TYFE VANM.
Gt AND YOU IT WAS FACING SOUTH BOUND SO YOU 5AW THE REAR OF THE VEHICLE-.
CAORRECT®?

&, CORRECT.
. DID YOU HAVE AN OPFPORTUNITY TO SEE THE LICENCE FLATEY

A, I'M SURE THAT I DID. I THINK I WIULD OF HAD TO LOGKING AT THE ERACK OF
THIZ TRUCK AS THE MAM WAS WALKING TOWARD IT UH: I HAVE THOUGHT AND THOUGHT
AND THOUGHT ABOUT ANY KIND OF LETTERS OR NUMBERE THAT STUCKE OUT B0 FAR THE
ONLY THING THAT S(OLINDE FAMILIAR IN MY MIND IS VAC OR BAC THERE I THINK
THERE'S AN AC IN THERE SUOMEWHERE THAT'®S THAT'E ALL I I'VE EEEN ABLE TO PUT
TOGETHER. IT SEEMED TO RBE A FLORIDA TAG.

. AND WHICH DIRECTION DID THAT VEHICLE SFEED OFF INY
A AWAY FORM ME WHICH I GUESE WOULD OF EEEN SOUTH.

L. TOWARDE HOLLYWOOD BLVD?

AL YES. -

B Ok, WHAT DID YOU DO &AFTER: IN THAT FPOINT IN TIME?Y

AL UHy WELL I LOOKED AROUND T3 BEE MAYEBE IF I HAD MIZLED SOMETHING MAYEE
YOU KNCGW MAYBEs MAYEE SOMETHING WAS GDING ON I DIDN'T ENOW  ABOUT AND THE
DMLY THING 1 REMEMBER WAS THERE WAS ANOTHER LADY GETTING OUT OF A CAR AND
SO0 I WENT ON IN TO THE SEARE STORE ANDs AND DIDM'T THINK ABOUT IT YOU KNGW
I: I KIND OF PUT IT Ta THE SIDE OF MY MEMORY ALTHOUGH IT DID STICK WITH ME
THAT THIS DID SEEM ODD  THAT A GilY WOULD THROW A KID IN THE TRUCK AND THEN
EXCUSE MY LANGUAGE. HAUL 4&ES5 aAWAY FROM WHERE I WAB STaNDING LIKE THAT AND
MaKE SUCH A RUCKUS AT YOU HNOW AT A FUBRLIC PLACE AT & MalL. :

. AN YOU DETERMINE AT THAT POINT IF UHs ONCE HE PHYZICALLY UH. PUT ThHE
KID INTO THE VaN UH. DID ¥OU HKNOW IF THE ENGINE WAS RUMNING OR HE HAD T4
START THE IGNITION COR...

Al UH..THERE'S A& POSSIBILITY THAT THE ENGINE COULD OF BEEN RUMNING I°HM
NOT SURE I DON'T REMEMEER HEARING THE TRUCK CRANE I DG JUST REMEMEER
HEARING THE VAN GOING INTD GEAR AND TAKING OFF.

2. AND COULD YOU TELL OR ORSERVE IF THERE WAS ANY OTHER OCCUFANTS IN THAT
VAN :
A. I COULD NOT TELL IF  THERE WERE ANY QCCUFANTS. I DO NOT KNOW. ATs AT
THE FOINT WHERE I DROVE UP THE V&N WAS ALREADY ABIDE..
0. DID THAT VAN HAVE REAR DOORSY
- YEE. ¢
W.  BUT NO WINDOWS? )
oy
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A I DON'T REMEMRBER SEEING ANY WINDOWS.

L. DID YOU NOTE IF IT HAD ANY SIDE DOORS EBESIDESE THE DRIVER'E DOOR - AND
THE PASSENGER DOOR?

AL NI DON'T . I DON'T REMEMBER IF IT HaAD ANY. Is I DON'T REMEMEER
SEEING ANY WINDOWE ANYWHERE.

Q. COULD v MAKE OQOUT THE TYPE OF VEHICLE IT WASY
AL NG IT WAS SIMILAR TO I GUESS A FORD ECGONG TYFE VAN UH..

. NOTHING UNUSUAL ABCOUT IT LIKE A UMs LADDERS OR ANYTHING LIKE THAT ON
THE VEMICLE? CHROME: RUNNING RBOARDS®

A. WHAT WAS UNUSUAL TO ME WAS HOW PLAIN IT WAS. IT WAER MATs IT DID NOT
LOOK LIKE A RECREATION VEHICLE: RECREATIONAL VEHICLE. IT WADS JUBT VERYs
VERY FLAIN.

. DID IT AFPPEARs WHAT YEAR. COULD YOU MAKE QUT IF IT WAS AN OLRER
VEHICLE R A& NEW.. ’

A IT SEEMED T BE JUST A VEHICLE ©OF THE TIME IY DIDN'T SEEM TO BE
OVERTLY GLD OR  UH NEWs IT JUST SEEMED TO BE JUST YOU ENGW JUST A VAN, I
ENOW  THAT'S MOT  REALLY ANSWERING YOUR GUESTION PRECIZELY BUT IT. ITs IT
JUST SEEMED LIKE IT WAS IN OK SHAFEs IT DIDN'T LOOK (LD OR NEW.

(] FROM THE TIME YOU HEARD UH THE COMMOTION UNTIL THE TIME THAT UHs THE
SURJECT WaS AEBLE TO FUT THE CHILD IN THE VAN AND SFEED OFF ABOUT HOW  MUCH
TIME ELAFSED?Y

A FROBABLY NOT MUORE THAN 10 OR 15 SECONDS IF THAT LONG. IT WAS & VERY
SHORT INCIDENT AND IT REALLY STUNNED ME THAT IT HAFPENED B0  QUICK AND THEN
NOT ONLY WAS THERE SIGHTEZ EUT THERE WERE SOUNDS. THE HID SAYING HE  WASN'T
GOING TO G0 ANYWHERE AND THE VAN SCREECHING OFF AS.: AS I WAD STANDING THERE
IN THE FPARKING LOT.

. WHAT DID YOU FPROCEED TO DO AT THAT MOMENT?

&, I LOOKED ARCOUND TO  SEE IF ANYBODY ELSE HAD TAW  ANYTHING. IF 1 HAZ
MISSING SOMETHING YOU KNOW YOU THINK WILL ARE THEY MARING A MOVE OR
SOMETHING WHAT'S GOING OMN. AND THE ONLY THING THAT 1 REMEMBER I8 ZEEING A
LADY GET CUT OF THE CAR.

5. oK FOLLOWING THAT DAYs.s DID YOU BECOME AWARE OQF THE OREDUCTICN OF ADAM
WALSH THROUGH THE NEWSFAPERE OR TELEVISION? :

A THROUGH THE NEWSPAPERS AND THE TELEVISIONs 1 BELIEVE THAT THE FIRST
TIME THAT I WAS AWARE OF IT WAE I WENT TO & KENTUCKY FRIED CHICKEN WHICH
YOU AND I DISCUSSED I THINE IS NEAR HERE SOMEWHERE ON  HOLLYWCOD SOMEWHERES
UMy TO GET A BUCKET OF CHICKEN AND THAT'S  WHEN I SaW A& FOSTER FOR  ADAM
WALSH. IT STUCK IN MY MIND RECAUSE I HAD NEVER SEEN A& MISDING CHILD POETER
BEFORE s ESPECIALLY AT & DRIVE THROUGH.

: ﬂ . .
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L I WAS GOING TO ASK YOU DURING THAT COMMOTION DID YOU EVER HAVE AN
OFPORTUNITY TO SEE THE CHILD?

A THE ONLY THING I SAW WAS UH..I'M GETTING THE IMPRESSION OF A STRIPED
SHIRT AND KIND OF HAIR THAT COMES ETRAIGHT DOWN ALMOST LIKE A CHINESE ROWL
CUT» JUST KIND OF SETRAIGHT SCRUFFY. JUST AN AVERAGE LITTLEs LITTLE KID.

o, WHAT ABOUT FANTE OR ANYTHING?

A DON'T REMEMEBER.
. HOW OLD DID HE APPEAR: THE CHILD?
A IF I HAD TO GUEES I'M NOT A @IOD GUESS OM KIDEs UH Ss:6 YEARE OLD MAYERE

SOMEWHERE ALONG IN THERE.

L. k.

a. OLD: OLD ENCUGH TO KNOW WHAT'S GOING ON IN LIFE BUT YOUNG ENOUGH THAT
HE NEEDED AN ADULT TO BUPERVIZE HIM AT AT A MALL.

. Ok THE FOLLOWING DAYS WHEN YOU WERE AWARE THAT THIS CHILD WAS MIZSEING
FROM THE SEARS MALLs UH..HOW COME YOU DIDMN'T COME FORWARD WITH THE
INFORMATION THAT YOU BELIEVE TO YOU ENCW MAY BE RELATED? '

[ I DID TaALK TO AN OFFICERs I'M STILL TRYING TO DETERMINE IF IT HAPFEMED
WHEN I REPORTED & BREAK IN AT MY APARTMENT IT COULD OF BEEN THEN I DON'T. I
BON'T REMEMBRER THE DATE OF THAT EBREAK IN IT (OULD OF BEEN THAT WHILE THEY
WERE INVEBTIGATING THAT: WRITING & REFORT UF I MENTIONMED THAT TO THEM OR IT
COULD OF BEEN LATER. IT'S 20 VAGUE AS TO WHEN I DID. I DID MAKE AN ATTEMFT
TO Tabk T AN COFFICER AND GIVE HIM THE INFORMATION THAT Is OF WHAT I HAD
SEEN AFTER I BAW THAT THE UH..

&. 50 YOU ASSUMED THE INFORMATICGN YOU PRGVIDED THE OFFICER UHs WAS GIVEN
TU THE FROPER AUTHORITIES T FOLLOW UP ONT

. RIGHT» THAT'S WHAT I ASSUMED. UNFORTUNATELY AFTER 1 GAVE THAT
INFORMATION NOT- TQO MANY WEEEE AFTER THAT UHs I MOVED EBaCK TO MY PARENT'E
HOME TN HUNTSVILLEs UHs TGO TRY TO GET EBACK INTO TELEVISION. 1 WAZS UNHAPPY
WITH MY JOBs UHy NOT THE MONEY: MAINLY JUST HAVING FLANS. I'M FROM THE
SOUTH AND THIS WAS A LITTLE TOO FAR SOUTH FOR ME. IT WAE A BIG CITY AND.
AND I NEEDED SOME FRIENDS AND REALLY DIDM'T HAVE ANY E0 I WANTED TO MOVE
BACK HOME aNMD START OVER IN TELEVISION WHICH I3 MYs MY GIVEN FROFESSION OF
WHAT I HAVE A& DEGREE IN.

. YOU WENT TO THE MaLL BY YORUREELF THAT DAY CORRECTY
[ RIGHT.
5. Ois DO YBU REMEMEER HOW LONG YOU STAYED IN THERE WHEN YOU WENT BACKET

A NO I DON'T MAYBE AN HOUR OR TWO. I WAS JUST LOOKING AROUND THE MaLL Is

I THINE I WENT INTO A BOOK STORE.
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. DURING THE HOUR OR TWO THAT YOU WERE IN THE MALL AT ANY TIME DID YOU
SEE UH.DID YOU HEAR ANY UH..FAGING FOR A CHILD: FOR ADAM WALTH?Y

AL I DO NOT REMEMEER ANY PAGING LH.

Li. WHEN YO WENT AND RETURNED TO YDOUR VEHICLE IN THE PARKING LOT.: DID YOU
SEE UHs NUMERSLS LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERE OR SECURITY GUARDES  UM: CHECKRING
THE AREA OF THE MALLY

A, NO I DID NOT. I DO NOT RECOLLECT THERE BEING ANYBODY LODKING ARDUND AT
THAT FLOINT.

. CK. NOW AFTER YOU RETURNED BACK T0 HUNTSVILLEs DID YOU READ ANYTHING
ABOUT THIS CASE UH» THE NEXT FOLLOWING. THE FOLLOWING WEERS AND MONTHS TO
CoME?

A. I EITHER READ ABOUT IT GOR HEARD ON T.V. THAT SOMERODY HAD ADMITTED
THAT THEY DID THE CRIME. THAT THE PERSUN HAD EBEEN CAUGHT. HAD COME FORWARD-
OR IT WAS SOMEBODY THAT HAD BEEN CAUGHT ON BOMETHING ELTSE I'M  NOT VERY
SPECIFIC ON THAT. AND THAT'S WHEN I PUT THIS PARTICULAR CASE QUT OF MY
MIND. THE PERSON HAS BEEN CAUGHT UH: AND I DIDN'T THINEK AEBOUT IT AGAINs IT
WAS A TERRIEBLE CRIME AND I THOUGHT IT HAD EBEEM SOLVED AND I DIDN'T THINK
ARBQUT IT AGAIN.

. 50 THAT POINTs FORM THAT POINT ON  UHs YOU BELIEVED THAT THE CASE HAD
EEEN SOLVED WITH THE PERSON ARRESTED AND CHARGED IN THIES CASE. CORRECTY

A RIGHT: CORRECT.

L. AND  IT WASN'T UNTIL YOU READ THE ARTICLE ON JEFFREY DOMER REGARDING.'
UH: HIS ARREST AND CONFEBSIONS TO GTHER HOMICIDEE ANMD A POSZIRLE  LINK TC
THE FLORIDA AREA. CORRECTY : ‘

A CORRECTs UHs IT HIT ME LIKE & BAZERALL EAT.

Gl AND THAT'S WHEN YOU WERE AWARE THAT THE ADAM WALSH CABE HaD IN  FaALCT
NOT BEEN SUOLVED.

A RIGHTy I WAE ALl THEBE YEARE 1 HAVE WATCHED MR. WALSH ON VARIOUS
THINGS I: ADAM WALSH WILL ALWAYS STICK IN MY MIND UHs ABs A5 YOL KNGW THE
LITTLE BOY THAT WAS AT THE BEARS THAT I WAS AT THAT GOT ARDUCTED. ARDUCTEDs
UHs AND IT WAS & SHOCK TO ME TO FIND OUT AFTER alLL THESE YEARS THAT THAT
CASE HAD NOT BEEN S0LVED AND IT WAS NOT UNTIL I READ THIZ CASE WITH THIG
LITTLE EBYLINE UMDERNEATH HERE THAT THEY WERE STILL INVESTIGATING THAT YOU
KNOW IT HIT ME THAT THIS HAS NOT BEEN SCOLVED: MAYBE I SHOULD &GO EACK AND
TELL WHAT I ENOW AGAIN S0 THAT MAYBE THIZ CaN HELF IN SOME WAY.

G AND  THAT'S WHY YOU CAME FORWARD WITH THE INFORMATION CaALLINS THE
FOLICE DEPARTMENT ON SUNDAYY i :

B RIGHT AS SOONs I MEAN AS SOON'AS I READ THIS I 2AT THERE AND I LOOKED,
WHAT I DID WAS EBASICALLY WAS I ZPENT THE NEXT TWO HOURE LOOKING AT THIS
FICTURE GUOING..
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& THE FICTURE OF JEFFREY DOMER.

AL RIGHT. I THINK I'VE SEEN THIZ GUY IOMEWHERE AND THE THING THAT I
REMEMEER IS THE CHINs HOW IT VERY PRONQUNCE CHIN. '

A RIGHT.

A UHs  THAT'S WHAT GOT ME STARTED 20 I LOOKED AT THAT FOR TWO HOURS I
TaALEED TO MY WIFE ABCUT IT aND I DECIDED IT WAS TIME TO CALL UHs:  AND TO
GIVE ANY KIND OF HELF THAT I CAN THAT'S WHY I FPROVIDED THEEE DOCUMENTE TG
MUMBER 1 SHOW THAT I DID LIVE IN THIE AREA.

. RIGHT.

A NUMEBER Z THAT I HAD BEEN TO THE ZEART ETORE UM AND ANYTHING ELZE THAT
THAT I°VE GOT THAT I CAN GIVE TO YOU GUYES TO HELF I'M MORE THAN WILLING.

u. NOW SINCE JEFFREY DUOMER HAD SURFACED AND EBEEN ARRESTED IN THE CAZELS UP
IN MILWAUKEE. YOU HAVE SEEM  HIS PHOTOGRAFH AND  ALSD I GUESE  YOU'VE SEEN
FICTURES OF HIM ON NATIDNAL T.V.7

AL I HAVE SEEN HIS PHOTOGERAPH, I HAVE NEVER UNTIL I'VE EVEN SEEN VIDEGE
FROM NN AND WHAT NOT

&, RIGHT. 3
A IT WABN'T UNTIL I AW THIS PROFILE THAT 1T STARTED TG RING A EBELL.
. (k.

AL UH: I'VE GONLY SEEN FRONTAL FICTURES OF UHs: MR. DOMER. UNTIL I SAW THAT
FICTURE AND THE WAY THaT PICTURE IS FRAMED WITH THE CHIN JUDDING I&s IS
JUST RUNME AND BELL RANG A BELL THAT MAYRBEs MAYEE THIS HAS SOMETHING TO DO
WITH WHAT 1 HAD SEEM AND LIKE I 2AID I DIDN'T &GET & 10 POINT IDENTIFICATION
STRAIGHT AT HIM BUT I DO REMEMBER THE CHIN AND UH..

. S0 THIS PHOTOGRAPH IN THE BIRMINGHAM MEWS DATED SUNDAY JULY 28TH IE
THE PHOTGGRAFPH YOU'RE REFERRING TO IS THAT CORRECT?Y

A RIGHT. THAT 1% CORRECT.

. Gk NOW THIS PHOTOGRAFPH OF JEFFREY DOMER AND THE INDIVIDUAL THaAT YOU
HaD WITNESZED ON THAT DAY BEING MONDAY JULY Z¥THs OFs HOW SIMILAR ARE THEY?

A I WOULD SAY VERY SIMILAR INs IN THE FOINT OF THE CHIN AND MAYREs MAYRE
THE WAY THE TOF CGF THE FOREHEAD AND  THE NOSE aARE. JUST A8 FaAR IT JUZSY
REMINDS IT'S KIND OoF CAVE MaN LOCGHING IN A WaY. VERY PRONCGUNCE FEATURES
WHICH IS WHAT I REMEMEER OF THE FERSON THAT WASZ DRAGGING THIS KID OUT OF
THIE VAN.

T oK NOWs 10 YEARS AGS THAT WOULD BE MAKING JEFFREY DOMER Z1 YEARS QLD
HAS HE CHANGED MUCH IN TEN YEARE?
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& FROM LOOKING AT THAT PICTURE AND LOOKING AT THE FPICTURE: TRYING TO
REMEMEBER WHAT I HaD SEEN FPICTURING IN MY MIND I WOULD BAY WNOT VERY MUCH TO
ME ..

S, 0K YOU MENTIONMED IN  YOUR STATEMENT ARBOUT THE THING THAT WaAE QUITE
UNUSUAL THAT BEING THE MIDDLE OF JULY VERY HOT HUMID IN S0UTH FLORIDA THAT
THE SUEJECT YOU SAW DRAGGING THE CHILD FROM THE MaLL AREA WAE WEARING AM
ARMY FATIGUE JACKET.

A RIGHTs CORRECT.

Gl ALRIGHT DID YOU HAVE ENOWLEDGE UHs PRIOR TO COMING HERE TODAY THAT
JEFFREY DOMER HAD SERVED IN THE MILITARY?

A. 1 HAD READ SOMEWHERE EEFORE I CAME IN THAT HE WAS IN GERMANY IN ONE OF
THE ARMED FORCES I DIDN'T I WAS NOT FAMILIAR WITH WHAT ARMED FORCE OR AT
WHAT PERIOD AND All THIZ THAT HE WAS » THAT HE WAS INVOLVED IN ALL OF THIZ:
NOs S0 YES AND NI, I WAS aWARE THAT HE WaAES IN THE ARMED SBERVICES I WADS NOT
AWARE OF WHAT PERIOD OF TIME IN HIE LIFE HE WAE IN THOZE IN THE ARMED
EERVICES. .

I3, 0. NOW YOU CANT SAY WITH A HUNDRED PERCENT CERTAINTY THAT THE SURJECT
THAT YOU SAW BACK ON JULY =Z7TH 191 IS IN FACT JEFFREY DOMER?Y

A NCOT AT THIS POINT NO. WITH A BASEBEALL CAF ON AND AT THE DISTANCE I CAN
MAKE GENERALIZATIONS AT THIS POINT BUT 1 COULD NOT DEFINITELY. IDENTIFY HIM
ALTHOUGH LIKE I S5AID BEFORE HIS FACE DOES  LOOK FAMILIAR. UH: WHETHER IT'ES
THROUGH THAT FAMILIARITY OR THAT EVENT I CAN MOT BAY.

. WaS THERE ANYRODY ELSE IN THAT GENERAL AREA WHEN THIS OCCURREDY

AL NO. EXCEFT FOR SOME PEOPLE GETTING OUT OF THEIR CARSs THAT WAS ITs IT
WAS JUST THE &GUYs THE BOY.. ’

. NOW THIE VAN WAE FARKED RIGHT EY CUREB SIDE EBY THE STORE CORRECT?Y

A GOING THE OFFOSITE DIRECTION OF WHAT IT SHOULD OF HOW I7 SHOULD  OF
EBEEMN FACING. :

. B0 HE WAS FACING SOUTH EOUND IN THE NORTH BOUND TRAFFIC LANE FOR THE
EUSES.

& EXACTLY .
. I EEE.
A EXACTLY.

. DID YOU NOTICE THE LENGTH OF HIZ HAIR UNDERNEATH THE EBASEBALL CAPTY CAN
You TELL?

[ UH. .DOWN HERE.

. ARDUND THE COLLAR AREAY
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A YEAH COLLAR: MAYBE & LITTLE. NOT: NOT Os NOT A WHOLE LOT LONGER THAN
THAT. DIDN'T SEEM TO BE HIFFIE TYFE 1T WaAE..

L. COULD YOU TELL THE COLOR OF HIS HAIR?

A UK, IT LOOKED LIKE KIND LIKE MY KIND: DIRTY BLONDE SEEM TO BE. IT WAS
NOT BLACK. I DIDN'T BEE BLACK HAIRs I DIDN'T SEE RED HAIRs: JUST EIND OF A
EROWNISH TG BLONMDE KIND OF DIRTY BLONDE COLOR.

G« DID YOU NOTICE ANY ARTICLE UF CLOTHING UNDERNEATH THE JACKETs WASZ THE
JACKET QOFENT

A THE JACKET WAE OPEN...THERE MAY HAVE BEEN A ROUND SET OF KEYES THE KIND
THAT YOU PULL THE CHAIN QUT?

. RIGHT.

A SOMETHING WAS SHINY UNDER THERE IT COULD OF BEEN THAT IT LOOKED LIKE
UH: LOOKED ROUND AND LOOKED LIKE MAYBE IT HAD SOME KEYE ON THERE. I CAN'T

- BAY THAT IS A DEFINITE.

. k..

A. BUT THERE WAS BOMETHING JANGLING ARCUND THERE I BELIEVE.

Gia THE OnLY THING YOU REMEMBER ABOUT THE CHILD WAS A STRIFPED SHIRT?

AL I EBELIEVE A STRIFED SHIRTs SOMETHING 1IN WHITé I THINKE QR A
MULTICCOLORED LLIKE A WHIT AND A RED AND A& BLUE UH: ALTERMNATING LIEE THAT.

. NGO OTHER ARTICLES OF CLOTHINGY

A NO UHs MAYEBE DARK  PANTS IT SUST DIDN'T REALLY ZTICK OUT AT THE TIME I

WAS TORN BETWEEN I WATS TRYING TO TAKE ALL OF THIS IN CAUZE IT HAFPFPENED 3O
SUDDENLY AND I WATCHING I'M REALLY WATCHING THE MaAN MORE THaN I'M WATCHING
THE LITTLE BEOY BECAUSE OF THE MAN'E BEHAVIOR TOWARD THE LITTLE BOY. UH..

. WAS HE VERY HOETILEY

A YESs VERY HOSTILE AND THAT'S: THAT'ES WHAT MADE ME STOF 1 MEAN I JUST
STOFFED DEAD AND I'M LOCKING WITH THIS FUNNY LOOK ON MY FACE I WATCHED ALL
THIS FROCEED AND I 2alW THE gUY THROW THIS KID IN THE TRUCK AND OFF HE WENT:
TIRES A SCREECHING. AND UH: THAT'S WHAT STHCK IN MY MIND ABOUT THAT WAL
JUST HAD THAT NOT BRUTLE BUT LIKE YOU SAID HOSTILE LIKE YOU KNOW YOU'RE
GOING, YOU MAVE NO CHOICE IN THIS MATTER.

(AN ALRIGHT MR. BOWENM I  DIN'T HAVE ANY OTHER QUESTIONS TO  ASK YOU. HAS
EVERYTHING YOU SAID IN YOUR STATEMENT RBEEN THE COMFLETE TRUTH?

A UHs YES TO ME RECOLLECTICN FROM E£VERYTHING THAT I HAVE REMEMEBERED
ABQUT THIS EVENT YES. ) .

. IZ THERE ANYTHING ELSE YOU WANT TO. ADD TG YOUR STATEMENT AT THIE TIME
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BEFORE WE CONCLUDE?

A UH ONLY THAT I WaNT TO BE FULLY COOFERATIVE WITH THE HOLLYWOOD POLICE
DEFARTMENT IF THERE ARE ANY KIND OF DOCUMENTS COR:ANY QUEBTIONING TECHNIQUES
THAT MIGHT HELF BRING OUT ANY MORE INFORMATION I'M AVAILARLE 24 HOURE A DAY
AND I'LL DO WHATEVER I CAN TO HELF THIZ Uks THIZ WAS SPECIAL TO ME IN THAT
THIS WAS THE THIS REALLY ETARTED THIS WHOLE THING ABOUT MIEEING CHILLDREN
AND IT EROUGHT TO ATTENTION AND I FEEL THAT I1'M A PART OF IT BECAUSE I WAS
LIVING IN HOLLYWOODRD AT THE TIME AND I° BELIEVE THAT I MAY HAVE SEEN THIS
HAFPEN WITHOUT REALLY KMOWING THAT IT DID AND THE FACT THAT IT I3 STILL NOT
UNSOLVED AND I WANT TO bO EVERYTHING I CaN TO HELP. :

Q. k.

_THIS STATEMENT IS EEING CUNCLUDED ON JULY 20THs 1991 AT APPROXIMATELY 17ZD
HOWRZ. END OF STATEMENT.
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 Florida police investigat
~ possible links to Adam Walsh
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.. By Robert Dvorchak .
"1 -1 Associated Press writer

Coer s MILWAUKER — J effrey Dahmer,
Cvwho  admitted killing 11 -people
.« Wwhose remains were found in his
= dingy apartment, has denied involye.
~omént in slayings other than in Wis.
" «‘Ponsin and Ohio, his lawyer said Sa-
.« tirday.- -

-2« vAttorney Gerald Boyle's statement
came as Milwaukee police worked
i investigating
o , could be a sns-
v.pect in unsolved missing-persons or
-»Taurder cases in several states, Ay-
v thorities in: ‘Germany alse were
»investigating Dahmer in at least five
e unsolved  murders near an Army
- «'base where he had been stationed.
v»20ne of the unsolved U.S, cases is
“«:the abduction and killing of 6-year-
+'old :Adam ‘Walsh,“whose disappear-
wance 10 years ago Saturday in Floi-
¢ 1da focused new nationwide attention

0N’ missing children. Walsh’s head -

a.

«Was found in a canal two weeks later.
o+ ' Dahmer’s father said his son lived
-in! Florida at the time, The Mil-
{tbaukee Sentinel reported. Holly-
* wood police confirmed ‘they " were
: investigating whether Dahmer may
~have beeninvolved in the boy’s
» Geath, though they stressed that they

didn’t consider him a suspect, S
Police believe Dahmer may be re-

sponsible for at least 17 deaths over

10 or more years, © : '
Boyle, in a " statement, : quoted

Dahmer ‘as saying: “T have told the

police everything I have'done rela-
tive ‘to these homicides: I have not
committed any such crimes -any-
where in the world other than in this
state except I have admitted an inci-
dent in Ghio.” - o
“1 have been totally cogperative
and would have admitted " other
crimes if 1 did them. I did not. Hope-
fully this will serve to put rumors to
rest,” Boyle quoted Dahmer as say-
ing. He said Dahmer wouldn't ‘com-
ment further, . . e T
Several newspapers have reported
that Dahmer hag confessed.to killing
a'man in Ohio. Police in Bath Town-
ship, ' Ohig,
sealed off the
for body parts Monday. :
The Akron (Ohio) Beacon-Jour-
nal quoted unidentified police
sources saying Dahmer had sex with

a man, killed him' and burjed him .

near his home while he has living
with his parents in 1978, . :
Township police Capt.:John Gard-

ner wouldn't comment on the report

but confirmed that Bath and Summit

¢onfirmed " they  have.
grounds of . Dahmer’s --
former home there and wil] search’

.Jeffery Dahmer
Suspected serial killer

County " detectives JAinterviewed
Dahmer on Saturday in jail in Mjl-
watkee. He said police would dis-
cuss the case at a news conference
Sunday. - '

Police in the Milwaukee suburb of
West Allis also said Milwaukee ay-
thorities had contacted thery about
the possibility that Dahmer “killed
Someone while living with his grand-
mother. West Allis police Chief John
Butorac told The' Milwaukee Joyr-
nal he ‘would interview the woman
and get a search warrant if nec-
essary. - .- FE

In Hollywood, Fla., police spokes-

‘man Ed Cunningham said detectives

had contacted Milwaukee police {o

-investigate’ possible links.hetween

Dahmer and the Adam Walsh case.
But he einphasized Dahmer was not
a suspect in Adam’s murder, ‘

Dahmer’s father said his son spent
six months in Florida after he was -
discharged from 'the Army in 1981,
sléeping on the beach or at g motel
by night and-working in a sandwich."
shop by day, ‘according to The Mil-
waukee Sentinel, ‘ )
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COMPLAINT #: 21-54072

OFFENSE % CLASSIFICATION: HOMICIDE/MURDER »

STATEMENT OF: WILLIZ RUSEELL MORGAN : FAGE 1
The following wiltl be a voluntary swarn stztement reference MHollywoaod
Case #S1-5a4073%: offense HomicidesMurders date of offsnse July &V
iwEl . Location will e 200 Holiywood Malis Victim WabSH: ADAPM.
This etztement is commencing on Ooct.23: 1991 ad ARpFOH. 1EEE hrs. and
iz being taken by Det. J. Hoffmane: Shield = oof  the Hollyvwood
Paolice Depk. Homicide Umit. This statement is besing taken from =
subject identified as MORGANs WILLIS RUSSELL, W/FM. DOE D-10-47 who
resides at 128 EHedford Ave.s Hallandales Fls phaone 4EE-45%a. M -
Morgan is currently employed by the Miami Heraid inp the pressroom.
Thie statement is periaining *te certain kpowledge and information
that M. Morgan  posesesses regarding the subjoct JEFFREY DAHMER  whoe
had heen sarrested in Wiscansins Ohio.

G "riar to taking this statement Mr. Morguins are you sware that
it is a crime under the Florida State Statutes to knowingly furnish
false infprmeticon while under oath?
Hea Yes I do.
RO At this time I'm going to place you under woath for  vour
testimany. Will you please raise your right hand? ({Let the record
refiect that Mr. Mergarn's right hand 18 raised). Hijlis Hussell
Morgans do you sclemnly swear to tell  the truths the whoie truth and
mothing but the Fruth so help vou God?
ey Yes I do
WILLIE RUSEELL MORGAN HAVING AFPEARED EEFDHE ME & CERTIFIED SHORM
FOLICE OFFICER FOR THE CITY OF  MOLLYWOIOD. BROWARD COUNTY. FlL, HAVING
BEEN DULY SWORN- DEFOSES AND STATES
e - For the record sirs would vou plezse state your complaete given
names your date of birth and your home address?
& My mame is Willis Russell Morgans Jv. My address s
Bedfard Ave.: HMallandales: Fl. and my date of birth s May 10 1947,
Gia Where are you smployed sir?
A I work for the Miami Herald in downbown Miami.
- . ‘.
. How fang have you been emploved there?
A 19-1/% vears
G What is the highest grade level af sducstian  that vou'l
completed?
A High schaool. I've taken some coursss in  coilege but I've
rnevar complated {t.
& M. Morgan: what caused you o come forward to contact mysedd
. (’}'
IhMNuuuLhiﬁL‘ Z0an FREFORTING OFF. @ HOFFMAN
Aoy G0Es DATE: 10-En-%1 DURERY, aRPFREY CSERIAL:
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EEOTE
FICATION: HOMICIDE/MURDER
= RLQQFLL MRGEAN

COMPELATNT #: &1
OEFENSE & CLASS
STATEMENT OF ¢«

FAGE 2

at the Hollywood Folice Dept. regarding the Adam #Waish investigation?

H. ‘eause I work as a printer in the Miami Hseal

Herald?

‘:} w

& Do you recall what date you saw  this photegraph in the Miami

A It would ke on the ZSth

i What month?™

A July

. And whose photograph was that?

Fa Jeffrey Dahmer

IR Did y&u recall at that time where you lfast saw this subject?
iy Yes I dids in the Holiywesd Mail 10 years ago

Gl Ten years ago. Do yvou know what menth 10 years agao?

AL Gk i+ the thing I remembersed the mest  was the days that it

was = Mondeay and it was the same day that Adam Waish

. Now how do you know that?
& . Becauss I saw it wan TV and I remembersd  ths

him in the mall that same day and when I saw i% on

incidents seeing

TV ltater on that

there was somebody kidnappeds: I knew that the guy I waz folicwing had

4.

something te de with it ‘cause I foflowed kim to She
G O the day  that vouw're speaking abouts that

July Z7s 1981 which was a Monday

Pay dept.

wreuld have  been

B I remember it was & Monday beczuse that's my day off.
. Approx. what time did wou go to Bhe Hollywood Mail?
Loy The thing is back then I was working a 4-day work week and I

was off Sunday: Monday and Tussday and Mondey was in

i days off and I reatily had ne schedule mrd I owasn't

ta the time. I know 1% was in the afiternoon that I

f
TEANS.SERIAL: ZOSS REPORTING OFF. @ HOFFMan éH
BERIAL: 003 DATE: 10-ZH-%1 SUFERY . APFRE

»oERIAL:

the middlie of my
naving attention

did and I didn't
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COMPLAINT .

OFFENEE

STATEMENT

Be Bl-BAGTE
CLASSIFICATION:
OF: WILLIZ RUSS

&

ook =2t watoh.

iy

Gla Where had

Eucuse me?

. Where had
MaliY

£ . g I came
and I walked down

o, I'm saving
Home

You were h
Right
Sa

O Y

Right

Went o

Gla By = wvehic
&L By a vehic
. You were

2. Same addre
I3 Zmme addre
5. Un the sas

That would
bhere the
The fowd ¢
Right

I went int

DATE 3

HOMICIDE/MURDER
ELL MORGAN

vou been previous
you been sarlie
ire
te Radio Shack.

s before vou dro
OMEe .

teft your home

the Holilywsod Mall.

fe?

le.

fiving where at that

55
sy in Hallanda!
£t sideg of theg m=a

e by which doo

food concession

aurt where you C

Walagreens and

REFORT ING

10-25-71

OFF.

u
H
oo
pnd}

to goeing

r» pefore you went To

vie over to the malls

that morning or

And you drave to the Hollywood Mall?

Right

time?

= Where did

WLl
;

[

]
s

iS.

asme inte the inside?

And what did vou do wmfter sntering the masll?

then

HFERY . AFFEOV . ZERTAL

te the Hollywsod Mal i’

.
%
]
¥

vy

the Holl FASE ot

fthru the east entrance =2rd I went into Walgresns

wherse were wout

afternoon.

I went down to Radio Shack.
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COMPLAINT #: S1-S£073 -

OFFENSE & CLABSIFICATION: HOMICIDE/MURDER »

STATEMENT OF: WILLIZ RUSSELL MORGAN &
e and what happéﬁed at Radio Shack?
. I was almost getting ready Lo leave Radie Shack and I saw some
items on the table +that szid Red Tag Zale so I was looking at these
ttems when samebody approached me. Actually what happened wess I wis
standing there and I noticed from my peripheral vision there was
samesne ehanding in the doaorwasy and he was Jjust standing %hers and
standing there and Just standings &o I iaakéd 2t the ‘
Gla Do you know which doorwey of Radia Shacok?
oy Riaght. Ths =nly entrance to Radico Shack from  the mall: fraom
inside the mall. ﬁny@ayﬁ I pnoticed somebody stzring at me with a big
amile an his faces smirk or whatever and a2s soon as I ifooked a2t him
he says "hi theres nice day ian't it". He was standing in the
enbranpce way and I I Jjust ‘teok & deep breath and I said gsszs vyou
kEnomws I gave Him a lock jlkes vou knows what are you lookin' at and I
remember he smiled again and came aver to me and he Jjust was standin:
there. What was really strange is that he zaid "ni theresr nice da
jsn't it" mgain when he came up  Eo me but he said it fike he wae
standing &0 ft. aways real loud bubt he was standing right on tep  of
e . But seer I didn't answer him and I remember looking fTo my vright
to  see where the auy was from Radio Shack and 1 saw him. He was all
the way in  the back and I saw him pukting stuff on shelves or
something because I figured I migh need & witness or soms help
‘rause this guy was Just standin’' there. He wouldn't 3o away butb
finzlly. he Just turned around and [eft.
(A3 Appriox. how old was that subject then?
& o1 JRYVE MY Stat;meﬁt 1¢ wvears ago when I came  here and I
said he was bebtween EC and Z2 1 thinks 20 maybe waz what I said back

s

=

REFORTING
1O-E5-%1

OFEFE .

[_;“,- oa

DAaTE:

HOFEFMaM

HFRERY .

o

AEFROV.

[teg
SRR
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TREY LEWER:

COMPFLAINT #: 21-5o073 :
DFFEMSE & CLASSIFICATION: HOMICIDE/MURDER e
STATEMENT OF sz WILLIS RUSEELL MORGAN PAGE D

G &Grnd how was he dressed?
A O He had blue Jjeans on that were worn exzctiy like The ones

I'm wearing now. They were faded zand worn exactly like these. Now T

remember when he left Tthe mall  he crossed over on the right side of

i
it}
&
o
[£1]
..1'
w
-t

the mait and he was walking real slow. atmust like a
remembher when I was watching hims I kespt saying I gobtta remamber Ihisz
guy and I gotta remember what he was wearing and Is and I wass I

P

lanked a% his hair. I remember sayin' I gotta remember everyihing

Jat

about him. I know he had 2 wvellaw shirt on. It loaked like

butten Type shirt and had faded Lluae jeans on.

& What colar was his hair?

A Seragglys dirty blonde hair .

LA Mew long was 7

-1 0¥ When I saw him from the fronts: when he was standin' in fde

Radio Shacks it seemed to be tormgers  but I remember when I was
watchin' him from hehind: I remembsr thinking weils his hair's naot as
long as it iooked Ffrom the front. It was down =mimost  touching Ris

caflar.

i He was hy himsslf?y

A H

m

was by himself.
Gia Dhher than making the statemsnt that he stated to vou "ik's =z

1t

very nice day™y what did you do when you leff Radinz

& {0 I news I had *his sense thet ke was  gonna approach

i

somehody. He was intent on approaching somebody 'tause of the way

appraoached me so I just wanbted $o gee what would happen when he
approached somebodys what fTheir reachtion would ke. That's one of the

REFORTING FF. HEFFEaN Jﬁ

H
1 10-EE-T SUPERY , aFPROVEERTAL 5
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COMPLAINT #: 21-BA07Z
CFFEMSE & CLASSIFICATION: HOMICIDE/MURDER &3
STATEMENT OF: WILLIS RUBBELL MIRGAN Fagkh &

reasons I was following him.

. Did he appear to be gay?
A Wells the only reason I ssnsed that is ‘oauge of the ways you
knows he was trying to pick mg up. Yeou knows I means why  wowld he

want tos vou  koow: some guy trying o pick somsbedy ups bud I didntE
sernse from his wvolce aor his btones I didn’ts wou knows sernse anyibhing
liks that.

W Alright.

A But I assume thats: you knows vou knows why would he wanna pick
somebody up. I krew he wau!ﬁ appiroach somebody and I Jjust wanted to
sees what their reaction would be and I remember when I was following

Bime I was alssc thinking that they might need some help: you know and

gea I foltowed him.

. Where'd he go¥
A il He went =all thse way down toep Sears and he  turrped into

Seare and I turned intoe Sears right kehind him. I vemember thinkin®

I wannz keeps [ was keesping a distance ‘csuse I was afraid if he saw
me following hims he would et ar vou knows upset wnd I didn’t

o

wanna '+ vour knows po inciden®t with him or anvithing so I waszs keasping

dizstance and I was watchings:s kgeping an gve on him and I saw him furn

in Sears. I remember when he went into Sears as soon &as he entereds

I saw him [ike looking arcund for somebody but there was nobhody there

except the £ giris hehind the perfume counter. He didn't even glance

at them. And then there was an older couple walking ftoward us and he

Just sart of glanced at  them re=zl guick and  Just kept walking

straight.

I He was walking in a westerily direction thru the store?
f
TRANS.EERISL: Z08E REFORTIMNG COFF. @ HOFFMAN
EERIA&L: O ] DaATE: 10-25-%1 SUPERV . AFFRIN
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COMPLATNT #: S1-54073
OFFENSE & CLASSIFICATION: HOMICIDE/MURDER =
STATEMENT OF: WILLIE RUSEELL MORGAN
fa West.
. and you foest him?
A Wells no I didn't Iose him until ws got tos this
the heginning of Searss: he walked all the way to

the west and

WET like |

then h

i1

find

turned to the right a5 far ag you can o westr to the izast aiste and
3

then

ot

A

ke turnred

the right.

k]

Which would ke north.

Which would be north again.

. Ard then 3t that location veu ftosh him?
B Ok What haproened was I Figured that was the end of Igars and
I figured he was gonna’ rezlize where he was zt and turn arocund ang
- come back this way and ke woeulds you knows (f I followad him any
mores he woulds we'd ke face to faces so I scri of (ike went inte fhe
men'e dept. and lesked in there a2 {ittle Dit and Just ieft at that
point.
Gl Ard vou went back ovt to the esst where your car was parked?
A Right
3 Nows when vou First had contact with him over st  the Radio
Shacky he was already in the mail. Is that corvect?
B ¥es
. Go oyou never saw now he get theres by vehicle or
AT I was standing thiz way and the door is here. I know thiszs is
o tape and they can't  see what I'm doing here buts and the door’e
here and the entrance is right here.
£ By the FPublix
fia By  the FPublix. There's an entrance here znd Radic Shack is
the first store there and I'm nots. I wouldn®d swesr that I saw him
TRANZ.SERIALY Z08E REFPORTING OFF. @1 HOFFPMAN _
DATE: 10-F8-%1 SURERY . AFPROV .. SERTAL:

o
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COMPLAINT #:

OFFR]

SE

b CLAS

STATEMEMT OF 2

TPAN

-
. SE

enter

fram s

table.

bl

Ba

wasn'i

[

but I

with a

Gl

A,

o

g

FRIal :

R

7R
IFA ION: HOMICIDE/MURDER -
LI585 RUSSELL MORGAN

F'T!ﬂ

I

fram Lthere but I think he dids From my peripherad

tandin: this way iooking at  the Tapes at the
¥ F

What was vour purpoese for going over to the mail?
’ F f

I went %o MWalgreens tuo look arcund and then 1 had

doing anything so I jjust stroiled down to Radio Zhack.

Did you make any purchases that day

Mot that I recali.

Mows when did vou learn aboub Adams Walsh's abduction?

That same evening on the news when I went home.

1]

That would have been about what time?

About &

Ok After vou  hewrd zabogt that on the news repo
then?
T think it was the il o'clock news. I wouldn*t

m pretty sure it was the 11 o'cleck news that I wa

a&fter you heard about the abductiony Jdid you aver
ny law enforcement agency at that Lime?
Yesz I 4did.

When would that have bean®

The very nmext day.

lihere at?

Right here.

At the Hollvywoesd Police Dept.?

Yas

Ard did yvou speak to a2 uniformed officers
Upiforms ves.

0
PARLEE REFURTING OFF. @ MHOFFMARN
DaTE: 10-28-%1 SUPERY . AFFRIY . ZE

m
by
-t

vision iuss

what i

n
or
)

[¥x]
,.

]
(]
=
i
[
A
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REVIEWERS

COMPLAINT &: QL-DE0GT2
OFFENSE & CLASSIFICATIOMN: HOMICIDE/MURDER >
STATEMENT OF: WILLIZ RUSBELL MORGAN FaGE w

Ga And what did he de? DRid he take 2 report?
A He wrote down  what I my statement. He =ppesred %o be

wiriting.

G . But you thought he may have bheen involved in it because of the
fact that he spproached you. Corresct?

A Wells because of the whole incidents wou knows his persona.
There was something azhout him. I kpew thats vou knows the 5u§§ there
was samething wraong with this guye Just the way he loosked: the way he
dressedy the way he carried himsg!?; svarything.

G You can't put = time down that yﬁﬁ ware at the matl that day?
Can you narrow i down® -

A I really can't. I reallys really can’i. I wasn't  paying

attention.

(AN What time do you usually g=st up in The morning?
A, in the afternocnss 10 - 11
G arnd do weou have any recall what vou Jdid that morning after vou

got up?¥ You stayed arcund. VYou had brezkfast or what you did prior

to caming to HollyWoeod? ®
A Mo I reably don't. I didn't leave the haouse. I was home,
K Mow  comes  July of  1%%1le I beiieve you said  vou o faw &

chotegraph and a news zccount of  the subject by fthe name of Jaffrey
Dahmer who had been arrested in Milwsukee regarding somg murders up

there. Is that carrect?

(F After vou viewed this photograph and read the articles what
did yvou think 2t that ftime?
& Wells I knew it was him.

REFORTING OFF. HIFFMaN

¢
DATE: 10-Z5-%1 SUFERY APPRD D SERTAL

TRA&ME.ZE
ZERTAL:
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COMPLAINT #:2
OFFENZE I
STATEMENT OF: WI

21-8&073
o CLASSIFICATION: HOMICIDE/MURDER »
LLIS RUZSELL MORGAN FaGE 10
& You'vre sayving that subjegct Jeffrey Dahmer  that vod saw  most

recently here in a 1991 pews articie is the same suhject that you saw
a2t the Hollvwood Sears Mall back in July of 1921.

& Without 3 doubt.

L. Without =z doubt.

A Without = doukt.

Gt Has his appearance changed moch over 10 vears?

A Mos none. This photo and this  photes i you know vou can sas
right there. Thers isn't that much difference.

s You're fndicating that the most recent ghotoaraph of 1991 and

vere's another photograph of him I belisve in 1939,

& Is that "&57% Nos I believe thzat's 'Sl 1931 arrest.
e Flighta It depicts him of having a moustache in the Tl
arregst.

AL Right
. For  pubiic drunkenness. Did he have = mnuftafha when you say

Feim inm 'EIY
A That's the ang  thing I don't recoliects: the moustathe. I'm

ot 100% positive.

. E' than the information that yeou furnished me with todays
o

iz there any additiaonal information that we haven't discus sed7

&0 There enuld ke but then I can't think of anything risht now.
Gla But you never witnessed the subdect That you saw in the maill

that day actualbly commit the abducticon of Adam Walsh?

& a Mo I didn'th

G ¥You just put him in that general area.
A In the ftoys walking to the foy dept. aActualiys into the Loy

FOEE AN

SUPERY ., AFPRI

hCFUPTIJG aFF .

='|'_] us
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CQHPLAINT #: B1-SE073

OFFENZE & CLASSIFICATION: HOMICIDE/MURDER o
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dept. because I was keeping & distance and when he tuwrned rights when
I got to that aisies he was actually zlready into the foy dept.

A O, I have no  further guestions to ask wou a2t this time .
Morgan. Has everyihing you said to me in fThis statement been the
complete truth?

A Yes [t is.

oM Iz there anything elese wou want to zdd to  your statement at

this time bhefore we conclude?

A Ne T don‘t

THIS STATEMENT I£ EBEIMG CONCLUDED ON WED. 10-Z3-%1 AT AFFROX. 13240

HRS .
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